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The built environment offers tremendous 
market potential. Decision-makers 
confronted with aging high-rises, bridges, 
roads and tunnels inevitably face the 
question of whether to demolish and rebuild 
or renovate. Yet, when all key factors are 
weighed up, the integral life-cycle per-
spective for buildings and infrastructure in-
creasingly shows that modernization and 
refurbishment is the best solution. For more 
on this subject, please read the feature 
article in this Annual Report on page 64 ff. 
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Brief Overview
�

Net sales Growth in local Operating profit as % of Net profit as % of Operating free as % of 
(consolidated) currencies before depreciation net sales net sales cash flow net sales 

in CHF mn in in CHF mn in in CHF mn in in CHF mn in 

5 000 15 750 15 500 8 500 10 

4 000 10 600 14 400 7 400 8 

3 000 5 450 13 300 6 300 6 

2 000 0 300 12 200 5 200 4 

1 000 ­5 150 11 100 4 100 2 

0 ­10 0 10 0 3 0 0 

Sika Group 
in CHF mn 2011 as % of 

net sales 
2012 as % of 

net sales 

Net sales 4 563.7 4 828.9 

Gross result 2 304.6 50.5 2 519.3 52.2 

Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA) 477.4 10.5 568.9 11.8 

Operating profit (EBIT) 347.1 7.6 428.8 8.9 

Net profit 214.8 4.7 281.1 5.8 

Operating free cash flow 186.1 4.1 302.5 6.3 

Capital expenditures 117.1 2.6 131.3 2.7 

Balance sheet total 3 830.3 4 262.3 

Shareholders’ equity 1 839.1 2 007.4 

Equity ratio in % 48.0 47.1 

ROCE in % 15.6 18.3 

Earnings per share in CHF 85.06 110.98 

Number of employees 15 254 15 233 

Energy consumption in MJ per ton sold 595 560 

CO2 emissions in tons 31 000 47 000 

Water consumption in million m³ 2.0 1.87 

Net sales by region Net sales by market 
(consolidated) in CHF (consolidated) in CHF 

Europe North 

Europe South 

North America 

Latin America 

IMEA* 

Asia/Pacific 

Other segments 
and activities 

250 500 750 1 000 1 250 1 500 4 829 mn 0 Total 

1 251 mn (25.9%) 

799 mn (16.6%) 

706 mn (14.6%) 

586 mn (12.1%) 

279 mn (5.8%) 

875 mn (18.1%) 

333 mn (6.9%) 

3 884 mn (80.4%) 

Industry 

Construction 

945 mn (19.6%) 

0 500 1 000 1 500 2 000 2 500 3 000 3 500 4 000 4 829 mn Total 

* India, Middle East, Africa 



        
  

          
     

            

           
  

       
         

  

         
         
        

        

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

       

 

     

 

 

 

 

       

 ROCE* Energy consumption 

in MJ per ton sold in 

25 1 000 

20 800 

15 600 

10 400 

5 200 

0 0 

Portrait 
Sika AG, located in Baar, Switzerland, is a globally active specialty 
chemicals company. Sika supplies the building and construction 
industry as well as manufacturing industries (automotive, bus, truck, 
rail, solar and wind power plants, façades). Sika is a leader in pro-
cessing materials used in sealing, bonding, damping, reinforcing and 
protecting load-bearing structures. Sika’s product lines feature 
high-quality concrete admixtures, specialty mortars, sealants and 
adhesives, damping and reinforcing materials, structural streng-
thening systems, industrial flooring as well as roofing and water-
proofing systems. Worldwide local presence in 80 countries and 
some 15 200 employees link customers directly to Sika and 
guarantee the success of all partners. Sika generated annual sales 
of CHF 4 829 million in 2012. 

regions 
The start of 2013 saw Sika reduce the number of its geographical 
regions from six to four. The new regional breakdown is based on uni-
fied economic areas and supply chain structures. The new region 
EMEA covers the previous regions Europe North and Europe South 
together with the Middle East and Africa. With the former region 
IMEA dissolved, India has been reallocated to the region Asia/Pacific 
due to its close association with this economic area. North America 
and Latin America are to remain independent regions on account 
of their differing market structures. 

The mosT imporTanT resulTs of financial year 2012 
aT a glance 

• sika had a successful 2012 wiTh sales growTh of 
5.8% To chf 4 829 million 

• a rise in neT profiT of 31% To chf 281 million 

• a high level of operaTing free cash flow aT 
chf 303 million 

Water consumption 

in 1 000 tons in 1 000 cubic meters 

50 2 500 

40 2 000 

30 1 500 

20 1 000 

10 500 

0 0 

Core ComPetenCies 
One key factor for the success of Sika’s research and development 
work is its strategic focus on clearly defined core competencies, 
namely sealing, bonding, damping, reinforcing and protecting of load-
bearing structures in building and industry. 

target markets 
As global market leader in the construction chemicals sector, Sika con-
tinuously leverages new growth potential in all its target markets 
through innovation, quality and service. It provides its customers with 
innovative solutions that boost the efficiency, durability and aesthetic 
appeal of buildings, infrastructure facilities, installations and vehicles 
throughout production and use. The fully integrated concepts offered 
by Sika address the entire life cycle of a facility, from initial construc-
tion up to the point in time when repair, refurbishment or extension 
become necessary. 

The target markets of Sika are Concrete, Waterproofing, Roofing, 
Flooring, Sealing & Bonding, Refurbisment und Industry. 

• The emerging markeTs saw double-digiT growTh 
in 2012 and are already generaTing 37% of con-
solidaTed neT sales 

• The board of direcTors proposes To The annual 
general meeTing The paymenT of a 13% higher gross 
dividend Than in The previous year, namely, chf 51.00 
per bearer share and chf 8.50 per regisTered share 

* return on capital employed 



  

  

	

letter to ShareholderS 

SUCCeSSFUl YeAR
 

Jan Jenisch, CEO 
Dr. Paul Hälg, Chairman 



 
 

   

 

 
 

 

   

 

 

   

 

             

 

 

 

 

     
       

         

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS 

Sika had a successful 2012 with sales growth of 5.8%, 
a rise in net profit of 31%, and a high level of operating 
free cash flow at chf 303 million. We accelerated our 
investments in the growth markets and opened new 
factories and production lines in a number of emerging 
countries. The emerging markets saw double­digit 
sales growth in 2012 and are already generating 37% of 
our consolidated net sales. 

Despite the difficult economic conditions on many 
markets, Sika’s growth model, with its cornerstones of 
market penetration, technology leadership, accelerated 
expansion in the growth markets, and market consoli­
dation through acquisitions, worked well during the past 
financial year. We achieved strong growth in the emerg­
ing markets in Asia and Latin America. In North America 
demand stabilized and we recorded a 9% rise in sales 
thanks to gains in market share. In Europe on the other 
hand, we felt the effects of the debt problem with to 
some extent significant declines in market volumes. 

Sika accelerated its successful growth strategy in the 
emerging markets with a number of investment proj­
ects. In 2012, we invested considerable funds in the ex­
pansion of capacity, particularly in Brazil, Chile, China, 
Colombia, Mexico, Mongolia, Peru, Russia and Vietnam, 
which will improve the local supply chains and consolidate 
our local presence. This enables Sika to continuously in­
crease its close proximity to customers, which distinguish 
the company in the market. Sika now also has its own 
subsidiaries in Mongolia and Paraguay. 

Our technology leadership is based on the continuous 
development of new products with increased customer 
benefits. In 2012, Sika filed numerous patents and 
successfully launched various new products such as the 
new, fast­curing Sikalastic® waterproofing system 
for bridge decks. This reduces the time required for appli­
cation, thus enabling the renewal of large bridge areas 
without any major operational disruption. Another 
example is the new SikaProof® sheet membranes that 
prevent any lateral water underflow for fast, safe sealing 
of fresh concrete composites. In the adhesives and 
sealants market segment, we launched new products 
based on our i­Cure technology, which are odorless and 
solvent­free. They also meet the strictest emissions 
standards and are quick and easy to apply. 

In 2012, we successfully completed three acquisitions in 
South Korea, Germany and Paraguay. The acquisition in 
Paraguay rounds out our strong position in Latin America 
and continues our successful strategy of investing in 
growth markets. 

We are well prepared for the future. At the start of 2013, 
Sika created a streamlined, more efficient Group leader­
ship structure. Group Management was slimmed down 
from fourteen to nine members, retaining the traditional 
flat management structures within the Group. The pre­
vious six geographical regions have been reduced to four. 
The comprehensive management responsibility will en­
sure holistic management from production to the customer. 

In 2013, we expect the strong growth momentum in the 
emerging markets in Asia and Latin America to 
continue. By contrast, Europe will again be marked by 
uncertainties this year and present a challenge to 
our growth strategy. Thanks to our strong global position 
and the Sika growth model, we are forecasting a further 
increase in sales and profit for 2013. 

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General 
Meeting payment of a 13% higher gross dividend than in 
the previous year, namely, chf 51.00 per bearer share 
(previous year: chf 45.00) and chf 8.50 per registered 
share (previous year: chf 7.50). This proposal is an expres­
sion of Sika’s consistent dividend payout policy and 
follows our positive profit development. 

It will also be recommended to the Annual General 
Meeting to reelect current Board members Dr. Willi K. 
Leimer and Christoph Tobler. Dr. Thomas W. Bechtler 
is no longer standing for reelection. He has been a mem­
ber of the Board of Directors since 1989 and has accom­
panied and helped to shape the development of our 
Group. We would like to take this opportunity to thank 
him for his tireless and valuable commitment to Sika 
over many years. 

Our success in 2012 is due to the expertise and commit­
ment of our 15 233 employees. Together they have 
initiated some important steps over the past year to help 
make our Group even stronger for the future, and we 
would like to thank them all for their dedication 
and loyalty. 

Many thanks go to our customers, business partners and 
suppliers. We look forward to further fruitful cooperation 
in 2013. We also especially would like to thank our share­
holders for their loyalty. 

Sincerely, 

DR. PAUL HÄLG JAN JENISCH 
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer 
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Performance of SIka bearer ShareS In SWISS francS from JanuarY 1, 2012, to december 31, 2012 
Share price as of december 31, 2012: chf 2 110
�

2 200
�

2 100
�

2 000 

1 900
�

1 800
�

1 700
�

1 600
�

1 500
�

1.12 2.12 3.12 4.12 5.12 6.12 7.12 8.12 9.12 10.12 11.12 12.12 

SMI 

Sika 
Bearer Share 
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Stock PrIce develoPment 

Sika Share buoyed by emerging market SaleS combined with 
margin recovery. Despite the uncertainty on europe’s stock exchanges 
arising from the debt crisis, 2012 was a good year for the Swiss equity market. 
the Sika share benefited from the Group’s sales growth in the emerging 
markets as well as the margin recovery. In 2012, Sika was included in the Swiss 
leader Index (SlI), containing the 30 largest Swiss companies. 

Stock market develoPmentS In 2012 
economic uncertainties cast a shadow over markets 
worldwide, above all in 	europe. 	however, this had little 
impact on the performance of Sika’s stock. In 2012, Sika 
shares increased by 19.2%, from CHF 1 770 to CHF 2 110, 
showing a better performance than the Swiss	exchange’s 
SMI index, which itself gained around 14.9% year-on-year 
in 2012. In the year under review, Sika shares peaked at 
CHF 2 170 on December 19 and reached a low of CHF 1 704 
on June 5. 

on January 10, 2012, Sika published the sales figures for 
2011.	the Group achieved consolidated net sales of 
CHF 4.56 billion, which represents an increase of 15.5% 
in local currencies. All regions reported growth, most 
notably in the emerging markets of regions Asia/Pacific 
(+28.1%) and	latin America (+21%) as well as in	north 
America (+21.5%).	the earnings figures came out at the 
beginning of March. In the 2011 business year, consoli-
dated net profit decreased by 30.8% year-on-year to 
CHF 214.8 million, due in part to the currency effect, but 
primarily to significantly higher raw material prices. 

on April 17, the Group reported on business in the first 
quarter.	the year got off to a good start for Sika. 
Sales grew by 3.1% to CHF 1.05 billion. In	north America, 
Sika reported a sales increase of 18.6% in local 
currencies. 	latin America achieved the same level of 
growth. By contrast,	europe	north faced a slight 
fall-off in revenues owing to the cold weather.	on the 
same day, shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting approved all proposals of the Board of Directors. 
Paul	hälg, Daniel J. Sauter and Ulrich W. Suter were 
reelected for a further term of office of three years.	the 
Annual General Meeting also elected Frits van Dijk 
to the Board of Directors for the first time. 

Since mid-June the Sika share has been listed on the 
Swiss	leader Index (SLI), which contains the 30 largest 
and most liquid Swiss stocks. In the same month, the 
Group announced that it had successfully placed a 6-year 
CHF 150 million bond with a coupon of 1.0% p.a. and a 
10-year CHF 150 million bond with a coupon of 1.75% p.a. 
in the Swiss capital market. 

In the half-year report published in July, the company 
announced a 3.4% increase in sales to CHF 2.3 billion, 
driven by the markets of	north America (+13.9%) and 
latin America (+16.6%).	the gross margin widened from 
49.4% in the second half of 2011 to 53.1%. Mid-year the 
share price embarked on a strong recovery, which 
continued until the end of the year. 

In early September, Sika announced that it would be 
streamlining its organizational structure effective 
January 1, 2013.	there are to be four regions instead of 
six: EMEA (europe	north, 	europe South, Middle 	east 
and Africa), Asia/Pacific (now including India), 	north 
America and	latin America.	the traditional flat 
management structures will remain in place. 

the third quarter was encouraging. With sales up 6% 
to CHF 3.6 billion and 32.3% growth in net profit to 
CHF 223.9 million, Sika exceeded analysts’ expectations. 
the market rewarded this result with a rise in the 
share price. 
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Per Share data 
2008 2009 2010 2011 

bearer shares¹, ²: nominal value chf 0.60 

number of shares as of December 31 2 151 199 2 151 199 2 151 199 2 151 199 2 151 199 

of which entitled to dividend 2 089 691 2 095 572 2 115 291 2 122 071 2 136 702 

of which entitled to vote 2 089 691 2 095 572 2 115 291 2 122 071 2 136 702 

Gross dividend ChF 45.00 45.00 45.00 24.00 51.00³ 

Repayment of nominal value / net payout ChF – – 8.40 21.00 – 
of capital contribution reserves 

Stock quotations 

high ChF 2 082 1 658 2 145 2 250 2 153 

low ChF 788 685 1 482 1 528 1 719 

year-end ChF 900 1 615 2 051 1 770 2 110 

Stock price performance % -58.0 79.4 27.0 -13.7 

Average daily trading volume4 Shares 8 871 5 746 10 735 6 333 4 672 

registered shares5, 6: nominal value chf 0.10 

number of shares as of December 31 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 

of which entitled to dividend 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 

of which entitled to vote 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 2 333 874 

Gross dividend ChF 7.50 7.50 7.50 4.00 8.50³ 

Repayment of nominal value / net payout ChF – – 1.40 3.50 – 
of capital contribution reserves 

key data per bearer share7 

net profit per share (ePS)8 

basic 	ePS ChF 107.00 91.03 124.48 85.06 110.98 

ePS development % -22.0 -14.9 36.7 -31.7 

equity per share ChF 587 640 704 728 

Price-earnings ratio (P/e), year-end 8.4 17.7 16.5 20.8 19.0 

Dividend/repayment of nominal value yield % 5.0 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4³ 

other information 

Market capitalization9 ChF mn 2 286 4 102 5 210 4 496 5 360 

in % of equity % 156 258 297 246 

total dividend/repayment of nom. value ChF mn 111.5 111.8 134.2 113.3 128.8³ 

in % of net profit (payout ratio)7 % 42 50 43 53 

1 Registration no. 58797/Reuters: SIk., Bloomberg: SIk	 SX 
2 of which, in 2012, Sika owned 14 497 (29 128) bearer shares not 

entitled to dividend or voting rights 
3 Pursuant to proposal to Annual General Meeting 
4 Average daily volume traded on SIX Swiss	exchange 

(Source: SIX Swiss	exchange, Zurich) 

Sika Annual Report 2012 
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5 the registered shares of Sika AG were delisted from the SIX 
Swiss	exchange on September 4, 2003 

6 of which, in 2012, Sika AG owned no (0) registered shares 
7 excluding minority interests 
8 For	ePS calculation, see note 23 
9 the registered shares were delisted from the Swiss stock exchange in 

2003. In our calculation these are taken into account with 1⁄6 of the 
bearer share price of December 31, 2012 

6 

2012 

19.2 

30.5 

791 

269 

46 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

   
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	

      
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

    
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	

   
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	

 

    	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	

rISk management 

early identification of poSSible riSkS. As a global player, Sika is 
exposed to a variety of risks. ensuring the Group’s freedom of action at all 
times, safeguarding its good reputation, and protecting the capital 
invested in Sika necessitate a timely analysis of potential risks and their 
integration into strategic decision-making processes. this may also 
unlock new opportunities. 

rISkS and oPPortunItIeS 
Flawed risk assessments may seriously impair a 
company’s reputation, limit its freedom of action or, at 
worst, lead to insolvency. Well aware of this, Sika has 
a comprehensive risk management system in place, for 
the Group and all its subsidiaries. Dangers should be 
identified at an early stage and integrated into strategic 
decision-making processes. Risk management may 
sometimes assist in the identification of new opportuni-
ties and thereby help to generate added value.	the risk 
management process comprises four steps: risk 
identification, risk assessment, risk monitoring, and 
risk controlling. 

grouP management and board of dIrectorS 
Whereas Sika’s Group Management regularly reviews 
the processes underlying risk management, the Board 
of Directors bears ultimate responsibility for risk 
assessment. Its duties include annual reassessment of 
the risk situation at Group level.	here, the focus is 
on those strategic and operative risks that are capable 
of seriously endangering the Group as a whole. All 
risks are assessed in terms of a few basic questions: 
– Is the risk global or regional in scope? 
– how significant is the risk for the Group? 
– how high is the probability of losses occurring? 
–	 What measures need to be implemented to prevent 

the risk or mitigate its consequences? 

Suitable measures are then taken to counteract any risks 
that are rated critical in the overall assessment. 

SuPPlIerS and raW materIalS 
Materials, as Sika’s biggest cost factor, are high on the 
risk assessment agenda. Almost 70% of the materials 
used by Sika in production – e.g. polyurethanes, epoxy 
resins or polyvinyl chloride – are based on crude oil or 
crude oil derivatives (downstream products). Purchase 
prices consequently vary according to the respective 
supply and demand situation of each raw material and 
the volatility in the price of oil. 

Sika purchases its base chemicals following strict quality 
requirements from the supplier offering the best value 
for money. In the case of key raw materials with limited 
availability or large purchase volumes, Sika mandates at 
least two suppliers whenever possible.	the Group tries to 
manufacture the raw materials for unique, highly 
innovative technologies in-house. 

ProductIon and logIStIcS 
Sika sets defined standards for risk provisions that are 
binding for its production and logistics operations.	these 
form part of the Group-wide “Sika Corporate Policies 
and Management System” and determine, for example, 
the processes and guidelines in the areas of quality, 
environment, health and safety.	they are displayed to-
gether with the statutory regulations in the management 
system of each site. For this purpose, all Sika production 
companies are certified to DIN EN ISO 14001 (environ-
mental protection) and 9001 (quality), and many also to 
OHSAS 18001 (safety and health). For more information, 
see the current certification status for the various 
Group companies starting on page 132. 
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1.5%
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CuStOMEr DIvErSIfICatIOn: 

nO SIngLE CuStOMEr aCCOuntS fOr MOrE
�
tHan 1.5% Of SIka’S turnOvEr 

Internal inspections of production and logistics operations 
are conducted by the local companies on an annual basis. 
these include recording the risks that may result in 
production downtimes, personal injury, property damage 
or liability claims.	the probability and implications of 
the risks are assessed and measures subsequently de-
fined and implemented to minimize the risk potential at 
the site and enhance safety. Accompanied by the local 
management and their teams, Group specialists also 
carry out regular internal inspections of the Sika plants 
following the same procedure. 

Risk analyses performed by external specialists, fre-
quently in close collaboration with the relevant property 
insurance companies, complement the in-house assess-
ments. Sika is insured against production losses. 

the risks potentially posed by products are minimized 
through the implementation of binding procedures 
governing product development and refinement – known 
as the Product Creation Process and Product Maintenance 
Process. Both processes are subject to highly stringent 
controls. 	the issues addressed relate, on one hand, to 
ecology and safety in development, production and prod-
uct handling, and, on the other, to market opportunities 
and intellectual property protection. 

For more than ten years Sika has had a global program 
in place to minimize the risks in advisory and sales 
activities that could provide grounds for product com-
plaints.	thanks to a host of additional measures, 
including the regular and systematic training of employ-
ees, clearly formulated standards, detailed causal 
analyses, and stricter controls, expenditure for product-
related claims is steadily being reduced. 	to reduce 
the risk of customers using Sika’s products incorrectly, 
Sika focuses on providing targeted support to 
customers and on quality control. 

cuStomerS and marketS 
Sika has a policy of strategic diversification to limit 
market- and customer-related risks. Geographical diver-
sification is tremendously important in the locally based 
construction industry given the sometimes contrary 
business trends witnessed in this sector in the different 
regions of the world. Customer diversification – with no 
single customer accounting for more than 1.5% of Sika’s 
turnover – is another stabilizing factor. As a further 
safeguard against economic fluctuations, Sika operates 
both in the new-build sector and in the less cyclical 
renovation and maintenance market. 

fInancIal rISkS 
the purpose of financial risk management is to optimize 
funding and achieve a liquidity position geared to 
payment of obligations.	liquidity is ensured by means 
of five long-term bonds: CHF 250 million (2013), CHF 300 
million (2014), CHF 250 million (2016), CHF 150 million 
(2018), CHF 150 million (2022). 

liquidity is optimized by means of a cash-pooling 
arrangement. For selected activities in the treasury area, 
Sika relies on additional third-party services. Sika also 
manages its net working capital with the utmost 
prudence. For example, the local companies have precise-
ly defined processes for handling accounts receivable. 
A cost structure dovetailed to the prevailing market 
conditions ensures adequate cash generation. Sika 
attaches high priority to open and cost-efficient access 
to capital markets.	of significance here is the Standard & 
Poor’s rating A-/stable (long-term). 
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a —/stable
�

IS tHE StanDarD & POOr’S 
ratIng fOr SIka 

Internal audIt 
Internal Audit carries out inspections as set out in 
the annual audit plan, which records the main focus areas 
for the year in question.	the audits primarily include 
inspections of Group companies in the areas of product 
development, procurement, production, financial 
and operational reporting, sales, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable management, and It	management. 
In addition to the global audit of sales and production 
companies, regular in-depth audits are carried out 
in the area of headquarters functions or Group-wide 
support processes. 

Financial risk management is described in detail on page 
122 ff. of this report. 
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StRAteGY & FoCUS
 

• 
With its proven growth model, Sika stands a 
good chance of growing more strongly 
than the market. Particular sources of growth 
include the company’s increased market 
penetration, the extension of its global tech-
nological leadership role, accelerated 
expansion in the growth markets, and market 
consolidation through acquisitions. 
the aim is to achieve leadership in the 
defined target markets. As the past business 
year showed, strategy and focus pay long-
term rewards and have put Sika squarely on 
the path to success. 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

    
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

    
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

 

      	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

grouP StrategY 

a trademark for innovation, quality and Service. Sika constantly 
seeks to exploit growth potential in all its target markets in order to achieve 
market leadership and sustainable expansion. 

vISIon 
With its range of process materials for sealing, bonding, 
damping, reinforcing and protecting load-bearing 
structures, Sika strives for leadership in clearly defined 
target markets. 

Sika’s target markets are: 
– Concrete 
– Waterproofing 
– Roofing 
– Flooring 
– Sealing & Bonding 
– Refurbishment 
– Industry 
For a detailed description of the target markets, please 
see page 13. 

Sika provides its customers with innovative solutions 
that boost the efficiency, durability and aesthetic appeal 
of buildings, infrastructure facilities, installations and ve-
hicles, throughout production and use, and thereby makes 
a substantial contribution to sustainable development. 

market PotentIal and StrategY 
Despite being global market leader in the construction 
chemicals sector, Sika does not yet hold the number one 
position in all its target markets. Sika’s core target 
markets alone offer potential in the order of CHF 50 bil-
lion. Sika systematically leverages the growth potential 
in its target markets.	the company draws on its inno-
vative power, for instance, to meet the rising demand for 
energy-efficient and cost-effective solutions in both 
the construction and industrial manufacturing sectors. 
this has led to the development of new roofing systems 
that vastly improve the energy performance of buildings 
and state-of-the-art, low-weight, time-saving adhesives 
for vehicle production – to name just two examples. As 
globalization proceeds, the ability to deliver comprehen-
sive integral solutions for globally operating key accounts 
and large-scale projects is a decisive success factor. 

Particularly crucial for Sika are the emerging markets of 
latin America,	eastern	europe, the Middle	east and parts 
of Asia.	to capitalize on the momentum in these rapidly 
growing markets – where the potential for structural 
growth is far from exhausted – the company relies on 

cost-effective solutions for early market development. 
At the same time, investment in the training of both em-
ployees and customers paves the way for the introduction 
of new, more efficient technologies and improves market 
penetration. 

SuStaInable develoPment and valueS 
Sustainable development is for Sika not a goal that can 
be achieved immediately, but a continuous process of 
optimization, adaptation to customer needs and inno-
vation.	that is why Sika is constantly on the search for 
possible refinements, for ways of furthering the good 
of the company, its customers and the environment. At 
Sika, responsibility to shareholders, market players and 
the general public is fundamental to sustainable business 
activities. Sika acts in accordance with common values 
that form the basis for the company’s sustainable 
development. 

Sika pursues a double-pronged sustainability strategy: 
–	 it seeks to design products and services that meet the 

demand for efficient, sustainable solutions in the 
target markets; 

–	 it continuously refines its own operations in line with 
sustainable practice and backs this up by suitable 
investment in sustainability on the basis of economic 
principles. 

Sika technologies make an essential contribution to the 
sustainable development of our society. Sika admixtures 
help to achieve massive cuts in Co2 emissions in concrete 
and cement production. Sika roofing systems reduce 
energy consumption in buildings by up to 15%. Moreover, 
as the global leader in waterproofing, the company helps 
to optimize global water management. 

In automotive production, Sika adhesives have super-
seded traditional welding methods as a means of joining 
together different types of material.	the fundamental 
challenge facing the automotive industry is to build 
lighter vehicles while simultaneously meeting ever-higher 
safety and comfort standards. Sika’s lightweight 
materials and solutions for structural strengthening help 
to attenuate vibration, enhance design rigidity and 
improve collision behavior, while also reducing the car 
body weight. 
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buIldIng truSt – the SIka brand 

the Sika brand StandS for quality and conSiStency. Sika is a 
strong brand. It allows the Group to present a consistent identity in all target 
markets and with all products.
 

SIka aS a brand 
Branding lends products a distinct identity and associates 
them with a specific set of values.	this fact was recog-
nized early in Sika’s history by founder	kaspar Winkler, 
who coined the company’s name and designed its logo. 
the considerable standing acquired by the Sika brand 
over the years is a tribute to this farsightedness. 	having 
changed only slightly since its creation, the logo epito-
mizes continuity and solidity. It is recognized across 
the globe as synonymous with innovation, quality and 
service. 	the combined word/picture trademark has 
proved a valuable asset throughout the world during 
the Sika Group’s decades-long expansion. Both the word 
“Sika” and the logo, with its familiar red and yellow 
hues, are readily accepted across all cultural boundaries. 

WorldWIde trademark ProtectIon 
Given the high awareness of the Sika brand, particularly 
the graphic trademark, the company attaches high 
priority to a consistent and standardized use of the logo, 
and verifies compliance with the associated corporate 
image guidelines. Customers throughout the world can 
rest assured that they will receive Sika quality and service 
wherever they see the Sika logo.	the various attempts, 
in recent years, to copy the logo only serve to underline its 
enormous intangible value for the company. 

the umbrella brand Sika together with some 685 Sika 
product trademarks, such as Sikaflex®, Sika® ViscoCrete®, 
SikaBond® or SikaForce®, sharpen the company’s compet-
itive edge.	hence the crucial role of trademark protection 
as a management task, performed both globally, at Group 
level, and locally, at national level. In total, Sika held 9 477 
trademark registrations in 160 countries at the end of 
2012. Sika AG continuously monitors its trademarks and 
takes consistent legal action in cases of infringement. 

corPorate IdentItY 
the company regularly invests in measures aimed at 
strengthening the long-term position of the Sika brand. 
the end of 2012, for example, saw the conclusion of a 
corporate identity process launched two years ago. 	this 
process has delivered a sustainable, clear-cut positioning 
of the brand, an updated framework for Group-wide com-
munication plus uniform guidelines for a more expressive 
and contemporary corporate design. 	this Annual Report 
marks the rollout of the new-look corporate identity. 

the corporate identity process also involved a reformula-
tion of the Sika tagline.	the slogan for the anniversary 
year in 2010, “Innovation & Consistency since 1910”, has 
now been replaced by “Building	trust”. 

the word “building” expresses both Sika’s core business 
area and the activities of its customers, e.g. as bridge 
builders or automotive manufacturers.	the	english word 
also resonates with German speakers due to its phonetic 
and semantic affinities with the German word “bilden” 
(forming).	this, in turn, has connotations of shaping, 
designing, structuring and developing.	one single word 
thus unites all the core competencies of Sika and its 
customers. 

trust is the foundation of all types of partnership and 
collaboration. It is fostered by the quality of Sika’s work 
and is the result of the company’s innovative power and 
perseverance.	trust underpins Sika’s philosophy as well as 
all its promises and obligations vis-à-vis customers and 
partners. Yet, it is not a static state, but a continuous 
process that needs to be actively cultivated. Any brand – 
the Sika brand being no exception – exists and thrives on 
the trust placed in it by the company’s customers. 
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cuStomerS and marketS 

individual SolutionS for global requirementS. Sika’s growth 
strategy focuses on seven target markets, whose varying requirements are 
conscientiously met at global, regional and local level. 

cuStomerS 
the breakdown into seven target markets allows Sika to 
sharpen its customer focus, optimize its technical market 
support activities and concentrate its research and devel-
opment operations on key areas. 

target marketS 
As global market leader in the construction chemicals 
sector, Sika continuously leverages new growth potential 
in all its target markets through innovation, quality 
and service. It provides its customers with innovative 
solutions that boost the efficiency, durability and 
aesthetic appeal of buildings, infrastructure facilities, 
installations and vehicles throughout production 
and use. 	the fully integrated concepts offered by Sika 
address the entire life cycle of a facility, from initial 
construction up to the point in time when repair, refur-
bishment or extension become necessary.	the length-
ening of a facility’s service life, through appropriate main-
tenance and modernization, makes both economic and 
ecological sense. Sika’s seven target markets are: 

ConCRete 
Sika develops and markets numerous admixtures and ad-
ditives for use in concrete, cement and mortar production. 
these products enhance specific properties of the fresh 
or hardened material, such as workability, durability, or 
early and final strength.	the demand for admixtures and 
additives is currently on the rise, particularly due to the 
increased performance requirements placed on concrete, 
cement and mortar and the growing use of alternative 
cementitious materials in cement, mortar and concrete 
production. 

WAteRPRooFInG 
Sika's solutions cover the full range of technologies used 
for below-ground waterproofing: flexible membrane 
systems, liquid applied membranes, waterproofing con-
crete admixtures, joint sealings, waterproof mortars, 
injection grouts and coatings.	key market segments 
include basements, underground parkings, tunnels and all 
types of water-retaining structures (e.g. reservoirs, stor-
age basins, storage tanks). Watertight systems are faced 
with more stringent requirements regarding durability, 
easy application and total cost management. 	therefore 
product quality is becoming increasingly important. 

RooFInG 
Sika provides a full range of single-ply and built-up flat 
roofing systems incorporating both flexible sheet and 
liquid applied membranes. Demand in this segment is 
driven by the need for eco-friendly, energy-saving solutions 
such as green roof systems, light-reflective cool roofs 
and solar roofs, which simultaneously help to cut Co2 

emissions. While refurbishment projects continue to gain 
significance in the mature markets, the emerging mar-
kets are moving towards higher quality roof solutions. 

FlooRInG 
Sika’s solutions include all types of floor coatings needed 
for industrial and commercial buildings, such as pharma-
ceutical and food-industry facilities, production plants, 
educational establishments, parking decks and residential 
properties.	each market segment is subject to its own 
particular requirements in terms of mechanical wear, anti-
static performance, slip resistance, aesthetic impact, 
and chemical or fire resistance. Dominant trends in the 
flooring market include the growing importance of 
custom-developed technical solutions, the increase in 
building refurbishment contracts and stricter country-
specific environmental regulations. 

SeAlInG & BonDInG 
Sika’s wide-ranging portfolio includes top-class elastic 
sealing and bonding solutions to meet all job site needs, 
e.g. joint sealants for faÇades or resistant sealants for 
floor and special joints as well as multipurpose bonding 
solutions for interior finishings or parquet installation. 
the growing demand in this market is fueled by the sharper 
focus on energy-efficient building envelopes, the ever-
greater variety of materials used in construction, the 
increasing volume of high-rise projects and the growing 
significance of health, safety and environmental issues. 

ReFURBIShMent 
this segment features concrete protection and repair 
solutions, e.g. repair mortars, protective coatings, grouts 
and structural strengthening systems. Market trends 
are dictated by the rising quality requirements placed on 
products and services, with global customers expecting 
uniform standards worldwide. 	the present uptrend in de-
mand is attributable to a rising volume of infrastructure 
rehabilitation projects in the transport, water manage-
ment and energy sectors. 
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InDUStRY 
the	markets	served	by	Sika	include	automobile	construc-
tion,	the	commercial	vehicle	industry	(structural	bonding,	
direct	glazing,	acoustic	systems,	reinforcing	systems),	
automotive	aftermarket	(car	glass	replacement,	car	body	
repair),	renewable	energies	(solar	and	wind),	and	façade	
engineering	(structural	glazing,	sealing	of	insulating	glass	
units).	the	increasing	market	penetration	of	Sika	technol-
ogies	is	particularly	noticeable	in	the	commercial	vehicle	
manufacturing	and	automotive	aftermarket	sectors.	In	
the	car-making	industry	there	is	a	constantly	growing		
demand	for	products	that	enable	the	design	of	ligh-	
weight	vehicles.	Manufacturers	are	also	seeking	solutions	
that	save	time	and	costs. 

regIonS 
Sika	has	grown	continuously	since	its	foundation	in	1910.	
the	first	subsidiary	outside	europe	was	established	as	
early	as	1932	in	Japan.	the	Group	was	split	into	regions	at	
an	early	stage	so	as	to	allow	the	national	organizations	to	
capitalize	on	synergies	and	set	up	further	companies. 	the	
regions	are	headed	by	regional	managers	and	effectively	
shape	the	company’s	management	structure.	the	re-
gional	managers	are	members	of	Group	Management	and	
assume	line	responsibility	for	their	region.	the	regional	
management	structures	encompass	sales	functions,	pro-
duction	responsibility	as	well	as	the	marketing	and		
development	activities	geared	to	the	target	markets.	

the	start	of	2013	saw	Sika	reduce	the	number	of	its	
geographical	regions	from	six	to	four.	the	new	regional	
breakdown	is	based	on	unified	economic	areas	and		
supply	chain	structures.	the	new	region	EMEA	covers	the	
previous	regions	europe 	north	and	europe	South		
together	with	the	Middle	east	and	Africa.	With	the	for-
mer	region	IMEA	dissolved,	India	has	been	reallocated	to	
the	region	Asia/Pacific	due	to	its	close	association	with	
this	economic	area.	north	America	and	latin	America	are	
to	remain	independent	regions	on	account	of	their	differ-
ing	market	structures.	For	details	of	developments	in	the	
individual	regions	during	the	reporting	year,	see	pages	28	
and	127	ff.	
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WorldWIde market PreSence 

EurOPE nOrtH EurOPE SOutH nOrtH aMErICa LatIn aMErICa IMEa aSIa/PaCIfIC 
Sales in CHf mn Sales in CHf mn Sales in CHf mn Sales in CHf mn Sales in CHf mn Sales in CHf mn 
1 251  799 706 586 279 875 
Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees Employees 
4 907 2 218 1 437 2 170 1 281 3 220 

SIka SuBSIDIary 
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ProductS and InnovatIon 

inveStment in a SuStainable future. Products that have been on the 
market for a maximum of five years accounted for 30.1% of Sika sales in 2012. 
this success largely derives from the company’s strategic focus on the target 
markets, expert research and development management primarily geared to 
client projects, efficient development processes and a targeted response to 
the needs of the customers. 

InnovatIon and groWth 
Innovation is a key driver in the successful implementa-
tion of the company’s growth strategy. It makes a major 
contribution to the achievement of an average medium-
term growth in local currencies of 8% to 10%. Research 
and development (R & D) enjoy an accordingly high priority 
within the company. 	the R & D strategy adopted by Sika 
in recent years has yielded a high innovation rate, with 
numerous patents plus a host of new products. Products 
that have been on the market for only five years or less 
accounted for 30.1% of Sika sales in the reporting year 
(previous year: 32.7%). 

core comPetencIeS 
one key factor for the success of Sika’s R & D work is its 
strategic focus on clearly defined core competencies, 
namely sealing, bonding, damping, reinforcing and protect-
ing of load-bearing structures in building and industry. 

our sealing products are used to install durable wind-, 
rain- and draft-proof barriers in flat roofs, complex tunnel 
systems, damage-prone water-retaining structures and 
sophisticated curtain wall assemblies. Bonding ensures 
the permanent, elastic or structurally continuous connec-
tion of different materials. Innovative products and 
processes are used to bond vehicle components, window 
assemblies or even concrete bridge units weighing several 
tons. Damping reduces vibrations in fixed and moving 
objects, thereby lowering resonance and noise emission 
in load-bearing structures and in cavities within vehicles. 
our reinforcing Carbodur products are strategically in-
corporated in structures to improve their resistance to 
static and dynamic loads, while protective systems serve 
to increase their durability. Sika coatings guarantee 
long-term protection for concrete and steelwork assem-
blies against climatic conditions, chemical action, pollu-
tion and fire. 

focuS of develoPment In IndIvIdual target 
marketS 

ConCRete 
Activities in this segment are largely directed at develop-
ing admixture systems that permit a more extensive 
use of secondary raw materials in concrete, thereby re-
ducing its carbon footprint, and polymeric concrete 
plasticizers and shotcrete accelerators made from locally 
sourced raw materials. 

WAteRPRooFInG 
here, the focus is on improved product application and 
new waterproofing systems for installation before 
concreting. 

RooFInG 
Development work in this field centers on easy-to-install, 
self-adhesive roofing sheets and protective coatings 
designed to extend the service life of waterproofing 
membranes. 

FlooRInG 
Criteria that shape current trends in the flooring market 
include enhanced comfort and aesthetic appeal plus the 
ever-greater demands in terms of trouble-free application 
and environmental compatibility. 

SeAlInG & BonDInG 
new construction-sector regulations call for a more wide-
spread deployment of solvent-free, eco-efficient and 
user-friendly adhesives and sealants. Development activi-
ties for industrial applications target the reduction of 
waiting times during repair work and the lowering of tem-
peratures in vehicle manufacturing processes. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 
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73
�
PatEntS wErE fILED fOr In 2012 – 
In aDDItIOn 85 InvEntIOn DISCLOSurES 
wErE MaDE 

ReFURBIShMent 
Innovative filler technologies have ushered in the develop-
ment of high-performance mortar products with im-
proved workability and extended functional properties. 
Further novelties include products based on new fiber 
and binder concepts for the stiffening of structural build-
ing elements. 

InDUStRY 
the structural bonding of different material types, 
e.g. metal with plastics, and emissions cuts enjoy high 
research priority in this market. 

reSearch StrategY 
At Sika, research and development are dictated by two 
main factors. 	the first of these relates to global trends 
driven by the principles of sustainable development 
and enhanced customer utility, such as the demand for 
resource-saving building methods, energy-efficient 
construction materials or lighter and safer vehicles.	the 
second relates to the considerable adaptation of products 
necessary to meet local needs, which vary according to 
the particularities of the construction industry in different 
countries – e.g. with regard to raw materials, climate or 
legal framework. Accordingly, Sika’s research strategy has 
both centralized and strongly regional components. 

the centralized elements of the research strategy are 
devolved to the subsidiary Sika	technology AG, which is 
responsible for long-term research programs, analytical 
services and research management.	the long-term re-
search programs are geared to the technology roadmaps, 
which are governed by the key megatrends and asso-
ciated technology goals.	here, the identification of new 
products, for example, to increase safety or durability, 
shorten process times or generally enable customers to 
cut system costs, is only one aspect.	equally important is 
the refinement of existing products to enhance customer 
utility or their introduction in new fields of application. 

the regional components of Sika’s research strategy are 
entrusted to the ten technology centers in America, 
europe and Asia.	these sites assume specific technology 
responsibilities and develop new products and applica-
tions independently.	the technology centers also support 
the global market launch of their innovations. For this, 
they liaise closely with regional and local customer-oriented 
laboratories.	this allows the swift adjustment of new 
products to local requirements, e.g. the fine-tuning of con-
crete admixtures to climatic conditions or to locally 
sourced aggregates such as gravel or sand.	the Sika tech-
nology centers are also responsible for finding local 
raw materials so as to minimize production costs and 
maximize supply security. 

collaboratIonS 
In the field of basic research, Sika relies mainly on collabo-
rations with premier universities in Switzerland, the USA, 
Germany, France, China, India and other countries, with 
the focus being mainly on doctoral theses.	the combina-
tion of shared interests and geographic proximity often 
spawns prompt, unbureaucratic solutions that bring 
obvious benefits for the company. At the same time, Sika 
is at pains to counteract the prevailing shortage of engi-
neers and chemists in certain countries by attracting suit-
able candidates to the company. 

Sika is permanently engaged in a range of international 
projects such as the	nanoCem consortium.	this	european 
research network studies nanoscale-to-microscale phe-
nomena that influence the performance of cementitious 
materials and the products and structures in which they 
are used. Sika also collaborates with its key suppliers and 
customers to promote innovation as early as possible in 
the supply chain and pave the way for the use of tailored 
intermediate products. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 
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Product Creation Process 

SCIENCE PUSH MARKET PULL OBSOLESCENCE 

Technology Creation Process 

Equipment Creation Process 

Product Development Process 

Trading Product Process 

Product Maintenance Process 

Elimination Process 

R & D Corporate Operations Procurement Corporate Expert Teams 

Sika	technology AG participates in a range of projects 
funded by Switzerland and the european Union or its mem-
ber countries.	these projects range from basic research 
into sustainable chemistry to process and application de-
velopment. Sika is also active in the United	nations Sus-
tainable Buildings and Climate Initiative (SBCI), whose aim 
is to establish sustainable building practices worldwide. 

InnovatIon 
expenditures on research and development for the Group 
in the year under review totaled CHF 172.9 million (2011: 
CHF 167.5 million), roughly equivalent to 3.6% of sales 
(2011: 3.7%). Central expenditure totaled CHF 86.1 million 
(2011: 82.8 million).	the R & D budget was allocated in 
accordance with strategic priorities. 

the Sika Group’s Research & Development unit is aligned 
with the enterprise strategy and focuses on research 
into technology platforms and implementation procedures 
for high-priority R & D projects in the development de-
partments.	the seven-stage development process for 
products, the so-called Product Creation Process (PCP), 
is employed uniformly worldwide to ensure that new and 
patented products can be brought to market as quickly 
as possible. Yet, apart from short time to market, 
Sika also aims for high efficiency and strives to achieve 
cost leadership for its products in all target markets. 
In collaboration with the regions and target market rep-
resentatives, the R & D unit also continuously works 
to streamline the comprehensive product range in order 
to consolidate, simplify and lower the cost of marketing, 
production and distribution processes. 

the regional technology support functions are, among 
other things, responsible for compliance with the PCP in 
their area and perform regular PCP audits to review 
process quality.	the audits ensure that employees always 
apply an up-to-date state of knowledge so as to meet the 
high standards specified by Sika and that local chemists 
are kept abreast of the latest technologies. At the same 
time, special workshops are held to collect innovative 
ideas from the regions and leverage these for the Group. 

2012 saw Sika launch onto the market a number of new 
important products, which include the following: 
–	 State-of-the-art industrial flooring systems based 

on aqueous epoxy resins combining ultralow VOC 
emissions with extra-high color consistency 

–	 highly elastic MTC liquid polyurethane membrane to 
meet specific requirements of the Japanese market 

–	 new generation of SikaGrind® cement additives 
designed to reduce Co2 emissions of blended cements 
(based on limestone flour and pulverized-fuel ash) 

–	 ViscoCrete® concrete plasticizer based on locally 
sourced raw materials for major markets, especially 
in emerging countries 

–	 Unique SikaRep® multipurpose mortar, designed as 
single product to cater for a variety of applications 

– next generation of epoxy-based SikaDur® grouts 
–	 optimized technology for PVC waterproofing mem-

branes, particularly geared to the	european mass 
market 

–	 Go-ahead for a new waterproofing membrane which 
creates a durable bond to concrete in civil engineering 
applications and prevents any lateral water underflow 

Sika Annual Report 2012 
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Expenditure research as % of 
and development net sales 

in CHF mn in 
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–	 highly reflective roof membranes for cool and solar 
roof systems 

–	 two-component structural silicone adhesive with ex-
ceptionally high early strength for fixing solar modules; 
winner of 2012 CSP	technology and Supplier Award 

–	 Ultra-high-performance faÇade sealant based on i-Cure 
technology: exceptionally weather-resistant sealant 
combining high elasticity with excellent workability 
properties 

–	 OEM-approved car glass repair adhesive based on Sika 
PU hybrid technology with high elastic modulus 

–	 expanding adhesives particularly suitable for light-
weight assemblies to allow invisible jointing of even 
thinnest metal sheeting 

–	 SikaReinforcer®-960 which, when bonded to car bodies, 
adds a new dimension to crash resistance 

PatentS 
In 2012, Sika filed for 73 patents (2011: 70) and made 
85 invention disclosures (2011: 75). 
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SuStaInable develoPment 

reSponSibility for the future. Climate change, population growth, 
energy costs, raw materials and water shortages – these are some of 
the global megatrends and challenges that are set to change our society in the 
years and decades ahead. At the same time, these developments act as 
powerful drivers for new technologies and solutions. 

Sika pursues a double-pronged sustainability strategy: 
–	 it seeks to design products and services that meet 

the demand for efficient, sustainable solutions in the 
target markets; 

–	 it continuously refines its own operations in line with 
sustainable practice and backs this up by suitable 
investment in sustainability on the basis of economic 
principles. 

challengeS and megatrendS 
the commitment to sustainable development demanded 
by the global challenges and megatrends has precipitated 
changes in the economic environment. Buildings, infra-
structure facilities, installations and vehicles are now 
constructed and used differently from in the past. 	low-
energy houses and cars, for example, are increasingly 
becoming the norm.	the rising demand for sustainable 
products is changing both Sika’s target markets and the 
requirements placed on its products. Sika seeks to con-
tribute proactively to these change processes through 
innovation.	top priority is given here to sustainably 
developed and manufactured products that enhance 
durability and promote the efficient use of energy, water 
and materials. 

the following challenges are particularly relevant to Sika: 
– Climate change and regulation of the carbon economy 
– Population growth and urbanization 
– energy costs and repercussions for climate 
–	 Raw materials and water shortages as well as poor 

water quality 

For Sika, ecological efficiency means delivering equivalent 
or better solutions while consuming less material and 
energy.	this necessitates innovation in both materials 
and application techniques, backed up by suitable 
methods to assess the environmental impact of products 
and works. 	life-cycle assessment is one of the key tools 
applied in the product development process. Sika also 
supports national and international initiatives to estab-
lish sustainable construction (green building) certifi-
cation systems. Programs of this kind are important in 
that they allow the sustainability of products and 
systems to be quantified and compared. 

commItment 
With a corporate history spanning over 100 years, Sika 
is all the more committed to sustainable development 
as a guiding principle. In active pursuit of the associated 
economic, ecological and social aims, the company has 
for many years participated in the chemical industry’s 
Responsible Care sustainability program. It is also a cosig-
natory of the Un	Global Compact corporate responsibility 
initiative, the Carbon Disclosure Project and the World 
Business Council for Sustainable Development, and hon-
ors the associated objectives and obligations. 
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40
�
natIOnaL SuBSIDIarIES Of SIka HavE 
PartICIPatED In tHE rESPOnSIBLE CarE 
PrOgraM SInCE 1992 

SuStaInabIlItY In the value chaIn 
Sika’s mission statement specifies the following: “our 
aim is to address environmental and safety concerns 
throughout the value chain.”	one year ago, Sika launched 
a global program for safety and efficiency that was 
designed to increase the sustainability of its own activi-
ties.	this program focuses on the reduction of work 
accidents, on the efficient use of energy and water, and 
on materials use and waste avoidance at Sika sites. 
Sika targets a considerable reduction in the number of 
accidents in the coming years together with substantial 
cuts per manufactured unit in energy use, water 
consumption or waste production, as appropriate for 
the particular site. 

Subsidiaries in some 40 countries have participated in 
the chemical industry’s Responsible Care program since 
1992. As of the year under review, the majority of the 
manufacturing companies have certified environmental 
management systems, while 25 sites have achieved OH-
SAS:18001 (occupational health and safety) certification. 

Sika checks its production facilities for risks to staff and 
local residents, monitors damage and stoppages, and 
makes continuous efforts to improve safety. Internal au-
dits and controls guarantee compliance with the specified 
rules and procedures. 

one cornerstone of sustainable corporate management is 
the provision of basic and advanced training for employ-
ees. 	the wide-ranging courses deal with raw materials 
handling, occupational safety, statutory regulations as 
well as product packaging, labeling and transport. 

Product SuStaInabIlItY 
Sika sets out to undertake objective, transparent and 
comparative assessments of the sustainability of its 
products – not only in manufacture, but throughout their 
life cycle.	these analyses may pinpoint necessary 
improvements for existing products.	they may also 
deliver important insights into raw materials, production 
processes or application efficiency and thereby promote 
innovation and optimize the development of new 
products.	to this end, Sika carries out life-cycle assess-
ments (LCAs) during the product development process. 
these serve to quantify energy and raw materials 
consumption during each phase of a product’s life cycle 
and measure the associated impacts on air, water 
and soil. 
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acquISItIonS and InveStmentS 

Supporting growth in the target marketS. Acquisitions are an important 
element of Sika’s growth strategy, enabling the company to enhance its core 
business with related technologies or improve access to certain markets. through 
capacity expansion fine-tuned to market demands and investment in plant 
efficiency, the Group ensures the consolidation of its global growth potential. 

acquISItIon StrategY 
organic growth, i.e. growth driven by entrepreneurial 
endeavor, is at the core of Sika’s corporate strategy. 	this 
organic growth is compounded by carefully targeted ex-
ternal growth which offers a useful way of closing exist-
ing gaps in access to the target markets and consolidating 
fragmented markets. Particularly in	north America, Asia 
and parts of	latin America, Sika pursues this policy as a 
means of steadily improving its market position. At the 
same time, however, the company seeks to strengthen or 
extend its core business through the selective acquisition 
of related technologies. Sika mainly finds these technolo-
gies in small and medium-sized enterprises in	europe, the 
USA and some Asian countries.	the fact that such busi-
nesses are usually unable to market their systems world-
wide sooner or later proves an insurmountable barrier to 
growth. By acquiring such companies, the Sika Group, as a 
global player, is able to leverage their full potential. 

Sika’s acquisition strategy typically involves the takeover 
of small and medium-sized companies. When evaluating 
a takeover offer, Sika relies on the expertise and experi-
ence already gained, as well as clearly defined processes. 
Given that, in most cases, acquired companies are fully 
incorporated in the Group, Sika is at pains to ensure that 
this integration runs smoothly. Sika therefore pays 
particular attention to the corporate culture of all take-
over candidates prior to any acquisition. 

the regions generally assume responsibility for the par-
ticular acquisition procedures.	the process is supervised 
and coordinated at Group level. 

acquISItIonS 2012 
In February 2012, Sika acquired 100% of Yean-Il Industrial 
Co.	ltd., the South	korean market leader in tunnel water-
proofing, through its	korean subsidiary Sika 	korea 	ltd. 
the company boasts a strong brand and many years of 
experience in project business.	the acquisition of Yean-Il 
has strengthened Sika’s market position in the	korean 
infrastructure sector and means it can now offer a large 
selection of customized combined solutions and technolo-
gies for the local market. 

At the end of	october, Sika took over the fire protection 
coatings and systems business of Mannheim-based 
Rütgers	organics Gmbh, with a portfolio of well-estab-
lished, progressive and environmentally friendly water-
based fire protection coatings and systems. 

the company completed its reorganization in the Middle 
east by the end of the year, in which its stake in associ-
ated company Sika Saudi Arabia Co.	ltd, Saudi Arabia, 
was increased to 51% and consolidated for the first time 
as of December 31, 2012. 

Shortly before the end of the year, Sika announced the 
acquisition of Inatec SRL, Paraguay.	the company, based 
in Asunción, is the national market leader and is strongly 
positioned in the areas of building renovation, structural 
waterproofing and concrete admixtures. 	having its own 
company there will enable Sika to share in the strong 
growth in Paraguay’s construction sector. Inatec’s sales 
network will also provide Sika with the opportunity to 
supply this market with its full product range.	this acqui-
sition rounds out Sika’s strong position in 	latin America 
and continues its successful strategy of investing in 
emerging markets.	the acquisition and completion of the 
transaction took place in January 2013. 
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 Investments 2012 

Capacity expansion 56% 

Replacement 24% 

16% Efficiency measures 

Quality/Environment 4% 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 

InveStmentS 2012 
Sika’s unchanged investment strategy is geared to con-
solidating its global presence, built up during the last 
few years, and unlocking new markets or expanding its 
activities to this end.	to encourage focused growth, 
selected markets, customers, technologies and products 
are prioritized. Investment rose significantly year on 
year, especially in the growth markets of Asia and	latin 
America. Sika’s decentralized market development policy 
encourages local investment in production and logistics 
capacities, and brings the company closer to its 
customers. 

Investments in the year under review increased from 
CHF 117.1 million to CHF 131.3 million, equivalent to 2.7% of 
net sales. A key focus of investment was the expansion of 
production capacity in the emerging markets.	the share 
of investment devoted to capacity expansion rose from 
48% to 56%.	the breakdown of the remaining investment 
is as follows: 16% (2011: 16%) was used for rationalization, 
24% (2011: 30%) was needed to replace existing facilities 
and 4% (2011: 6%) was spent on environmental protec-
tion, health and safety as well as quality control. 

Sika will continue to invest in those regions where the 
Group can tap into new markets and generate growth. 
these include	latin America, 	eastern 	europe, China, India, 
the Middle	east and Africa. 
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• 
Greater sales, greater profit. total sales up 
6% to ChF 4 829 million. net profit 
up 31% at ChF 281 million. the proportion 
of sales generated in the emerging 
markets rose by 1 percentage point to 37%. 
With 17% growth in local currencies in 
latin America, 9% in north America, 7% 
in Asia/Pacific and 8% in IMeA, 2012 
proved a successful year, despite the crisis 
that continued to dog europe north (-4%) 
and europe South (+1%). Sika’s “other 
segments and activities” business surged 
by 26%, primarily due to strong growth 
in the automotive market. 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

  

  
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	

   
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		

   

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

    	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

grouP rePort targetS 

Sika StandS by medium-term targetS. Sika has defined medium-term 
financial targets that are tailored to the Group’s strategy of growth. 
these targets include net sales growth, profit, cash flow and return on capital 
employed (RoCe). 

fInancIal targetS 
With its growth strategy, Sika seeks to gain further 
market share in its key sales markets, with the longer-
term goal of becoming the market leader in all 
regions and target markets. Sika’s financial targets are 
based on the company’s growth strategy and factor 
in development costs in the emerging countries.	to be 
able to finance growth requires a sound operating cash 
flow to sales ratio. Growth is expected to produce a 
higher operating profit in absolute figures.	the growth 
targets represent medium-term objectives in sync 
with Sika’s potential and include smaller acquisitions. 
Short-term economic developments in individual regions 
may lead to temporary deviations without needing to 
redefine targets.	the Board of Directors regularly reviews 
the Sika Group’s strategy and targets, and adjusts 
these as appropriate. 

medIum-term targetS 

oPeratIve Performance fIgureS 
While Sika’s national companies conduct daily assess-
ments of key performance figures, the Group works with 
monthly appraisals based on operating profit per region. 
Modern calculation tools facilitate the evaluation of 
cost and price trends as well as measures at product and 
customer level. Moreover, customer relationship 
management (CRM) systems facilitate the definition of 
customer-specific targets, the appraisal of customer-
specific performance, and the implementation of debtor 
analyses. Active working capital management helps 
to reduce costs and improve performance. ERP system 
enhancements are optimizing the performance 
fundamentals. 

reSultS 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

net sales growth in local currencies in % 8–10 7.3 - 3.9 6.3 15.5 5.3 

operating profit before depreciation as % of net sales 12–14 12.0 13.0 13.1 10.5 11.8 

net profit as % of net sales >6 5.8 6.5 7.0 4.7 5.8 

operating free cash flow as % of net sales 4–6 3.6 8.9 7.5 4.1 6.3 

RoCe* in % 20–25 20.3 19.3 21.3 15.6 18.3 

* Return on capital employed, see also page 139 
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grouP rePort grouP 

riSe in SaleS and net profit. In the 2012 business year, Sika lifted sales 
by 5.8% to ChF 4 829 million. Sika’s global presence enabled it to offset weak 
demand from europe. 10.7% growth was achieved in the emerging markets. 
the gross result widened from 50.5 to 52.2%. net profit increased by an 
above-average 30.9% to ChF 281 million. 

double-dIgIt groWth In emergIng marketS 
Sika increased sales by 5.8% to CHF 4 829 million in 2012. 
In local currencies, sales grew 5.3%.	this figure includes 
an acquisition effect of 3.5%.	exchange rate movements 
had a positive impact of 0.5%. 

At 17.0% in local currencies, the highest growth was 
generated in the region	latin America. 	this was driven 
by continual investments and the expansion of produc-
tion capacity in the entire region. In	north America, Sika 
posted a 9.0% increase in sales in local currencies thanks 
to heavy demand for renovation work. Sika reported 
growth of 6.8% in local currencies in the region Asia/ 
Pacific, benefiting from a substantial expansion in sales 
in Southeast Asia, stable order books in Japan and a 
marked recovery in China in the second half.	the region 
IMEA (India, Middle 	east, Africa) recorded a 7.7% in-
crease in sales in local currencies. 

the debt problem and the euro crisis had negative 
repercussions in 	europe, causing a decline in volumes in 
most	european markets. In the region 	europe	north, 
sales were down 3.9% in local currencies. 	the region 
europe South grew by 1.0% – however, factoring out 
acquisitions, sales were 7.0% lower. 

“other segments and activities” generated strong growth 
of 25.5%, which includes sales in the automotive seg-
ment. Sika’s growth was driven primarily by the use of 
new technologies and its strong presence in the premium 
automotive segment, which is enjoying high growth rates 
in	north America,	latin America and Asia. 11.5% of the 
increase is attributable to acquisition effects. 

the expansion strategy being implemented in the emerg-
ing markets translated into further growth of 10.7%.	the 
proportion of sales generated by Sika in the emerging 
markets is 37% (previous year: 36%). 

Sika increased sales of products for the building and 
construction industry by 4.2% in local currencies, with an 
acquisition effect of 3.4%. Sales of products for industrial 
manufacturing were up 9.5% in local currencies, including 
an acquisition effect of 3.5%. 

acquISItIonS 
In 2012, Sika took over three firms.	the acquisition of 
the	korean company Yean-Il Industrial Co. 	ltd. reinforced 
Sika’s market position in	korea’s tunnel waterproofing 
market, and the takeover of the fire protection coatings 
and systems business of Rütgers	organics Gmbh	 
provided Sika with a portfolio of well-established water-
based fire protection coatings. In December, Sika an-
nounced that it would be acquiring Inatec SRL, the market 
leader in construction chemicals in Paraguay. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

• PeRFoRMAnCe 26 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

    
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

  

        
 

30.9%
�

rISE In nEt PrOfIt waS POStED In tHE
�
rEPOrtIng yEar 

ProfIt develoPment 
on the back of a package of measures taken by Sika in 
2012, the gross result was widened to 52.2% (previous 
year: 50.5%). Sika was able to pass on to sales prices 
the sizable rise in raw material costs seen in 2011, launch 
new, innovative products, and improve supply chains. 
Accordingly, operating profit expanded by 23.5% to 
CHF 428.8 million (previous year: CHF 347.1 million).	the 
EBIT margin was 8.9% (previous year: 7.6%). Sika in-
creased its net profit by 30.9% to CHF 281.1 million 
(previous year: CHF 214.8 million). 

InveStmentS, lIquIdItY and balance Sheet 
Sika’s investment strategy is geared to further con-
solidating its presence in the emerging markets. In 2012, 
Sika invested in the expansion of capacity in Brazil, 
Chile, China, Colombia, Mexico, Mongolia, Peru, Russia 
and Vietnam. 	to underpin growth in the year under 
review, Sika increased the investment volume to 
CHF 131.3 million (previous year: CHF 117.1 million). 

net working capital as a percentage of net sales improved 
to 18.7% (previous year: 19.8%), due largely to headway 
made in warehouse and debtor management. In the year 
under review, operating free cash flow amounted to 
CHF 302.5 million (previous year: CHF 186.1 million), year-
end cash and cash equivalents were higher at CHF 994.2 
million (previous year: CHF 536.0 million) and net 
debt was reduced to CHF 155.5 million (previous year: 
CHF 338.7 million). 

In June of the report period, Sika successfully placed bonds 
totaling CHF 300 million in the market (CHF 150 million 
with a term of 6 years and a coupon of 1.0% p.a. plus 
CHF 150 million with a term of 10 years and a coupon of 
1.75% p.a.).	the equity ratio now stands at 47.1% (previous 
year: 48.0%). 
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grouP rePort regIonS 

Sika experienced divergent trendS acroSS the variouS regionS. 
the best performer in terms of growth rates was the region latin America, 
followed by the regions north America, IMeA and Asia/Pacific. negative 
trends, on the other hand, were observed in the regions europe north and 
europe South. 	the “other segments and activities” business expanded strongly. 

euroPe north 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 1 250.9 million in the region 
europe 	north (previous year: CHF 1 327.4 million). 
Measured in local currencies, this is equivalent to a drop 
of -3.9% (currency effect: -1.9%, acquisition effect: 0.0%). 

the	european economies were dogged by the sovereign 
debt and euro crisis, which triggered a downturn in 
market volumes in most of the continent’s nations. 	the 
third quarter of 2012 saw the euro zone as a whole slide 
into recession. Germany, as the region’s powerhouse, just 
about managed to maintain its economic momentum. 

the German construction industry primarily benefited 
from low mortgage rates coupled with an upsurge in real 
estate investment. In Switzerland too, the building 
sector delivered a robust performance in 2012. By contrast, 
business was weak in Central	europe, with countries 
such as the Czech Republic and	hungary suffering from 
a lack of foreign investment. In Poland, the 2012 european 
Football Championship had a positive impact on construc-
tion activity. 

In the region	europe 	north, Sika was generally able to 
implement the increases in construction sector sale 
prices needed to offset the previous year’s surge in raw 
materials costs. Aside from this, new and innovative 
products, together with efficiency gains in value chain 
processes, also helped to improve margins. In Switzer-
land, late 2011 marked completion of the large-scale 
concreting and waterproofing works for the Gotthard 
base tunnel.	the absence of revenue from this long-term 
contract negatively impacted the national subsidiary’s 
results for 2012. Adjusted for the end of this major contract, 
Sika Switzerland slightly outperformed the market. Sika 
recorded positive trends in Russia, Romania and	norway, 
with the latter reporting double-digit growth figures. 

In the industry segment, 2012 sales remained largely flat 
at the previous year’s level: while figures for the transport 
industry sank, Sika managed to expand its business in the 
wind-power sector. 

Sika’s investment for 2012 in the region	europe	north 
was fixed at 0.7% of net sales. Sika Germany invested in 
a new training center at Stuttgart. 
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euroPe South 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 799.3 million in the region 
europe South (previous year: CHF 802.9 million). 
Measured in local currencies, this is equivalent to a rise 
of 1.0% (currency effect: -1.4%, acquisition effect: 8.0%). 

the considerable economic uncertainty and lack of liquid-
ity among potential buyers prevented any recovery in 
the majority of markets in the region europe South in 2012. 
the unusually cold spell in many countries at the start 
of the year compounded the downturn in construction 
activity. In the southernmost countries of the region, the 
development slump continued unbroken throughout the 
year. Already stricken markets, such as Spain, Portugal 
and Greece, shrank still further. Yet even sales territories 
which had proved resilient in the previous year, such as 
Great Britain and France, started to flag in 2012. Cement 
consumption fell by around 30% in Spain and Portugal, 
by over 20% in Italy, by 8% in Great Britain and by 5% in 
France. Morocco and Algeria were the only economies to 
bounce back, thanks to a number of major infrastructure 
schemes. 

Sika’s sales in Spain, Portugal and Greece plunged by 
around 20%, mainly due to a lack of infrastructure proj-
ects. Many customers were hit by liquidity problems 
and the number of insolvencies rose in all of the region’s 
countries.	the mood of gloom prompted various compet-
itors to abandon the markets, especially in the southern-
most countries. 	this allowed Sika, as a strong player, to 
gain market share in some sectors. 

In	north Africa, Bulgaria and Serbia, the company re-
ported double-digit growth.	the new markets in Angola, 
Montenegro,	kosovo and Albania also enjoyed positive 
trends. 

In Great Britain and France, Sika managed to maintain 
sales in the concrete business at the previous year’s level, 
despite the slightly worsening markets.	the sharpest 
drop in sales across the region	europe South in 2012 was 
suffered by the roofing and waterproofing segments. 
the refurbishment market was less severely affected. 

While Sika posted an increase in sales to industry cus-
tomers in Great Britain and France, the weak demand for 
marine and automotive aftermarket products weighed on 
the company’s performance in Italy. 

In most of the southern countries, Sika was able to adjust 
its costs in line with the drop in sales volumes. At the 
same time, the company expanded its sales organizations 
in Angola, Serbia,	north Africa and Great Britain. 	to bol-
ster its market position, Sika invested in a new mortar 
factory in France. In Great Britain, a building permit was 
obtained for a new laboratory at Preston. 

the acquisition of Axim enabled Sika to push up its ad-
mixture sales in Italy, France, Spain and Morocco. 	the 
technokolla takeover secured ready access to the key 
Italian distribution market. Moreover, the acquisition of 
Copsa allowed Sika to make further headway in Spain’s 
refurbishment market. 
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north amerIca 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 705.7 million in the region 
north America (previous year: CHF 617.4 million). 
Measured in local currencies, this is equivalent to a rise 
of 9.0% (currency effect: 5.3%, acquisition effect: 5.6%). 

In 2012, as in previous years, US market trends were 
largely dictated by exceptionally low inflation, low inter-
est rates, modest growth, a massive budget deficit, rising 
national debt and high unemployment. 	on the positive 
side, 2012 brought an improvement in credit conditions 
and the real estate market slowly recovered in the course 
of the year. 

this gave a welcome boost to the US construction indus-
try, which also benefited from favorable weather con-
ditions in the first quarter and the pent-up demand from 
the previous two years. In the second half year, the US 
presidential elections and political debate on the national 
budget generated a mood of uncertainty in the markets 
which dampened both public- and private-sector build-
ing activity.	the refurbishment segment maintained its 
resilience throughout the year while the industry product 
markets recovered. Demand in the roofing market, on the 
other hand, declined slightly. 

having squeezed Sika’s margins in	north America in 2011, 
the high raw materials prices stabilized during the report-
ing year.	this, together with the successful price manage-
ment in the market, made a major contribution to the 
improvement in Sika	north America’s earnings situation. 

overall, Sika managed to achieve a substantial increase in 
sales in the region north America, with the highest growth 
rates posted in the waterproofing, sealing & bonding and 
refurbishment segments. 

Sika USA successfully integrated Axim Concrete	tech-
nologies. Duochem and Axim Canada were incorporated 
into Sika Canada. Initial synergies have already been ex-
ploited.	through its takeovers and restructuring, Sika 
Canada has won market leadership in the flooring market 
and moved up from fifth to second spot in the concrete 
segment. 

latIn amerIca 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 586.3 million in the region 
latin America (previous year: CHF 507.3 million). Mea-
sured in local currencies, this is equivalent to a rise of 17.0% 
(currency effect: -1.4%, acquisition effect: 0.0%). 

At 3.2%, economic growth in	latin America was slightly 
down on the previous year’s rate of 4.5%.	this expansion 
was mainly driven by strong private consumption. Many 
countries in the region also benefited from rising invest-
ment, particularly in the real estate sector. 

the economic uptrend in	latin America was most pro-
nounced in Peru and Chile, with Colombia and Mexico also 
posting respectable growth rates of 4%.	the 1% growth 
rate in Brazil, however, fell far short of the previous year’s 
figure. Yet, despite Brazil’s modest performance, nu-
merous foreign competitors crowded into the con-
struction materials market by acquiring some of the 
country’s larger and medium-sized companies. 
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 Net sales
 
IMEA
 

Some	latin American countries were badly hit by the de-
preciation of local currencies and high inflation rates 
(28% in Argentina, 20% in Venezuela and 8% in Uruguay). 
the political situation in Argentina and Venezuela re-
mained problematic, with business operations hampered 
by economic restrictions. 

Favorable construction sector trends helped Sika to 
achieve a further appreciable increase in its total	latin 
American sales. Sika Brazil succeeded in defying the 
country’s sluggish economic environment by posting an 
outstanding 16% growth. Sika Mexico and Sika Colombia 
likewise reported a steep rise in sales figures.	of the 
medium-sized national subsidiaries, those in Peru, 
Panama and Uruguay boasted above-par performance. 

the sales increase recorded by Sika in the industry 
business failed to match the rates achieved in the con-
struction sector. 	this was due to the low growth in 
the automotive aftermarket and transport business in 
Brazil. 

the reporting year saw Sika press ahead with the ex-
pansion strategy launched in 2011. After completion of 
a factory at Recife, Brazil, at the start of 2012, work 
commenced on a new plant at Barranquilla, Colombia, 
in the second half year. Sika expanded its production 
capacity in Peru, Uruguay, 	ecuador and Guatemala. 
At the end of the year, Sika announced the acquisition 
of Inatec SRL, the market leader in construction 
chemicals in Paraguay. 	the acquisition and completion 
of the transaction took place in January 2013. 
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Imea 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 278.5 million in the region 
India, Middle east, Africa (previous year: CHF 263.9 million). 
Measured in local currencies, this is equivalent to a rise of 
7.7% (currency effect: -2.2%, acquisition effect: 4.4%). 

the fallout from the Arab Spring dampened economic 
growth in several of the region’s countries.	egypt, 
for instance, was hit by a lack of foreign investment and 
a scarcity of credit in all sectors of the economy.	the 
war in	libya heralded the collapse of a lucrative export 
market for the Middle	east.	the entire region also 
suffered from the civil war in Syria which, for Sika, par-
ticularly impaired business in	lebanon.	on the other 
hand, business developed well in states such as Saudi 
Arabia, Qatar and	oman. 

At over 5%, the year-on-year sales increase achieved by 
Sika in the construction sector still fell somewhat short of 
original expectations. 

In the industry segment, Sika reported sales growth of 
some 10% in its aftermarket, transport and marine 
business in 2012. the decline suffered by Sika in the faÇade 
systems market was above all due to the slowdown in 
construction activity in the Middle 	east. 

Sika’s investments in 2012 focused on countries offering 
high market potential, specifically India and	turkey.	new 
national subsidiaries were opened in Iraq, Qatar and 
oman. Despite lower demand, Sika maintained the exist-
ing personnel levels in	egypt, Bahrain and	lebanon so 
as to be well-equipped to gain market share during the 
anticipated economic upturn. 
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 Net sales 
Asia/Pacific 
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aSIa/PacIfIc 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 874.7 million in the region 
Asia/Pacific (previous year: CHF 776.7 million). Measured 
in local currencies, this is equivalent to a rise of 6.8% 
(currency effect: 5.8%, acquisition effect: 2.0%). 

economic growth in China weakened considerably in the 
first half of 2012 in the wake of government interven-
tions.	though aimed at cooling the real estate sector and 
other overheated markets, these measures also triggered 
a slowdown in infrastructure schemes.	not until the 
second half year did the resumption of work on major 
projects smooth the path for a significant recovery. 
Southeast Asia recorded substantial economic growth on 
the back of strong domestic demand while business 
trends in the OECD countries (Japan, South	korea, Austra-
lia and	new Zealand) remained steady.	the Japanese 
economy was stimulated by the large-scale reconstruc-
tion work needed in the aftermath of the recent 
natural catastrophes. Due to the declining investment 
in mining caused by dwindling commodity prices, the 
Australian markets faced a slight downturn in the second 
half of 2012. 

In the region Asia/Pacific, Sika particularly benefited 
from a substantial expansion in sales in Southeast Asia, 
stable order books in Japan and a marked recovery in 
China in the second half year. In China, Sika recorded growth 
in most of its target markets throughout the year.	only 
in the concrete segment, which is heavily reliant on infra-
structure projects, did Sika suffer a sharp drop in sales 
in the first half year.	the other national subsidiaries 
in the region also achieved strong organic growth, with 
some remarkable gains in market share. Sika Japan 
continued to expand its local business in the waterproof-
ing segment. Sika South	korea managed to lift sales 
considerably after landing a number of infrastructure 
project contracts. In Indonesia,	thailand, Malaysia, 
the Philippines as well as Vietnam – which had recovered 
from the previous year’s crisis – Sika capitalized on the 
available market opportunities for sales growth and 
geographical expansion.	thanks to new customers and 
new contracts, Sika Australia was able to report a double-
digit sales increase. 

In 2012, Sika set up new production facilities in Japan, 
China, Indonesia, Australia and Vietnam.	this allowed the 
company to broaden its range of locally manufactured 
products while simultaneously minimizing exchange rate 
risks. With the establishment of its new national subsid-
iary in Mongolia in	october 2012, Sika intends to tap into 
a further local market. 

other SegmentS and actIvItIeS 
Sika recorded net sales of CHF 333.5 million in the 
“other segments and activities” field (previous year: 
CHF 268.1 million). Measured in local currencies, this is 
equivalent to a rise of 25.5% (currency effect: -1.1%, 
acquisition effect: 11.5%). 

the automotive business, which has been managed 
centrally on a global basis since 2011, forms a key part 
of the “other segments and activities” field. 

the global sales figures for the automotive market in 2012 
reflected the economic performance in the individual 
regions. While the 	european automotive industry 
contracted, Asia and	north America recorded double-digit 
growth. 2012 was also a watershed year, with car produc-
tion in China for the first time exceeding that in	europe 
(18.3 million against 17.9 million). 

the 14.0% organic growth achieved by Sika far exceeded 
the market average.	here, Sika profited from both its 
strong foothold in the premium car segment and its 
global presence.	the previous year’s acquisitions – Biro in 
Switzerland and Colauto in Brazil – were successfully 
integrated and contributed to an additional growth of 
11.5%. to accommodate the increase in sales and the rising 
number of customers, Sika expanded its production ca-
pacity at Grandview, USA. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

• PeRFoRMAnCe 32 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

  

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

         
 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

grouP rePort outlook 

Sika iS confident of continued expanSion in the 2013 financial 
year. thanks to its global position and specific growth model, the Group 
is forecasting a further increase in sales and profit for 2013. 

In 2013, Sika expects the strong growth momentum in the 
emerging markets in Asia and	latin America to continue. 
By contrast,	europe will again be marked by uncertainties 
this year and present a challenge to the Group’s growth 
strategy.	thanks to its excellent global position and its 
own specific growth model, however, Sika is forecasting a 
further increase in sales and profit for 2013. 

With its proven growth model, Sika stands a good chance 
of growing more strongly than the market. Particular 
sources of growth include the company’s increased mar-
ket penetration, the extension of its global technological 
leadership role, accelerated expansion in the growth 
markets, and market consolidation through acquisitions. 

Sika will continue to pursue its acquisition strategy in 
2013 by focusing on expanding market access and 
acquiring technologies that it lacks and which can be 
globally marketed through its network. 

Sika is confirming its medium-term targets for 2013 and 
endeavoring to achieve the announced bandwith. EBITDA 
is expected to reach 12% and net profit should exceed the 
6% mark.	only the sales growth target of 8 to 10% is un-
likely to be achieved, given the continuing uncertain situ-
ation in 	europa. Sika is now expecting growth of 4 to 6%. 
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SuStaInabIlItY rePort and SocIal reSPonSIbIlItY 

reSponSibility for the future. Global megatrends, such as energy and 
raw materials shortages, urbanization and population growth, are confronting 
companies and communities with major economic, social and ecological 
challenges. At the same time, these developments act as powerful drivers for 
the technologies and solutions of tomorrow. As a technology-based company 
and market leader, Sika regards this as an opportunity. 

Sika addresses environmental and safety concerns 
throughout the value chain and adopts the widely used 
GRI (Global Reporting Initiative) system in the report. 
In meeting its social responsibility, Sika honors the prin-
ciples of the Un	Global Compact. 

to promote sustainability, transparent data and informa-
tion are needed on products and works along the entire 
value chain. 

to collect the necessary data and information, Sika in 
2012 continued with the following activities from the 
previous year: 
–	 expansion of product sustainability databases in line 

with international life-cycle assessment (LCA) practice 
to standards of the ISO 14040 series. 

–	 Measurement and improvement of sustainability in 
Sika’s own value chain through global safety and 
efficiency program for energy and raw materials. 

–	 Introduction of new systems for product classification 
and marking to provide users with more detailed 
product information and honor our responsibility to 
ensure safe product use. 

the following facts and figures relate to Sika’s global 
business operations in 2012, excluding those sites ac-
quired during the last three years. Most new acquisitions 
initially undergo a program to boost their sustainability 
performance.	the extent of operations covered by the 
report for the year under review was equivalent to 98% 
of total sales (previous year: 97%). 	the sustainability 
indicators are consistent with the widely used GRI (Global 
Reporting Initiative) system. 

envIronment, SafetY and health 
InVeStMent In SAFetY AnD enVIRonMentAl 
PRoteCtIon 
In the reporting year, Sika invested some CHF 5.7 million 
in technical equipment for environmental protection 
(previous year: CHF 6.5 million). Stepped-up efforts over 
the past few years, above all the increased use of state-
of-the-art equipment, have borne fruit and enabled Sika 
to reduce replacement investments. Current expenditure 
stood at CHF 20.5 million (previous year: CHF 21.9 million). 
Worldwide, the number of full-time employees in the 
field of environment, health, safety and sustainability 
exceeded 100. 

health and safety: At 12.9 per 1 000 employees (previous 
year: 13.3 per 1 000 employees), the number of occupa-
tional accidents in the reporting year with over one day’s 
lost working time was slightly down year on year. Due 
to shorter absences after accidents, the number of days 
lost per million workdays fell sharply to 866 (previous 
year: 1 050). 

energy use: 	energy consumption in 2012 totaled 1 571	tJ, 
marking a slight year-on-year rise (previous year: 1 505 tJ). 
Production volumes in the reporting period were also 
moderately higher than the previous year’s level. 48% of 
Sika’s energy requirement was met by electrical power 
(previous year: 50%). As in the previous year, a further 
quarter of demand was covered by natural gas, the rest 
by heating oil, coal and, to a small extent, by district heat-
ing.	the energy requirement per ton of product sold fell 
to 560 MJ (previous year: 595 MJ). 
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atmospheric emissions (Scope 1): In 2012, Co2 emissions 
resulting from the use of primary energy sources (Scope 1) 
ran to around 47 000 tons (previous year: 31 000 tons). 
this increase is wholly attributable to the inclusion of 
emissions from the Chinese companies acquired in recent 
years, which still rely on the country’s enormous reserves 
of low-calorific-value coal to meet their energy require-
ments. Compared to natural gas, this fuel generates high 
Co2 emissions per unit heat. China’s gas supply network 
is still undeveloped outside the industrial centers and 
electricity is also produced by coal power plants. Sika has 
initiated measures to reduce Co2 emissions. 	these are 
for example the use of alternative fuels, the recycling of 
plastic waste as well as programs designed to cut power 
consumption. 

co2 emissions from consumption of purchased electric-
ity (Scope 2): 2012 is the second year for which Scope 2 
emissions have been reported. 	the consumption of 
purchased electricity in the reporting year entailed Co2 

eq. emissions of around 98 000 tons, a figure roughly 
twice greater than the direct emissions (previous year: 
100 000 tons).	this assessment is subject to a certain 
degree of inaccuracy as it relies on unverified statistics 
regarding the energy mix for electricity generation in 
the individual countries. Sika applies the Greenhouse Gas 
Protocol formulae in its estimates. 

Water use: Despite the slight rise in production volumes, 
Sika succeeded in cutting water consumption to 1.87 mil-
lion m³ (previous year: 2.0 million m³ ).	the cooling water 
needed by the company is mostly drawn from its own 
authority-approved wells and is returned, unpolluted, to 
the water cycle. Cooling water accounted for roughly 
two thirds of the Group’s total water demand.	the used 
water quantity fell to around 0.70 m³ per ton of product 
(previous year: 0.75 m³ ). 

materials use: Despite the slight rise in production vol-
umes, there was no increase in waste quantities in the 
reporting year, unchanged at 49 000 tons (previous year: 
49 000 tons). With the changed product mix, some 18.0 kg 
waste arose per ton of product (previous year: 19.0 kg). 
Around 40% of this waste, particularly that from polymer 
and mortar production, is reclaimed and recycled. Waste 
from the manufacture of polymer membranes, for ex-
ample, is granulated and reintroduced into production. 

ProductIon and ProductS 
Under the banner “Innovating Performance and Sustain-
ability”, Sika seeks to enhance the outstanding and 
widely appreciated utility of its products by optimizing 
their sustainability profile, and so create added value for 
its customers.	the following examples showcase Sika 
solutions that combine first-class performance with high 
sustainability standards. 

SAVInG eneRGY AnD RAW MAteRIAlS	 
Worldwide consumption of fuels such as crude oil, coal or 
natural gas, and other resources such as water, iron ore 
and cement is constantly rising, driven by population 
growth and greater purchasing power. Yet these resources 
are limited. 	their extraction is becoming increasingly 
expensive or is negatively impacting the climate.	the effi-
cient and purposeful use of these resources is one of the 
greatest challenges to future growth. 

Sika solutions for saving energy and raw materials: 
–	 Sika’s concrete admixtures for high-grade concrete 

incorporating recycled aggregates reduce the demand 
for gravel 

–	 Special seals for argon-filled insulating glass units and 
for bonding lighter windows improve the insulation 
performance of low-energy buildings 

–	 Structural adhesives and polymer-based reinforcing 
components for lighter automobiles help save fuel 
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example: Saving energy with grinding aids. Sika grinding 
aids for energy-efficient cement production save approx. 
64 MJ per ton cement (0.035% dosage) compared to 
grinding performed without these aids.	only around 10 MJ 
of energy are consumed in the manufacturing chain for 
the grinding aids.	this results in net savings of 54 MJ per 
ton of cement, roughly equivalent to the daily electricity 
consumption of a Swiss household. 	extrapolated to the 
global cement demand of 3 294 million tons in 2010, Sika 
grinding aids could theoretically have achieved energy 
savings equal to the annual power consumption of around 
6.5 million households. 

CUttInG Co2 eMISSIonS 
the earth’s climate is changing with manifold conse-
quences for the whole world.	this makes climate pro-
tection, in particular the continuous reduction of 
greenhouse emissions, a crucial task for the future. 

Sika solutions for climate protection: 
–	 Adhesives for the solar industry reliably bond very hot 

surfaces 
–	 highly reflective polymeric roof membranes boost the 

efficiency of solar installations and lower the cooling 
demand in buildings 

–	 offshore wind farms with special corrosion protection 
systems achieve longer service lives under rough 
conditions 

–	 Viewed over their entire life cycle, Sika Sarnafil® roof 
membranes entail 30% lower Co2 emissions than other 
less durable roofing sheets 

example: cutting co2 emissions with concrete admix-
tures. Concrete admixtures can be used to reduce cement 
content without in any way impairing the concrete 
quality.	large quantities of Co2, which is emitted during 
the combustion of limestone in cement production, 
can thus be avoided. For example, one Sika customer who 
needed 3 600 m³ of concrete for the construction of a 
gas storage tank opted to use the admixture Sika® Visco-
Crete®.	the resulting 9% net reduction in Co2 emissions 
was in this case equivalent to 50 tons of Co2. Applied to 
the annual worldwide concrete consumption of 5 billion m³, 
this offers potential cuts in the order of 72 million tons 
of Co2, a figure roughly equivalent to the annual Co2 

emissions of Austria. 

SAVInG WAteR 
the process of global population growth is making clean 
water an increasingly scarce commodity. 	the careful 
management of water consumption, purification and 
storage as well as wastewater treatment is essential. 
Already today, one billion people suffer from a lack of 
drinking water. 

Sika solutions for an adequate supply of clean water: 
–	 Concrete produced with Sika® ViscoCrete® admixtures 

requires up to 15% less water than concrete mixed using 
standard procedures 

–	 Waterproof concrete and interior coatings for drinking 
water reservoirs reduce water losses 

–	 Spray-applied waterproofing membranes for water-
tight structures and wastewater treatment plants 
reduce contamination 
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 CO2 emissions Water consumption Waste disposal and reuse 

in 1 000 tons in 1 000 cubic meters in 1 000 tons 

50 2 500 50 

40 2 000	 40 

30 1 500 30 

20 1 000 20 

10 500 10 

0 0 0 

example: drinking water tanks. 	on the Jungfraujoch 
saddle, high up in the Bernese Alps, a Sika product 
was used to reinstate a drinking water tank.	the defec-
tive waterproof barrier had compromised the water 
quality due to contact with the concrete. the most straight-
forward and effective solution consisted in relining 
the tank with Sikaplan® Wt	4300-15C Felt sheet water-
proofing membranes. 

BUIlDInG SUStAInABlY 
Astronomic sums are spent worldwide on infrastructure 
provision and maintenance.	the rapid economic ascent 
of the emerging countries necessitates enormous in-
vestments in energy, transportation, water and health 
care. 	the existing infrastructure in developed countries 
also requires modernization. 

Sika solutions for sustainable construction: 
–	 Construction chemicals, shotcreting machines and 

waterproof membranes allow efficient tunneling 
–	 Composite materials can be used to strengthen aging 

engineering structures such as bridges and substan-
tially prolong their service life 

–	 Root-resistant polymeric roof membranes and systems 
allow the installation of green roofs to improve the 
urban climate 

–	 Special concrete repair mortars and resins considerably 
extend the service life of bridges and concrete 
structures 

example: Wood floor adhesives. 	natural wood flooring is 
a popular choice for green buildings due to the material’s 
longevity, low maintenance requirement and visual 
appeal. Various bonding options are available for laying 
this type of covering. SikaBond® At-80, incorporating 
over 15% renewable raw materials, and the water-based, 
solvent-free Sika® Primer MR Fast offer the ideal solution 
for reliable, material- and energy-efficient installation 
of natural wood flooring. Use of SikaBond® At-80 and 
Sika® Primer MR Fast instead of standard, solvent-free, 
single-component adhesives delivers a 50% cut in energy 
consumption and Co2 emissions. 

SocIal reSPonSIbIlItY 
In today’s world, social, economic and ecological issues are 
closely intertwined. Social responsibility is the necessary 
component of success. Mindful of its obligations, Sika 
actively engages in sustainable and humanitarian develop-
ment projects, either as a member of international orga-
nizations or directly on the spot. 

MeMBeRShIPS 
un global compact: Sika has participated in the Un Global 
Compact network since 2009.	the Global Compact prin-
ciples enshrine a series of universally accepted values in 
the areas of human rights, labor standards, environmental 
protection and anticorruption policy. Another United 
nations initiative where Sika is engaged is the Sustain-
able Buildings and Climate Initiative (SBCI), whose aim is 
to establish sustainable building practices worldwide. 
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CHILDrEn In vIEtnaM OBtaInED SuCCESSfuL 
MEDICaL trEatMEnt tHrOugH tHE 
SMILE CarE PrOgraM, wHICH IS SPOnSOrED 
By SIka 

World business council for Sustainable development 
(WbcSd): Sika has signed the WBCSD Manifesto for 
energy	efficiency in Buildings, thus committing itself to 
the optimization of energy efficiency throughout 
the value chain. 

responsible care: Sika honors the rules of the Respon-
sible Care program, a voluntary global initiative of the 
chemical industry. 	through their national associations, 
companies work together to continuously improve their 
health, safety and environmental performance.	the 
Responsible Care ethic encourages industry to operate 
with due consideration to future generations. 

green building programs: Green building and certifica-
tion programs such as LEED (leadership in	energy and 
environmental Design) and BREEAM (BRE	environmental 
Assessment Method) evaluate the sustainability per-
formance of construction materials and buildings. Sika 
participates in programs and schemes such as the 
German Seal of Quality for Sustainable Construction 
(DGNB) and the Green Globes in the USA. Sika also 
cultivates an active partnership with the US Green Build-
ing Council (USGBC) and, in the reporting year, joined 
the Uk	Green Building Council (UKGBC). 

ACtIVItIeS 
romuald burkard foundation: the Sika Board of Directors 
established the Romuald Burkard Foundation in 2005 
in memory of Dr. Romuald Burkard, the third-generation 
representative of the Winkler family, which founded Sika. 
It provides financial support to social and ecological 
projects in countries in which Sika maintains subsidiaries. 
the projects focus on the following areas: 
–	 Buildings and infrastructure that serve a social or 

ecological purpose 
–	 technical training in construction professions and 

trades 
– Water projects with ecological and social objectives 

Sika seeks to promote on-the-ground self-help.	the local 
Sika companies are thus required to put forward specific 
aid applications and, working with local partners, 
supervise the projects on site up to completion. Via the 
Romuald Burkard Foundation, Sika supported the follow-
ing major projects in the year under review: 

Yayasan	tirta	lestari (YTL) is a nonprofit organization 
whose mission is to improve health care, water supply, 
sanitation and drainage facilities in Indonesia. Since 2009, 
the efforts of YTL and Sika have helped thousands of 
Indonesian households improve their living standards. 
Aid provided in 2012: CHF 60 000. 
www.watsanaction.org 

the Romuald Burkard Foundation also sponsors one of 
the most highly esteemed vocational training centers in 
Indonesia – the Akademi 	tehnik Mesin Industri (ATMI), 
which is run by the Jesuits.	the facility offers young 
people from lower- and middle-class families the chance 
to learn technical trades and professions that are highly 
in demand. Sika’s donation has enabled the center to 
expand its offerings and invest in a new building. Aid 
provided in 2012: CHF 200 000. 
www.atmicikarang.ac.id 

Since 2010, Sika has supported the activities of the non-
profit organization Smile Care in Vietnam.	the aid 
provided by Sika in 2012 paid for examinations for 400 
children at four different hospitals as well as successful 
operations for 300 of these who suffered from facial 
deformities.	thanks to the assistance of committed 
volunteers, the organization has, since 1989, arranged 
operations for some 200 000 children and youths with 
cleft lips and palates or similar facial disfigurements. 
Aid provided in 2012: CHF 100 000. 
www.operationssmile.org 
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Another initiative sponsored by Sika in 2012 was the Pro 
leche Ayacucho agricultural development project.	this 
privately organized self-help scheme sets out to im-
prove the income situation of over 670 farming families 
in the Ayacucho region of Peru. Specific aims include the 
achievement of higher milk yields, quality management 
by means of improved hygiene conditions, control and 
training, and the strengthening of sales channels through 
the establishment of local cheese dairies. Aid provided 
in 2012: CHF 75 000. 
www.prolecheayacucho.org 

For some years now, Sika has supported the Pan de Vida 
orphanage in Mexico, where disadvantaged children 
and youths have the chance to live and study.	the funds 
provided in the year under review covered scholarships 
for five young people, the construction of a sports 
ground, a dental care program and the building permit 
costs for a new residential block. Aid provided in 2012: 
CHF 55 000. 

In 2012, Sika also continued its sponsorship of YES (Youth 
encounter on Sustainability) courses worldwide.	the 
courses, developed by a spin-off from the ETH (Swiss 
Federal Institute of	technology) Zurich, address various 
aspects of sustainable development and are primarily 
geared to students. Aid provided in 2012: CHF 100 000. 
www.actis-education.ch 

eth Zurich: 2012 marked yet another successful year in 
Sika’s wide-ranging partnership with the ETH (Swiss 
Federal Institute of	technology) in the fields of chemistry, 
materials science and engineering. 2012 was the third 
year in which the Sika Master Award was presented to the 
author of an outstanding master’s thesis in the field of 
applied chemistry, based on the recommendation of the 
ETH’s Department of Chemistry and Applied Biosciences. 
Sika also participates in the Sustainable Construction 
Partnership Council, which was set up during the report-
ing year.	this interdisciplinary forum promotes a dialogue 
on current research topics, supports resources and 
knowledge transfer, and encourages the launch of joint 
research projects in the field of sustainable construction. 

global nature fund: Sika supports the international 
living	lakes environmental program of the Global	nature 
Fund (GNF). Comprising 70 partner organizations from 
various lake regions across the globe, the 	living	lakes 
network sets out to promote sustainable development 
and the protection of drinking water, lakes and wetlands. 
the initiative uses concrete models to demonstrate how, 
with the involvement of the local population, positive 
social and economic developments can be achieved in 
different climatic zones and societies without any threat 
to nature and the environment. Aid provided in 2012: 
CHF 60 000. 
www.globalnature.org 
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leADeRShIP
 

• 
those who wish to lead must set an example 
through their conduct and achievements. 
the foundation for this is laid by clearly de-
fined values: respect, trust, cooperation, 
expertise and transparency. Sika makes every 
effort to ensure that these words do not just 
remain words. A lean Group Management, 
flat hierarchies, short communication paths 
with employees and a clear-cut regional 
breakdown are the key to holistic leadership, 
from production through to the customer. 
leadership is also about developing potential: 
the company’s Performance and talent 
Management scheme sets out to develop the 
skills of its future executives while the Sika 
Business School offers hands-on training. 
Sika sees every investment in its workforce 
as an investment in the future. 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

  

    	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

organIZatIon and leaderShIP 

Speaking the cuStomer’S language. Sika’s organizational structure is 
heavily decentralized, a pivotal role being played by the management teams in 
the regions and national subsidiaries. the company is very customer-focused 
and is characterized by its traditional flat management structures. 

organIZatIonal Structure 
Since its international expansion first began, Sika has 
organized its global activities by country. 	the national 
units were later consolidated into regions with higher-
level management functions.	the heads of the regions 
are members of Group Management.	the regional and 
national management teams bear full profit and loss 
responsibility, and – based on the Group strategy – set 
country-specific growth and sustainability targets, and 
allocate resources. A detailed breakdown of the regions 
for the 2012 financial year can be found on page 14. 

the start of 2013 saw Sika reduce the number of its 
geographical regions from six to four.	the new regional 
breakdown is based on unified economic areas and 
established supply chain structures. 	the overall manage-
ment responsibility will ensure holistic management from 
production to the customer.	the traditional flat manage-
ment structures will remain in place.	the new region 
EMEA covers the previous regions	europe	north and 
europe South together with the Middle 	east and Africa. 
With the former region IMEA dissolved, India has been 
reallocated to the region Asia/Pacific due to its close 
association with this economic area.	north America and 
latin America are to remain independent regions on 
account of their differing market structures. 

By the end of 2012, Sika had geared its internal organiza-
tion toward four customer groups. While the construction 
industry accounted for three of these, the fourth brought 
together customers from the industrial manufacturing 
sector. Since the beginning of 2013, the internal sales 
organization has been oriented towards the following 
seven target markets: concrete, waterproofing, roofing, 
flooring, sealing & bonding, refurbishment and industry. 
this market-oriented distribution enables Sika to sharpen 
its customer focus, optimize its technical market support 
activities and concentrate its R & D operations on market 
needs. 
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grouP management 

management by perSonality and experience: Sika’s Group Manage-
ment is made up of nine personalities, whose diverse careers led them to Sika 
companies across the globe. on average, they have worked for Sika for over 
21 years. their longtime experience pays dividends for Sika every single day. 

José luis vázquez christoph ganz 
latin America north America 

With Sika for 29 years in Spain With Sika for 17 years in 
and	latin America Switzerland, France and the USA 

Paul Schuler Silvio Ponti Jan Jenisch 
eMeA Building Systems & Industry, Deputy Ceo Ceo 
With Sika for 25 years in With Sika for 29 years in Switzerland and With Sika for 17 years in 
Switzerland, Germany and the	netherlands Switzerland, Germany and Asia 
the USA 



 

	 	 	 	 		
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 		

	

	

	 	 	 	 		
	

ronald trächsel 
CFo 

With Sika for 5 years 
in Switzerland 

ernesto Schümperli 
Concrete & Waterproofing 

With Sika for 26 years in 
Colombia and Switzerland 

heinz gisel 
Asia/Pacific 

With Sika for 22 years in 
Switzerland, USA, Austria 
and Asia 

urs mäder 
technology (Cto) 

With Sika for 23 years 
in Switzerland 



	 	 	 	 	

	

  	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	

  	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	

  	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

  	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

  	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

Jan JenISch, lic. rer. pol. 
Ceo	 

nationality: German; Year of birth: 1966 
Member since 2004; since 2012: CEO; 2007–2011: Regional 
Manager Asia/Pacific; 2004–2006:	head of Industry 
Division; 1998–2004:	head Automotive	europe, Sika 
headquarters, Switzerland; General Manager Sika	tivoli 
Gmbh, Germany; Managing Director Sika Automotive 
Belgium SA; Director	hayashi Sika Automotive 	ltd., 
Japan; 1996–1997: Market Development Manager, Industry 
Division, Sika	headquarters, Switzerland. 

SIlvIo PontI, Dipl. Bau-Ing.	eth, MBA 
head Building Systems & Industry, Deputy Ceo	 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1953 
Member since 2002; since 2005: Deputy CEO; since 2013: 
head Building Systems & Industry; 2002–2012: Regional 
Manager	europe 	north; 1989–2002:	head of Marketing; 
General Manager Sika Switzerland; Area Manager Central 
europe, Sika Switzerland; 1987–1988:	head of Marketing 
for the Joint Venture	hilti-Ciba-Geigy,	hilti AG, Principality 
of	liechtenstein; 1984–1987: General Manager Sika 
netherlands; 1982–1983: Assistant to the	head of	export, 
Sika Switzerland; 1978–1980: Project	leader, Ing. Büro 
Dr. Staudacher & Siegenthaler AG, Switzerland. 

chrIStoPh ganZ, lic. oec.	hSG 
Regional Manager	north America 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1969 
Member since 2007; since 2013: Regional Manager	north 
America; General Manager Sika USA; 2007–2012:	head 
of Corporate Business Unit Distribution; 2009–2012: 
General Manager Sika France; Area Manager France, 
north Africa, Mauritius; 2003–2006:	head of Business 
Unit Distribution, Sika	headquarters, Switzerland; 1999– 
2003: Corporate Market Field Manager Distribution, Sika 
headquarters, Switzerland; 1996–1999: Project Manager 
Distribution, Sika Switzerland. 

heInZ gISel, executive MBA 
Regional Manager Asia/Pacific 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1965 
Member since 2012; since 2012: Regional Manager 
Asia/Pacific; 2009–2011: General Manager Greater China, 
Sika China; 2007–2009: General Manager Singapore;	head 
of Business Unit Industry region Asia/Pacific; Area Man-
ager Southeast Asia, Sika Singapore; 2004–2006:	head 
Appliances & Components;	head	transportation, Industry 
Division, Sika	headquarters, Switzerland; 1999–2004: 
Industry Manager Switzerland/Austria, Sika Switzerland, 
Sika Austria; 1996–1998: Industry Sales Manager China 
and	hong	kong, Sika 	hong	kong 1995–1996: Area Sales 
Manager Industry, Sika USA; 1991–1994: Area Sales 
Manager, Sika Switzerland. 

urS mäder, Dr. rer. nat., Dipl. Chem., Dipl. Ing.	htl	 
technology (Cto) 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1955 
Member since 2005; since 2005: CTO; 1989–2005: Project 
leader Admixture Development; Department	head of 
Construction Chemicals; Product	technology Director of 
Construction Chemicals and Mortars, Research and Devel-
opment, Sika Switzerland; 1987–1989: Postdoctorate 
research, Research School Chemistry, Canberra, Australia; 
President:	european Federation of Concrete Admixture 
Producers (EFCA). 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

44 • leADeRShIP 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

   
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

  	 	  
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

  	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

   	 	  
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	

Paul Schuler, MBA 
Regional Manager EMEA 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1955 
Member since 2007; since 2013: Regional Manager EMEA; 
2007–2012: Regional Manager	north America; General 
Manager Sika USA; 2003–2006: General Manager Sika 
Germany; 1988–2002: Product Manager,	head of Sales 
Industry; Marketing Manager Industry; Business Unit 
leader Industry, Sika Switzerland; 1982–1988: Interna-
tional	key Account; Sales Manager Switzerland, EMS 
Chemie AG, Switzerland; 1980–1982: Project Manager Air 
Condition Plants,	luwa AG,	hong	kong, China; 1976–1980: 
Production Manager,	hemair AG, Switzerland. 

erneSto SchümPerlI, Dipl. Bau-Ing.	eth, MBA 
head Concrete & Waterproofing 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1955 
Member since 2007; since 2013:	head Concrete & Water-
proofing; 2007–2012:	head Corporate Business Unit Con-
crete; 1991–2006: General Manager Sika Switzerland; 
Area Manager Central	europe;	head of Sika	tunneling & 
Mining;	head of Sales Switzerland;	head of Marketing 
Construction; Market Development Manager Concrete, 
Sika Switzerland; 1987–1990:	head of Marketing;	key Ac-
count Manager 	latin America, Sika Colombia; 1986–1987: 
Project Manager Structural	engineering, Wenaweser & 
Wolfensberger AG, Switzerland; 1976–1985: University 
and Postgraduate Studies, Research	engineer at ETH 
Zurich and UAS Basel, Switzerland; 1971–1975: Project 
Manager Infrastructure, Frey + Gnehm AG, Switzerland. 

ronald trächSel, lic. rer. pol. 
CFo 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1959 
Member since 2008; since 2008: CFO; 1999–2007: CFO; 
CEO and	head of Group Management;	executive Direc-
tor, Vitra Group, Switzerland; 1992–1999:	head Internal 
Audit; CFO Ringier	europe, Ringier Group, Switzerland; 
1987–1992: Internal Audit, Ciba-Geigy Group, Switzerland; 
1982–1987: Accounting and tax counseling for small and 
medium-sized enterprises, Visura 	treuhandgesellschaft, 
Switzerland. 

JoSé luIS váZqueZ, Dr. Ing., MBA 
Regional Manager	latin America 

nationality: Spanish; Year of birth: 1947 
Member since 2002; since 2009: Regional Manager	latin 
America; 2002–2008: Regional Manager	europe South; 
1984–2002:	head of Marketing; General Manager Spain; 
1999: Area Manager Southern	europe, Sika Spain; 
1983–1984: Manager	national Sport Insurance Company, 
Sport Ministry, Cabinet of Ministers, Spain; 1977–1983: 
Vice President,	oil Business Division, 	explosivos Rio 	tinto, 
Spain; 1972–1976: Director of numerous global projects 
in the area of road construction, harbors, factories;	helma 
(Cádiz), Boskalis (Cádiz),	laing (Valencia/Bilbao), Caminos 
y Puertos (Barcelona); 1970–1972:	laboratoire Central 
des Ponts et Chaussées, France; Instituto	eduardo 
torroja, Spain. 
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organIZatIonal dIagram 

well-poSitioned for the future: At the start of 2013, Sika created a 
streamlined, more efficient Group leadership structure. Group Management 
was slimmed down from fourteen to nine members, retaining the traditional 
flat management structures within the Group. the previous six geographical 
regions have been reduced to four. 

BoARD oF DIReCtoRS 

Ceo 

Jan Jenisch 

eMeA 

Paul Schuler 

ASIA/PACIFIC 

heinz gisel 

noRth AMeRICA 

christoph ganz 

lAtIn AMeRICA 

José luis vázquez 

CFo 

ronald trächsel 

ConCRete & WAteRPRooFInG 

ernesto Schümperli 

BUIlDInG SYSteMS & InDUStRY 

Silvio Ponti, Deputy Ceo 

teChnoloGY 

urs mäder 

the previous six geographical regions have been reduced to four.	the new regional breakdown is based on unified 
economic areas and supply chain structures. the new region EMEA covers the previous regions europe north and europe 
South together with the Middle	east and Africa. With the former region IMEA dissolved, India has been reallocated 
to the region Asia/Pacific due to its close association with this economic area.	north America and	latin America are to 
remain independent regions on account of their differing market structures. 
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board of dIrectorS 

perSonnel changeS: As of the Annual General Meeting on April 17, 2012, 
Paul hälg serves as the new Chairman of Sika’s Board of Directors. newly 
elected to the Board was Frits van Dijk, who worked some 40 years for the 
nestlé Group and, as executive Committee Member between 2005 and 2011, 
was responsible for the region Asia, oceania, Africa and Middle east. 

Paul hälg, Dr. sc. techn.,	eth	Zurich, 
Chairman 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1954 
Member since: 2009, elected till: 2015; since 2004: CEO, 
Dätwyler Group, Altdorf; 2001–2004:	executive Vice 
President, Forbo International SA,	eglisau; 1987–2001: 
Product Manager, Commercial Director, CEO, Gurit 
essex AG, Freienbach; 1981–1986: Project and Group 
leader, Schweizerische Aluminium AG (Alusuisse), Zurich. 

thomaS W. bechtler, Dr. iur.,	ll. M., 
Vice Chairman 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1949 
Member since: 1989, elected till: 2013; Committees: 
Chairman	nomination and Compensation Committee; 
since 1982: CEO,	hesta AG, Zug; 1977–1982: Divisional 
Manager,	luwa AG; 1975–1977: Managing Assistant, 
luwa AG; Member of the Board: Bucher Industries, 
niederweningen; Conzzeta AG, Zurich; Chairman of the 
Board:	human Rights Watch, Committee Zurich. 

urS f. burkard, Carpenter/Interior Designer 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1957 
Member since: 1990, elected till: 2014; Committees: 
nomination and Compensation Committee; since 1989: 
Principal, Burkard	office Design Gmbh, Rotkreuz; 
1987–1989:	head of planning, Denz	office Furniture, 
Zurich; Chairman of the Board: Unitrend Burkard AG, 
Rotkreuz; Vice Chairman of the Board: Schenker-Winkler 
holding AG, Baar. 

frItS van dIJk, School of	economics (heS), Rotterdam 

nationality: Dutch; Year of birth: 1947 
Member since: 2012, elected till: 2015; 1970–2011: Career 
within 	nestlé (focus region Asia), of which the last 
10 years as member of the	nestlé SA	executive Board, 
responsible for Asia,	oceania, Africa & Middle 	east; 
Member of the Board:	nestlé Malaysia Berhad. 

WIllI k. leImer, Dr. oec.	hSG 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1958 
Member since: 2010, elected till: 2013, Committees: Audit 
Committee; since 2002: Partner, WMPartners Wealth 
Management	ltd., Zurich; 1990–2002: Managing Director, 
Private Wealth Management, Bank Morgan Stanley AG, 
Zurich; 1988–1990: Goldman, Sachs & Co.,	new York and 
Zurich; Chairman of the Board: ISPartners Investments 
Solutions AG, Zurich; Schenker-Winkler	holding AG, Baar; 
Vice Chairman of the Board: WMPartners Wealth 
Management	ltd., Zurich. 

monIka rIbar, lic. oec.	hSG 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1959 
Member since: 2011, elected till: 2014; Committees: 
Chairman Audit Committee; since 2006: CEO, 
Panalpina AG, Basel; 2005–2006: CFO, Panalpina AG, 
Basel; 2000– 2005: Chief Information	officer (CIO), 
Panalpina AG, Basel; 1991–2000: Various functions 
within Controlling, It	and Global Project Management, 
Panalpina AG, Basel; Member of the Board: logitech 
International SA, Romanel-sur-Morges; Swiss 
International Airlines	ltd., Zurich. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

leADeRShIP • 47 



	 	 	 	 	

	

    

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	

   	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

  	  

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

danIel J. Sauter, Financial	expert 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1957 
Member since: 2000, elected till: 2015; Committees: 
nomination and Compensation Committee; 1994–2001: 
CEO and Delegate of Board of Directors, Xstrata AG, Zug; 
1983–1998: Senior partner and CFO, Glencore 
International AG, Baar; 1976–1983: Various banks, incl. 
Bank	leu, Zurich; Chairman of the Board: Julius Bär 
Gruppe AG, Zurich; Member of the Board: Model 
holding AG, Weinfelden. 

ulrIch W. Suter, Dr. sc. techn., Professor 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1944 
Member since: 2003, elected till: 2015; 2001–2005: Vice 
President Research, ETH Zurich; 1988–2008: Professor, 
ETH Zurich, Department of Material Science; 1982–1989: 
Professor, MIT, Department of Chemical	engineering, 
Cambridge, USA; Chairman of the Board: WICOR holding AG, 
Rapperswil SG; Member of the Board: Global Surface AG, 
nussbaumen 	tG; Rainbow Photonics AG, Zurich; Presi-
dent of the Foundation Council: Werner	oechslin	library 
Foundation; Member of the Board of	trustees: Pension 
Fund of the Weidmann Group of Companies; Swisscontact. 

chrIStoPh tobler, dipl.	el. Ing. 	ePFl 

nationality: Swiss; Year of birth: 1957 
Member since: 2005, elected till: 2013; Committees: Audit 
Committee; since 2004: CEO, Sefar	holding AG, 	thal SG; 
1998–2004:	head of Industry Division and Member of 
Group Management, Sika AG, Baar; 1994–1998: Adtranz 
Schweiz; 1988–1994: Mckinsey & Company, Zurich; Mem-
ber of the Board: Sefar	holding AG,	thal SG; Schenker-
Winkler	holding AG, Baar; AG Cilander,	herisau; Member 
of Board Committee: economiesuisse, Zurich. 
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emPloYeeS 

workforce with expertiSe and commitment. With a cooperative 
management style and diverse development and continued training activities, 
Sika promotes the individual skills and initiative of its employees and encour-
ages their entrepreneurial engagement, at the same time as accommodating 
the company’s dynamic development. 

management PrIncIPleS 
Sika nurtures continuity and upholds ethical values. It 
attaches absolute priority to mutual respect and trust 
between management and staff, as well as among one 
another. Sika’s worldwide presence makes the integration 
of widely differing individuals and the global exchange 
of knowledge and experience absolutely essential.	this 
diversity is desired. Discrimination is not tolerated in any 
form. 

the activities of the entire workforce are geared clearly 
toward strategic, operative and company policy targets, 
with many employees receiving guidance in the form 
of management by objectives. 	this cooperative man-
agement style ensures that employees are involved in 
numerous decision-making processes. Information flows 
through all hierarchical levels are kept as systematic, 
up to date and transparent as possible. Managers are 
expected to set an example for their employees, and 
foster their initiative, creativity and development. Provi-
sion must be made for continuing professional training. 

management develoPment 
Sika’s Performance and	talent Management system 
has been the mainstay of management development 
activities for a number of years. Designed to identify and 
develop managers’ skills, it facilitates systematic 
employee succession planning in the respective organiza-
tions, while promoting company growth by continually 
pinpointing new talent. Various talent pools for different 
management functions have been created in this way. 

Potential managers are developed at different levels: on 
the one hand, through continuing training initiated by 
the respective national organization or provided by the 
Sika Business School.	on the other hand, Sika attaches 
importance to management candidates familiarizing 
themselves with different functional areas and gaining 
experience in other countries. 

Group-wide guidelines guarantee security, transparency 
and a fair employment contract for employees on longer-
term secondments abroad. 

SIka buSIneSS School 
In addition to the many varied developments in the 
business environment, the fast pace of growth witnessed 
by the Group and the associated changes in organiza-
tion and work processes call for a continuous transfer of 
knowledge at all levels.	the Sika Business School provides 
global, hands-on courses in the areas of management 
and talent development as well as marketing and sales. 
Curriculums include project assignments taken from 
current everyday business situations. Members of Group 
Management and other line managers are involved in 
development activities, so ensuring that training remains 
relevant to practical needs. 

Product and application-based knowledge is delivered 
by academies whose course content and organization are 
defined by target market managers. With the focus on 
practical applications for Sika products, these training 
programs promote customer advisory skills. 
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Employment Salary 
development expenses 

in CHF mn 

20 000 800 

Numbers of employees by region 
16 000 640 

12 000 480 

8 000 320 

4 000 160 

0 0 

In the reporting year, Sika spent a total of around CHF 7.9 
million (2011: CHF 8.5 million) on employee development. 
this figure includes special, decentralized courses in the 
regions and countries as well as the global management 
development and sales training programs provided by 
the Sika Business School. 

number of emPloYeeS 
there was a minor decrease in number of employees in 
the year under review. While the economic situation in 
some countries demanded adjustments at local level as 
well as specific restructuring measures, 123 employees 
joined the Group in the wake of acquisitions. Worldwide, 
the Group employed 15 233 people (2011: 15 254) at the 
end of the year under review. 	employees were distributed 
among the regions as follows:	europe	north 4 907 (2011: 
4 997),	europe South 2 218 (2011: 2 318),	north America 
1 437 (2011: 1 491),	latin America 2 170 (2011: 2 101), 
IMEA 1 281 (2011: 1 224), Asia/Pacific 3 220 (2011: 3 123). 

together, all Sika employees in 2012 generated a net 
added value of CHF 1 465 million (2011: CHF 1 315 million). 
net added value per employee increased to CHF 96 000 
(2011: CHF 92 000). For further information, please refer 
to page 142 ff of this report. 

Europe North 

Europe South 

North America 

Latin America 

IMEA 

Asia/Pacific 

4 907 

2 218 

1 437 

2 170 

1 281 

3 220 

0 1 000 2 000 3 000 4 000 5 000 15 233 Total 
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corPorate governance 

commitment to openneSS and tranSparency. Creating transparency 
is the highest objective of good corporate governance. this provides 
information on structures and processes, areas of responsibility and decision 
procedures as well as rights and obligations of various stakeholders. 
Reporting at Sika follows the SIX Swiss exchange guidelines. 

grouP Structure and ShareholderS 
Sika AG, headquartered in Baar, is the only listed Sika 
company. 	the Sika AG bearer shares are listed on SIX 
Swiss	exchange under Swiss security no. 58797. Informa-
tion on Sika AG’s stock market capitalization can be found 
on page 6 of this report. In the year under review, the Sika 
Group encompassed unlisted subsidiaries in 80 countries. 
124 companies are included in the scope of consolida-
tion. Companies of which Sika holds less than 50% of 
shareholder votes are not consolidated.	these are namely 
Addiment Italia S.r.l., Italy; Condensil SARL, France; Sarna 
Granol AG, Switzerland;	hayashi-Sika, Chemical Sangyo 
and Seven tech Co. 	ltd. in Japan as well as the joint ven-
ture Part Gmbh	in Germany. Detailed information on the 
Group companies can be found on page 132 ff. 

Sika conducts its worldwide activities according to 
countries that have been classed into regions with area-
wide managerial functions.	the heads of the regions 
are members of Group Management.	the regional and 
national management teams bear full profit and loss 
responsibility, and – based on the Group strategy – set 
country-specific growth and sustainability targets, 
and allocate resources. 

Furthermore, Sika has geared its internal organization 
toward seven target markets from the construction 
industry or from industrial manufacturing.	these target 
markets are represented by two members of Group 
Management as well as in the regional management 
teams and the national subsidiaries.	the relevant 
managers are responsible for the definition and launch 
of new products, the implementation of demonstrated 
best practices, and the product-line and pricing 
policies for Group products, i.e. those offered worldwide 
rather than only in a particular country. 

the heads of the central services Finance and Research 
and Development are likewise members of Group 
Management, which consists of nine members. All Group 
business is consolidated in Sika AG, the holding company, 
itself in turn under the supervision of the Board of 
Directors.	the organization structures are presented on 
pages 41 to 48 of this report. 

As of the balance sheet date of December 31, 2012, Sika 
had one significant shareholder with a share of voting 
rights of over 3%, the Burkard-Schenker family, which 
according to information provided by the family as at 
December 31, 2012, holds 53.0% of all share votes, in part 
through Schenker-Winkler	holding AG, Baar. A list of 
changes in significant shareholdings reported to the Dis-
closure	office of SIX Swiss	exchange	ltd during the year 
under review can be found at http://www.six-exchange-
regulation.com/obligations/disclosure/major_share 
holders_en.html. 

there are no crossover holdings exceeding 3%, either in 
terms of capital or votes. 

caPItal Structure 
As at December 31, 2012, capital stock totaled 
CHF 1 524 106.80.	this was divided into 2 151 199 bearer 
shares, each with a nominal value of CHF 0.60, and 
2 333 874 registered shares, each having a nominal value 
of CHF 0.10. All shares earn the same dividend, with 
payout adjusted according to nominal value.	one share 
represents one vote. In addition, there is CHF 155 893.20 
in contingent capital, unrestricted in time, comprising 
259 822 bearer shares with a per-share nominal value of 
CHF 0.60.	these shares are reserved for the exercise of 
option or conversion rights. Shareholders are excluded 
from subscription rights.	there are currently no conver-
sion or option rights outstanding. Sika granted no partici-
pation certificates, dividend right certificates or stock 
options. 	option plans do not exist for members of the 
Board of Directors, Group Management or employees. 
Changes in capital stock, reserves and retained earnings 
during the last five years are posted on pages 137 ff of 
this report. 

the purchase of Sika bearer and registered shares is open 
to all legal persons and individuals.	the Board of Directors 
can deny purchase of registered shares if the purchaser’s 
registered shareholdings exceed 5% of the total number 
of registered shares entered in the commercial register. In 
the year under review no shareholder newly exceeded this 
5% threshold.	nominees, i.e. shareholders who acquire 
shares in their own name but on the account of third par-
ties, are registered as shareholders without voting rights. 
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board of dIrectorS 
the Board of Directors is Sika’s highest governing body 
and is mainly responsible for the: 
–	 Definition of the corporate mission statement and 

corporate policies 
–	 Decisions on corporate strategy and organizational 

structure 
–	 Appointment and dismissal of members of Group 

Management 
– Structuring of finances and accounting 
– establishment of medium-term planning as well as 

the annual and investment budgets 
the members of the Board of Directors are elected by 
the Annual General Meeting for a term of office of three 
years. Members’ tenures are staggered.	they can be 
reelected at any time. Upon reaching the age of seventy, 
directors resign their mandate. Detailed information on 
individual members of the Board of Directors is listed on 
pages 47 and 48 of this report.	no directorships are main-
tained with other listed companies on a reciprocal basis. 
the Board of Directors constitutes itself, electing the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman from its ranks. 

Presently the Board of Directors of Sika AG consists of 
nine members.	none of the members of the Board of 
Directors was a member of Group Management or the 
executive management of a Group company during the 
three preceding business years.	the Board convenes at 
the Chairman’s request as business demands. In business 
year 2012 the Board met seven times.	the Chief	execu-
tive	officer (CEO) participates in the Board meetings in an 
advisory capacity. 	the other members of Group Manage-
ment take part as necessary, but at least three times per 
year, also in an advisory capacity. 

Company officers report regularly and comprehensively 
to the Chairman concerning implementation of Board 
decisions.	the CEO as well as the CFO report to the Board 
in writing on the development of business at least once 
per month.	extraordinary occurrences are reported imme-
diately to the Chairman or the Audit Committee, insofar 
as such events relate to the latter’s area of responsibility. 
the Internal Audit staff report to the Chairman as well 
as the Audit Committee within the scope of the review 
schedule. 

board commItteeS 
Sika has two committees of the Board of Directors: the 
Audit Committee as well as the	nomination and Compen-
sation Committee. 	the chairpersons of these commit-
tees are elected by the Board.	otherwise, the committees 
organize themselves. Information on the members of 
the committees can be found on pages 47 and 48 of this 
report. 
–	 the Audit Committee mainly reviews the results of 

internal and external audits as well as risk manage-
ment.	the committee convenes at the request of its 
chairperson as required. Customarily the Chairman 
of the Board and the CFO, as well as the CEO if neces-
sary, take part in these meetings in an advisory capa-
city. In the year under review the Audit Committee 
met five times. 

–	 the	nomination and Compensation Committee pre-
pares personnel planning at Board and Group Manage-
ment level and handles matters relating to compen-
sation. 	one of the central tasks of the	nomination and 
Compensation Committee is succession planning for 
the Board of Directors and Group Management.	the 
committee convenes at the request of its chairperson 
as required. Usually the Chairman of the Board and the 
CEO participate in these meetings in an advisory capac-
ity, insofar as they are not themselves affected by the 
items on the agenda. In the year under review the	nom-
ination and Compensation Committee met six times. 

grouP management 
Within the framework of Board resolutions, Sika’s 
operative leadership is incumbent on Group Management. 
the members of Group Management and their functions 
are listed on pages 42 to 46 of this report. Detailed 
information on their backgrounds and activities can be 
found on pages 44 to 45 of this report. Sika had no 
management contracts with third parties in the year 
under review. 
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Shareholder PartIcIPatIon rIghtS 
Sika upholds no restrictions to voting rights either on the 
basis of the articles of association or by other means, 
and thus also no rules for granting exceptions. Accordingly, 
no exceptions were made in the year under review with 
respect to voting rights restrictions. 	every shareholder 
can exercise share votes through representation by an-
other shareholder with voting rights, a registered repre-
sentative of securities accounts or the independent proxy. 
Information on what constitutes a statutory quorum can 
be found in Art. 704 of the Swiss Code of obligations (Co); 
information on what constitutes a quorum under Sika’s 
articles of association can be found in § 15 paragraph 3 
of the latter document.	the orders of business for which 
a majority is required are defined therein. Sika’s articles 
of association can be found at http://www.sika.com/en/ 
group/investors/corporategovernance/articlesofassoci 
ation.html.	the invitation modalities and deadlines for 
the Annual General Meeting are conformant with legal 
requirements. In addition, during a period published by 
the company, shareholders representing a nominal share 
value of CHF 10 000 can request in writing to have an item 
placed on the agenda, indicating the proposals to be put 
forward.	notice is published in the Swiss	official Gazette 
of Commerce.	new registered shares will not be regis-
tered by the company in the two working days prior to the 
Annual General Meeting.	therefore registered shares sold 
between the deadline and the Annual General Meeting 
are not entitled to vote. 

delIneatIon of PoWerS of authorIZatIon 
the powers of authorization, duties and responsibilities 
of the Board of Directors and Group Management are 
laid down in the organizational rules of Sika AG and Sika 
Group (http://www.sika.com/de/group/investors/ 
CorporateGovernance/organizational_rules.html). 

change In corPorate control and defenSe 
meaSureS 
In accordance with § 6 of the Sika articles of association, 
purchasers of shares are not obligated to make a public 
offering as generally prescribed by articles 32 and 52 of 
the Swiss Federal Act on Stock	exchanges and Securities 
trading.	there are no clauses governing changes in cor-
porate control. 

audItor 
the auditor of Sika AG is elected by the Annual General 
Meeting for a term of one year. In the year under review, 
ernst & Young AG, listed as an auditor in the commercial 
register since February 7, 1995, served in this capacity. 
In accordance with legal requirements, the auditor in 
charge is replaced after a maximum period of seven years. 
the auditor in charge has been responsible for the audit 
mandate since 2010.	the auditor participates regularly 
in the meetings of the Audit Committee, providing oral 
and written report of the results of its reviews. 	the Audit 
Committee checks and evaluates the auditor and makes 
recommendations to the Board of Directors.	the eval-
uation of performance and the negotiation of fees are 
conducted according to internally specified criteria. 
In 2012, the present auditor took part in three meetings 
of the Audit Committee. 

ernst & Young AG billed CHF 3.9 million for its services 
during the year under review. 	this figure included the 
audits of individual closings within Sika AG as well as of 
practically all subsidiaries and the review of the consoli-
dated financial statements. 	ernst & Young AG received 
additional fees totaling CHF 0.7 million for tax consultancy 
and CHF 0.4 million for audit-related consulting services. 

InformatIon PolIcY 
Sika informs extensively on the development of business 
in annual and quarterly reports, at the annual media and 
financial analyst conference as well as at the Annual 
General Meeting.	the continually updated website at 
www.sika.com as well as media releases regarding im-
portant developments are also integral components in 
communications. As a company listed on SIX Swiss 	ex-
change, Sika is also obligated to comply in particular with 
requirements of ad-hoc disclosure, i.e. the release of 
news which may affect its stock price. In addition, Sika 
maintains dialogue with investors and the media through 
special events and road shows. Information on important 
dates in 2013 can be found on page 156 of this report. 
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comPenSatIon rePort 
this part of the Annual Report covers the remuneration 
policy for the Board of Directors and the members of 
Group Management, as well as the process of determina-
tion of compensation.	key to the content and scope of 
this disclosure are Articles 663b bis and 663c of the Swiss 
Code of	obligations, the principles of the Swiss Code 
of Best Practice for Corporate Governance of economie-
suisse and the standard relating to information on Corpo-
rate Governance of the SIX Swiss	exchange. 

the compensation of members of the Board of Directors 
and of Group Management is presented in detail from 
page 150 onwards in	notes 19 to 20 in the Appendix to 
the Financial Statements of Sika AG and is therefore not 
repeated here. 

comPenSatIon governance 
noMInAtIon AnD CoMPenSAtIon CoMMIttee 
As defined in its Duties, Accountabilities and Responsi-
bilities, the	nomination and Compensation Committee is 
responsible of: 
–	 prepare the succession planning of the CEO and other 

members of Group Management, and to propose to the 
Board of Directors the appointment of new members of 
Group Management; 

–	 review the remuneration policy and to propose to the 
Board of Directors the compensation level (at target) 
for the members of the Board of Directors, the CEO and 
the other members of the Group Management; 

–	 provide the Board of Directors with a performance 
assessment of the CEO and of the other members of 
Group Management, together with a recommendation 

Levels of authority 

for the short-term and long-term incentives to be 
awarded to them based on their individual performance 
and the performance of the company. 

the	nomination and Compensation Committee holds its 
ordinary meetings at least three times a year: in April, in 
August and in December. 
–	 In the August meeting, the overall remuneration 

strategy is reviewed. 
–	 In the December meeting, the objectives for the CEO 

and other members of Group Management are defined 
for the following year and their total target compensa-
tion is reviewed.	the committee also reviews the com-
pensation of the Board of Directors. 

–	 In the April meeting, the committee determines the 
achievement levels of the previous year’s objectives, 
and the related incentive payouts for the CEO and the 
other members of Group Management. 

the Chairman of the	nomination and Compensation 
Committee reports to the Board of Directors after each 
meeting on the activities of the committee. 	the minutes 
of the committee meetings are available to the members 
of the Board of Directors. 

the	nomination and Compensation Committee may de-
cide to consult an external advisor from time to time 
for specific compensation matters. In addition, support 
and expertise are provided by internal compensation 
experts such as the head of Corporate Compensation 
and Benefits. In 2012, 	towers Watson, an independent 
consulting firm, was mandated to perform a review of the 
compensation of Group Management in light of the orga-
nizational changes foreseen for 2013. 

ceo nomination and board of directors 
compensation 
committee 

Compensation of Chairman	 proposes approves 

Compensation of Board of Directors	 proposes approves 

Compensation of Ceo	 proposes approves 

Compensation of Group Management	 proposes reviews approves 

Short-term bonus of Ceo	 proposes approves 

Short-term bonus of Group Management	 proposes reviews approves 

long-term incentive of Ceo	 proposes approves 

long-term incentive of Group Management	 proposes reviews approves 
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comPenSatIon of memberS of the board overview of compensation of the board of directors (per april 2012) 
of dIrectorS chf number of 
In 2012, a thorough review of the compensation of the shares 
Board of Directors has been conducted in order to 
determine its competitiveness in terms of overall level basic annual fee (gross): 
and structure.	 Chairman of the Board of individually individually 

Directors 
A peer group of selected companies, all Swiss multi-

Vice Chairman of the Board of 180 000 26national companies of the industry sector listed on the 
Directors Swiss stock exchange (SIX), has been defined.	the 

peer group consists of Clariant, Geberit, Georg Fischer, 
holcim,	lonza, Schindler, Sonova and Sulzer and is well 
balanced in terms of market capitalization, revenue 
and headcount. 	the compensation analysis was per-
formed on the basis of the 2011 disclosure in the annual 

Members of the Board of Directors 150 000 26 

committee annual fees (gross): 

Committee Chairman 50 000 

Committee Members 30 000 
compensation reports of those companies. 

on the basis of this analysis, the remuneration for the 
Board of Directors has been adjusted in order to be more 
aligned to the compensation practices of the peer 
companies: 
–	 introduction of an annual fee for committee member-

ship/chairmanship instead of the per-meeting fee; 
–	 introduction of a long-term component in the form 

of a yearly grant of shares. 

therefore, as of 2012, members of the Board of Directors 
receive an annual fee, consisting of a basic fee for ser-
vices to the Board and an additional fee for assignments 
to committees of the Board. 

Further, they receive a fix number of Sika shares at the 
end of each year of mandate. 	the shares are granted 
shortly after the Annual General Meeting and their grant 
value is the closing share price on the Swiss Stock 
exchange (SIX) at the grant date.	the shares are blocked 
from trading for a period of four years, except in case of 
change of control or liquidation, where they are unblocked 
immediately.	the shares remain blocked in all other 
instances. 

the members of the Board of Directors receive no addi-
tional reimbursements of business expenses beyond 
actual expenditures for business travel. 	the members 
of the Board do not participate in Sika’s employee 
benefit plan. 

the compensation of the Chairman of the Board of Direc-
tors is defined individually, based on the person’s skills 
and experience, and includes the following components: 
an annual basic fee, a fix number of Sika shares and a 
representation allowance. 	the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors is not eligible for committee fees. 

In 2012, the members of the Board of Directors received 
a total remuneration of CHF 3.0 million (2011: CHF 2.7 mil-
lion).	this amount comprises fix fees of CHF 1.9 million 
(2011: CHF 2.0 million), committee membership fees and 
other expenses of CHF 0.2 million (2011: CHF 0.3 million), 
cash bonus of CHF 0.1 million (2011: CHF 0.1 million), social 
security contributions of CHF 0.2 million (2011: CHF 0.3 
million) and shares of CHF 0.6 million (2011: CHF 0 million). 
the cash bonus payment and pension contributions to the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors are discontinued since 
April 2012. 

the disclosure of compensation of the Board of Directors 
in this compensation report is based on accruals for the 
first time, therefore compensation for the year 2011 is 
being restated. 

the details on compensation of the Board of Directors are 
shown in	note 19 in the Appendix to the Financial State-
ments of Sika AG on page 150 of this report. 
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comPenSatIon of the ceo and memberS of 
grouP management 
CoMPenSAtIon PRInCIPleS 
In order to ensure the company’s success in the competi-
tive global business environment, it is critical to attract, 
develop and retain qualified, talented and engaged 
employees and executives. Sika’s compensation programs 
are designed to support this fundamental objective and 
are based on the following principles: 
– Compensation is fair, equitable and transparent 
–	 Compensation levels are competitive and in line with 

market practice 
–	 Compensation is linked to individual and company 

performance 
–	 Compensation rewards sustainable and long-term 

performance 

Group Management members, like the other employees, 
are subject to a formal annual performance management 
process.	this process aims to align individual and collec-
tive objectives, to stretch performance and to support 
personal development. 

comPetItIve PoSItIonIng 
In order to set compensation in line with the market, Sika 
compares, on a yearly basis, the overall target compensa-
tion of its senior executives to that of high-ranking exec-
utives in relevant companies. Relevant companies are 
defined as multinational companies of similar size, in terms 
of revenue and employees, in the industrial and construc-
tion chemical sector and multinational companies of simi-
lar size which are listed on the SIX Swiss	exchange. 

Based on the external benchmark analysis and on internal 
peer comparisons, the	nomination and Compensation 
Committee defines the new target compensation for the 
CEO and the other members of Group Management.	the 
actual compensation paid to the individual members of 
Group Management in a given year depends on the indi-
vidual and company performance. 

In 2012, and in light of the forecoming organizational 
changes at Group Management level effective as of 
January 1, 2013, a thorough review of the remuneration of 
Group Management was conducted, with the support 
of an independent consultant, 	towers Watson. A peer 
group of selected companies, all Swiss multinational com-
panies of the industry sector listed on the SIX Swiss 
exchange, has been defined.	the peer group consists 
of Clariant, Geberit, Georg Fischer,	holcim,	lonza, 
Schindler, Sonova and Sulzer.	towers Watson gathered 
the relevant benchmarking data of the selected com-
panies through a so-called “club survey” and summarized 
them into a report.	this report has been used as basis 
for the analysis of the compensation levels for the CEO 
and the other functions of Group Management and 
for setting their compensation for the year 2013.	this 
customized survey has been conducted in the specific 
circumstances of the organizational changes in 2013 and 
will not necessarily be repeated on a yearly basis. 

ReMUneRAtIon SYSteM AnD CoMPenSAtIon 
CoMPonentS 
the compensation for members of Group Management 
includes the following components: 
– Fixed base salary 
–	 Variable compensation: short-term and long-term 

incentives 
– Benefits and perquisites 

FIXeD AnnUAl BASe SAlARY 
Annual base salaries are established on the basis of the 
following factors: 
–	 Scope, size and responsibilities of the role, and skills 

required to perform the role 
– external market value of the role 
– Skills, experience and performance of the individual 

in the role 
Base salaries of the members of Group Management are 
reviewed every year taking into consideration company’s 
affordability, benchmark information, market movement, 
economic environment and individual performance. 
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  remuneration system for members of group Management 

vehicle Purpose drivers Performance measures 

annual Base Salary Monthly cash salary Attract and retain Position, market practice 
Skills and experience of person 

Performance Bonus 
(Short-term Incentive) 

Annual bonus Pay for performance Achievement of business Group 	eBIt	and net sales 
Paid in cash and in Sika shares objectives over a 1-year period Individual objectives 

Long term Incentive Restricted stock unit with Reward long-term performance Achievement of a Group RoCe 
vesting conditional upon Align to shareholders interests objective over a 3-year period 
performance 

Benefits Pension and insurances Protection against risks Market practice 
Perquisites Attract and retain Market practice and position 

PeRFoRMAnCe BonUS (ShoRt-teRM InCentIVe) 
the Performance Bonus scheme has been redesigned 
and simplified in 2012, in order to be fully aligned with 
the company strategy of driving profitable growth. 
the Performance Bonus is a short-term variable incen-
tive designed to reward the collective performance 
of the company (“Group performance”) and the individual 
performance of the incumbent, over a time horizon of 
one year.	this variable compensation allows employees 
to participate in the company’s success while being 
rewarded for their individual performance. 

the Performance Bonus target is expressed as percent-
age of base salary.	the policy over the next years is to 
implement ranges for the Performance Bonus target for 
the CEO and the other members of Group Management 
as stated in the table below. 

Performance Bonus (StI)  targets 
as % of annual base salary 

ceo group mgt 

to be implemented over time 70–100% 60–80% 

In 2012, the Short-term Incentive target of the CEO and 
the other members of Group Management was between 
44% and 88% of annual base salary. 

the performance measures for the Group performance 
are proposed by the 	nomination and Compensation 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

For 2012, they were: 
–	 EBIT (earnings Before Interest and	tax) improvement 

during the year, relative to a peer group of companies; 
– net sales growth during the year, relative to the 

same peer group. 
EBIT improvement is weighted twice as much as net sales 
growth. 

the individual performance includes personal objectives 
that are set as part of the annual performance manage-
ment process. For the CEO and for the other members of 
Group Management, they are reviewed and approved by 
the	nomination and Compensation Committee.	the per-
sonal objectives are to be set in four different categories: 
–	 top-line contribution: growth of the business under 

responsibility 
–	 Bottom-line contribution: profitability of the business 

under responsibility 
–	 Return on invested capital:	net Working Capital of the 

business under responsibility 
– People and Projects management 

Group performance accounts for 75% of the total bonus for 
the CEO, while the individual objectives account for 25%. 
For the other members of Group Management, Group 
performance represents 60% of the bonus and the indi-
vidual performance 40%. 

At the end of the incentive year, both Group and individual 
performance are assessed against the targets set at the 
beginning of the year. 
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  Performance measures of the Short term Incentive 

ceo group management 

• 

• • 

Performance 
Bonus 

•relative group 
performance 
compared to peer group 

EBIt improvement 

net sales growth 

50% 

25% 

40% 

20% 

Individual performance 

the EBIT and net sales performance are measured based 
on an evaluation provided by an independent consulting 
firm, 	obermatt. 	this benchmark, called the	obermatt 
benchmark, compares and ranks Sika amongst the per-
formance of a selected peer group of 27 companies, all 
industrial firms with a comparable global structure and 
exposed to similar market cycles. 

the indexation of the metrics EBIT improvement and net 
sales growth neutralizes external market factors, such 
as economic cycles, exchange rate fluctuations and 
moods of the stock market. 	therefore, only the true per-
formance of the company is rewarded and not the cycles 
of the industry. 

For both objectives, the target is to be at least at the me-
dian performance of the peer group, which corresponds 
to a 100% payout factor. there is no payout for any perfor-
mance below the lower quartile of the peer group. Per-
formance at the upper quartile leads to a 150% payout 
factor and being the best in the peer group leads to 
a 200% payout factor. Any payout factor in between is 
interpolated linearly. 

For individual objectives, actual achievement is compared 
with the targets set at the beginning of the year.	the 
level of achievement for each objective determines a 
payout percentage for that target, always between 0% 
and 200%. 

the CEO provides his performance assessment of each 
member of Group Management to the 	nomination and 
Compensation Committee at year end, and formulates a 
recommendation for the bonus payout. 

top line / growth 
Bottom line / profitability 
net working capital 
People and projects 

10% 
15% 

10% 
10% 
10% 
10% 

the	nomination and Compensation Committee assesses 
the performance of the CEO and formulates a recommen-
dation for the bonus payout to the Board of Directors. the 
Committee also reviews the performance assessment 
and the proposed payout for each of the members of 
Group Management before submitting them to the Board 
of Directors for approval. 

In discussing performance, the	nomination and Compen-
sation Committee deliberates the achievement of the in-
dividual objectives of each member of Group Management. 

the Committee also considers the extent to which the 
individuals have carried out their duties in line with the 
company values and expected leadership behaviors. 

the overall bonus payout under the Short-term Incentive 
is capped and cannot exceed 150% of the bonus target. 

SIkA ShARe PURChASe PlAn 
Under the Sika Share Purchase Plan (SSPP), the members 
of Group Management must convert part of the Per-
formance Bonus into Sika shares with a blocking period 
of four years. 	the objective of this program is to 
encourage members of Group Management to directly 
participate in the long-term success of the company 
and to strengthen the link between their compensation 
and the company performance, as they are exposed to the 
share value development over the blocking period 
of four years. In return, Sika provides one matching share 
for every five shares purchased under the SSPP. 

the SSPP requires at least 20% of the Performance Bonus 
to be deferred in shares.	the participant may voluntarily 
defer a further 20% of the bonus into shares, therefore 
40% in total. 
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the shares are granted at their fair market value, which 
is defined as the average closing share price on the SIX 
Swiss	exchange during the month of February of the 
following year.	the calculation of the share grant is made 
as follows: 

number of shares granted = [(deferred percentage of 
bonus of 20% or 40%) × (actual bonus amount) × (factor 
of 1.2 for matching shares)] divided by the average clos-
ing share price in February, rounded down to the next full 
number of shares. 

In case of termination of employment due to retirement, 
death, disability, or termination without cause, the 
blocking period of the shares is accelerated. In case of 
termination for cause or resignation, the blocking 
period remains unchanged. 

lonG-teRM InCentIVe 
Sika’s remuneration policy is to also align a significant 
portion of compensation of senior management to the 
long-term company’s performance. Members of Group 
Management are eligible to a long-term equity incentive 
that links the amount of compensation to Sika’s market 
value (share price). 

Based on the compensation analysis performed in 2012, 
the portion of long-term equity compensation of the 
members of Group Management is rather low compared 
to typical practice in the peer group.	therefore, it has 
been decided to increase the long-term equity portion of 
compensation over time, with the following objective 
over the next years: 

LtI targets 
as % of annual base salary 

ceo group mgt 

to be implemented over time 100–150% 70–120% 

In 2012, the	long-term Incentive targets of the CEO and 
the other members of Group Management was between 
38% and 82% of annual base salary. 

the	long-term Incentive plan has been redesigned 
and simplified in 2012. It is now a Performance Restricted 
Stock Unit Plan. At the beginning of the plan vesting 
period, a number of Restricted Stock Units (RSU) is 
granted to each member of Group Management.	the RSU 
vest after a period of three year, under a performance 
condition, the return on capital employed (ROCE).	the 
ROCE target is determined at the beginning of the vesting 
period by the Board of Directors and is measured in the 
last year of vesting period. If the target is met, 100% of 
the RSU vest and are converted into Sika shares.	there is 
no overachievement on the long-term incentive, there-
fore the maximum payout is 100%. 

the final share allocation is determined after the 
three-year performance period, based on the following 
vesting rules: 
–	 ROCE at or above target: 

100% of the RSU vest into shares 
–	 ROCE at threshold level: 

50% of the RSU vest into shares 
–	 ROCE between threshold and target levels: 

linear interpolation 
–	 ROCE below the threshold level: 

0% of RSU vest into shares. 

the shares are allocated at their fair market value (closing 
price at grant date on the SIX Swiss	exchange), shortly 
after the Annual General Meeting in the month of April 
following the three-year vesting period. the shares have 
a further blocking period of four years, during which they 
are excluded from trading. 

LtI Plan Performance Period 

Plan year 2014 Blocking Period 
2015–2018 

Plan year 2013 Plan year 2012 

grant date 
number of rSu 

Payout date 
number of shares 

0–100% 

unblocking date 
Shares are free 

roce measurement 
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In case of termination of employment due to retirement, 
death or disability, the blocking period of the shares is 
accelerated. the granted RSU are subject to an early-
vesting, prorated for the period of the plan that was 
effectively worked, and based on an achievement payout 
of 75%. In case of termination for any other cause, such as 
resignation or involuntary termination, the shares remain 
blocked while the RSU forfeit. In case of change of control 
or liquidation, the shares are unblocked immediately and 
the Board of Directors has the discretion to determine any 
appropriate measure with regards to the RSU. 

StRUCtURe oF CoMPenSAtIon FoR MeMBeRS oF	 
GRoUP MAnAGeMent: FIXeD VeRSUS VARIABle 
CoMPenSAtIon, ShoRt-teRM VeRSUS lonG-teRM	 
CoMPenSAtIon 
the following tables and graphs show the relationship 
between fixed versus variable compensation, and the 
relationship between short-term versus long-term com-
pensation. 

fix and variable compensation CEO 

Short- and long-term compensation 
goal over next years 

ceo	� group management 

Shares 45% Cash 55% Shares 40% Cash 60% 

In 2012, the remuneration of the CEO was 62% in cash and 
38% in shares. For the other members of Group Man-
agement, the average split was 70% in cash and 30% in 
shares. 

In 2012, the members of the Group Management received 
a total remuneration of CHF 18.7 million (2011: 
CHF 20.2 million).	this amount comprises fixed salaries 
of CHF 6.5 million (2011: CHF 6.8 million), short-term 

fix and variable target Maximum bonus of CHF 5.3 million (2011: CHF 3.7 million), long-term 
compensation (% of 	target) incentives of CHF 3.2 million (2011: CHF 5.6 million), 
(goal over next years) other benefits of CHF 0.8 million (2011: CHF 0.9 million) 

and contributions to social security and post-employment 
Fix compensation 100% 100% benefits of CHF 3.0 million (2011: CHF 3.1 million). 
Variable compensation 170–250% 150% for StI 

100% for 	ltI	 the changes in base salaries are explained by the orga-
nizational changes within the Group Management in 2012. 
the increase in the short-term bonus is driven by the 

fix and variable compensation group Management very good results at Group level on both EBIT improve-
fix and variable target Maximum ment and net sales growth compared to the peer group, 
compensation (% of 	target) while the performance in 2011 was below that of the 
(goal over next years) peer group. Finally, the decrease in long-term incentives is 

due to the fact that in 2011, two long-term incentives 
Fix compensation 100% 100% were paid out, while a single long-term incentive is paid 
Variable compensation 130–200% 150% for StI 

100% for 	ltI 

In 2012, the variable compensation target of the CEO and 
the other members of Group Management was between 
78% und 151% of annual base salary.	the objective is to 
disproportionately increase the variable component of 
compensation over time, especially the long-term incen-
tive, as follows: 

out for 2012. With the new plan design of the long-term 
incentive scheme, the early achievement feature does 
no longer exist and therefore simultaneous payment of 
more than one long-term incentive is no longer possible. 

the details on compensation of members of Group Man-
agement are shown in	note 20 in the Appendix to 
the Financial Statements of Sika AG on page 151 of this 
report. 
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PenSIonS 
As the Group Management is international in its nature, 
the members participate in the benefits plans available 
in their country of contract. Benefits consist mainly of 
retirement, insurance and health care plans that are 
designed to provide a reasonable level of protection for 
the employees in respect to retirement, the risk of dis-
ability, death or illness. 

the members of Group Management with a Swiss em-
ployment contract participate in Sika’s pension plans. 
these consist of the pension fund of Sika Schweiz AG, 
in which base salaries up to an amount of CHF 132 240 
per annum are insured, as well as a supplementary plan 
in which base salaries in excess of this limit are insured. 
Sika’s pension funds exceed the legal requirements of the 
Swiss Federal	law on	occupational Retirement, Survivors 
and Disability Pension Plans (BVG). 

Members of Group Management under foreign employ-
ment contracts are insured commensurately with market 
conditions and with their position.	each plan varies in 
line with the local competitive and legal environment and 
are, as a minimum, in accordance with the legal require-
ments of the respective country. 

Moreover, an early-retirement plan is in place for mem-
bers of the top management of Sika.	the plan, entirely 
financed by the employer, is administered by a Swiss 
foundation. Beneficiaries may opt for early retirement 
from the age of 60, provided that they have been in a top 
management position for at least five years. Benefits 
under the plan are twofold: 
–	 Fixed pension payment until the age of legal retirement. 

the amount of pension depends on the last fixed salary 
and the actual age at early retirement. 

–	 Partial financing of the reduction in the regular pension 
due to early retirement. 	the amount which may be 
received as life-long pension payment or as a capital 
contribution depends on the actual age at early retire-
ment and benefits already accrued in existing pension 
plans.	this portion of the plan is only applicable to ben-
eficiaries being insured under a Swiss pension plan. 

otheR ReMUneRAtIon eleMentS 
Members of Group Management are also provided with 
certain executive perquisites such as a company car 
and other benefits in kind, according to competitive mar-
ket practice in their country of contract.	the monetary 
value of these other elements of remuneration is evalu-
ated at fair value and is disclosed in the remuneration 
statement in	note 20 in the Appendix to the Financial 
Statements of Sika AG on page 151 of this report. 

eMPloYMent ContRACtS 
the members of Group Management are employed under 
employment contracts of unlimited duration and are all 
subject to a notice period of one year. Members of Group 
Management are not contractually entitled to termina-
tion payments. In the year under review, no termination 
payments were made to members of Group Management. 

ShareholdIngS and ShareS 
At the end of 2012, members of the Board of Directors 
held a total of 3 357 shares and 200 options of Sika AG. 
At the end of 2012, members of the Group Management 
held a total of 7 301 shares of Sika AG.	this figure includes 
both privately acquired shares and those allocated under 
the Group’s compensation schemes. At the end of 2012, 
members of Group Management did not hold any options. 

the details of shareholdings of the members of the Board 
of Directors and Group Management are shown in note 21 
in the Appendix to the Financial Statements of Sika AG 
on page 152 of this report. 
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Soon two-thirdS of the world’S population live in cities and towns. 
mushrooming demands are placed on the efficiency of major buildings and 
infrastructure facilities, and the associated capacity expansion poses a fun-
damental challenge. hundreds of thousands of high-rise buildings, bridges, 
highways, road tunnels, dams and subways are decades old and scarcely able 
to accommodate the growing loads. nor do they meet contemporary eco-
nomic and ecological standards. this inevitably leads to the “refurbish or 
new-build” dilemma. its resolution depends on a project-specific appraisal 

70 000 bridges 
in the USA are in need of renovation 

GREAt PotEntiAl foR	 
REfuRbiShmEnt 

Chf 70 trillion 
is the total infrastructure investment required in 
the industrialized countries 

Chf 180 billion 
is earmarked by Brazil for infrastructure 
(new-build and renovation) in the period up to 2014 
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90% 
of Europe’s subway networks are over 
40 years old 

Chf 900 billion 
is needed by India in the period up to 2017 for 
infrastructure new-build and renovation projects 

Chf 40 000 billion 
is needed over the next 20 years to renovate 
the western world’s infrastructure 

45 000 major dams 
exist worldwide (50% in China), thousands of 
which require rehabilitation 

of cost-effectiveness and sustainability, in the knowledge that the relevant facilities 
must not be viewed individually, but as part of overriding systems. much of the built 
environment serves to promote mobility and, to safeguard this, there is often only a 
single economically and ecologically viable option, i.e. refurbishment, maintenance, 
repair or modernization. this is where Sika steps in: as with its new-build product 
and system range, Sika also offers in-depth know-how and tailored solutions for the 
repair, renewal and strengthening of existing facilities. the following pages show 
just what Sika is doing to make the built environment future-proof. 
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thE GlobAl 
ConStRuCtion PRojECt 

TexT RODERICk HönIg — PhoTo JESSICA SIEgEl 

Should we demoliSh and reconStruct, or is it better to refurbish 
buildings for the future? this question is becoming ever more pressing as 
global growth continues apace. Does this change in perspective affect 
architects and planners only, or does it have an impact on society as a whole? 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 		
	 	 		

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	
	 	 		

	 	 	 	 		
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

       
     

       
        

    

the world has already been built such as railroads, container ships, cars and however, historically significant buildings 
over – now let’s set about reno- passenger aircraft: today, these vehicles and and monuments account for only a small 
vating it! this could be the motto transport systems are still vital lifelines for proportion of this; the greater part is made 
for construction in the 21st cen- many countries and societies. these innova- up of faceless, mass-produced constructions 
tury. Declining reserves of oil and tive means of transport led to the con- built in the economic-miracle years from the 

building materials, ambitious climate tar-
gets and global urbanization require us 
to rethink how we tackle the “Global Con-
struction Project.” it is not simply a ques-
tion of constantly improving sustainability 
standards and labels, but rather, and above 
all, of taking integrated life-cycle consider-
ations into account, both when planning new 
buildings and when renovating them. the 
next generation of construction experts will 
therefore not only have to construct shiny 
new buildings but also carry out the less 
prestigious work of refurbishing, renovat-
ing, converting, consolidating and extending 
existing infrastructures and houses. 

Demographic and economic development 
forecasts also force us to reevaluate the 
current position: the UN predicts that the 
world population will stabilize at around 
nine billion people in about 2070 and not 
grow any further. by then, the process of 
urbanization in the densely populated coun-
tries such as China and india will be largely 
complete, with over three-quarters of the 
world’s inhabitants living in towns and 
cities. this means that a great deal of work 
still remains to be done on the “Global Con-
struction Project” 
before 2070, and 
also that growth 

struction of roads, railway tracks, runways, 
bridges, tunnels and dams. meanwhile, 
engineers pressed ahead with providing and 
standardizing the supply and safe disposal 
of electricity, water, gas and waste, first in 
towns, and then in rural areas. At the same 
time, telecommunications were steadily 
expanding – a construction project that is 
still experiencing frenzied growth today. 
this complex network of transport, supply 
and disposal systems formed the technical 
basis for huge economic and urban advanc-
es, especially in the 20th century. 

the fruits of industrialization could then 
be harvested in the last century: in other 
words, the “capital infrastructure” was 
managed successfully. it was the century of 
tertiarization, when the industrial society 
was transformed into a service economy. by 
adding the supply of services to the techni-
cal infrastructure built up by their parents, 
our fathers and mothers paved the way for 
unprecedented growth and prosperity. this 
can be seen from the countless homes built 
in the 20th century. it is also evident from 
the technical infrastructure, the foundations 
of which were established by industrializa-

1950s to the 1970s. Renovating them will 
require care in formulating what is needed, 
as well as innovative technical solutions and 
fresh architectural ideas, for if we wish to 
achieve our climate targets and satisfy the 
demand for sustainable construction, we 
must reflect more deeply than before on the 
theme of renovation. it is necessary to de-
velop ideas and techniques which will safe-
guard or at least convert the vast amounts 
of grey energy stored in the buildings dating 
from the post-war period. 

A look at how the world is currently manag-
ing its resources reveals the importance of 
considering the life cycle of a building in an 
integrated manner, and reevaluating the 
“building stock resources.” for example, the 
Global footprint network has calculated 
that mankind is currently consuming the 
resources of one-and-a-half planets. this 
means that the Earth takes over 18 months 
to produce the amount we consume in one 
year. Reevaluating the “building stock re-
sources” means above all investigating the 
options of refurbishing, renovating, convert-
ing and consolidating before choosing the 
new-build option. it is only by working on 

the existing stock 
that we can opti-
mally exploit the 

and stagnation will A lOOk At HOw tHE wORlD IS CURREntly “production energy” 
balance each other contained in a build-mAnAgIng ItS RESOURCES REvEAlS tHE 
out in two genera- ing and not let it dis-
tions. it follows that ImpORtAnCE Of COnSIDERIng tHE lIfE CyClE Of appear uselessly. 
a change of outlook A BUIlDIng In An IntEgRAtED mAnnER, AnD 
is already required there is a multi-
for the 21st century – REEvAlUAtIng tHE “BUIlDIng StOCk RESOURCES.” tude of post-war 
the built environ-
ment is no longer 
just the objective, 
but will increasingly 
be the point of departure. 

A short trip back to the beginnings of 200 
years of ongoing exponential growth shows 
that social and economic development is 
usually sustainable when it is based on man-
aging the resources available. Global growth 
started with industrialization, i.e. the switch 
from agrarian to industrial production in 
the 19th century. it turned society and the 
economy upside down and created a new 
world order which still holds today. industri-
alization brought a massive increase in the 
movement of goods and people, which led 
to revolutionary technical achievements 

tion. this infrastructure underpins our soci-
ety and economy. transport and communi-
cation systems, utilities and waste disposal, 
protective structures – all are crucial to the 
smooth functioning of our social and eco-
nomic coexistence. 

in the 21st century, too, it is our task to man-
age the capital invested by our predecessors, 
and to do so as effectively and sustainably 
as we can. here, managing does not simply 
mean building – it also means continuing to 
care for the existing stock. After all, most of 
the “Global Construction Project” consists 
of post-war infrastructure and housing. 

buildings requiring 
renovation, not only 
because they were 
often poorly built 

and have deteriorated over the years, but 
also because they are no longer able to meet 
the demands placed on them. this huge 
mass of buildings can be divided into three 
groups: technical infrastructure, commercial 
buildings and housing. owners of high-rise 
blocks are being prompted to perform an 
energy upgrade on their buildings not only 
because of more demanding requirements in 
terms of utilization and comfort, but also for 
economic reasons. they can thus make huge 
savings on energy consumption and energy 
costs, particularly in post-war buildings. in 
this respect ecological considerations are 
backed up by economic arguments, since the 
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energy costs generated by a building during its lifetime can account 
for up to two-thirds of the original construction costs. A study by 
TH Projektmanagement in berlin shows that post-war buildings in 
particular have a great deal of potential. it points out that houses 
in Europe that were built before 1980 account for 95% of the energy 
used for heating, hot water, cooling, lighting and ventilation. the 
energy costs saved were just one key factor in the decision to adapt 
a former large dairy (on the toni site) in central Zurich. the vast 
industrial building dating from 1974 is now being converted into 
Switzerland’s largest art college. Various departments which had 
previously been scattered over 44 different locations in the econom-
ic metropolis are being brought together on the 92 000 m² site. A 
75-meter-high tower containing 100 rented apartments is also rising 
out of the old building. this means that the area will also be used at 
night. the project managers decided against a new-build for a num-

span, the bearing capacity of the towers was increased and old steel 
replaced, old rivets were burnt out and replaced with new ones made 
of hardened steel, and more stress-resistant steel girders were sub-
stituted for transverse beams. 

the situation regarding the eastern span was more complicated, and 
a decision had to be made as to whether to strengthen it or rebuild 
it. the local authority decided to replace the entire eastern span as 
far as the main bridge with a new construction. After a long and 
labyrinthine planning phase, construction began in 2002, with the 
first cars expected to drive over the strait in 2007. however, count-
less changes as the project developed completely upset both 
schedule and costs. the bridge is now due to open in fall 2013. mean-
while the costs have soared, making the project the most expensive 
in the history of California. today, the cost of the eastern span is 

estimated at an incredible USd 6.3 billion. 
the bay bridge project demonstrates how 
renovation often represents a more feasible 
solution than a risky new-build. Yet like DEClInIng OIl RESERvES AnD OtHER fOSSIl fUElS, 
the famous suspension bridge in California, 

AlOng wItH ClImAtE CHAngE, ARE HAvIng many other constructions used for supply 
and disposal, transport systems and pro-A gREAtER ImpACt On glOBAl SEttlEmEnt AnD 
tection cannot be replaced so easily if this 

COnStRUCtIOn DEvElOpmEnt In tHE 21St CEntURy means closing them temporarily. too many 
people and businesses depend on them. tHAn wE ImAgInE, AnD tHIS REqUIRES US tO 

tHInk In nEw wAyS.
�

ber of reasons. first, the existing building was very robust and was 
always intended for high-capacity use. Second, planning regulations 
meant that a new-build would have resulted in significantly less us-
able space, running contrary to the principle of urban consolidation. 
Replacing the building would also have required enormous quantities 
of building materials and produced tonnes of waste. furthermore, 
experts calculated that over 44 000 truck journeys will be saved by 
converting the building instead of constructing a new one. in fall 
2013, around 5 000 students and workers will bring the old dairy 
back to life and transform the former industrial site into Zurich’s 
new creative hub. 

technical infrastructure buildings are the second-large group for 
which the question of renovation or replacement looms large. many 
of these are not keeping pace with the growth of the cities they 
serve, or they will soon reach that point. Specialists have outlined 
the scope for renovating infrastructure buildings throughout the 
world: CHF 40 000 billion will need to be invested worldwide in the 
next twenty years in order to renovate roads, rail links, and wa-
ter and power utilities in the western world and build new ones in 
emerging nations, according to a study by morgan Stanley invest-
ment management. bridges in the united States are in a particu-
larly parlous state. this is shown by figures from the American 
Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE): one in four of the 280 000 or so 
bridges are unstable or unfit for purpose. one of these is bay bridge, 
which links San francisco with oakland and had to be renovated 
after the 1989 earthquake. it was opened in 1936 after three years 
under construction, and has since been subject to a constant round 
of improvement, renovation and upgrading. today about 280 000 
vehicles drive over the bridge each day on two decks. After the 1989 
earthquake, the authorities decided that this “lifeline” should be 
able to withstand a quake with a magnitude of 8.5. on the western 

Declining oil reserves and other fossil fuels, 
along with climate change, are having a 
greater impact on global settlement and 
construction development in the 21st cen-

tury than we imagine, and this requires us to think in new ways. the 
key concepts are refurbishment, renovation, revitalization, conver-
sion, consolidation and extension. When tackling the ramshackle 
infrastructures and antiquated buildings of the post-war years, the 
new-build option will therefore receive significant competition 
from the refurbishment option. 

With its life-cycle concept, Sika is in an ideal position to handle 
both options – new-build and refurbishment. Sika can be relied on 
throughout the entire life cycle of commercial buildings, residential 
properties and infrastructure constructions, from initial construc-
tion through decades of use up to the point when refurbishments, 
renovations or extensions are due or modifications to the building 
or its operations become necessary. Sika provides the optimum 
technologies for every phase of this life cycle: from “roof to floor” – 
available worldwide and adapted to local conditions anywhere in the 
world. its extensive range of admixtures, waterproofing, flooring 
or system solutions for refurbishment and renovation provides Sika 
with enormous, fast-growing market potential: both in the con-
structed world and the one still to be built. • 
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jessica Siegel explores the metaphor of the city as an organism 
for the Sika annual report. her subtle scenic vision of tokyo over-
turns expectations of the city’s image. her photographs release the 
pulsating life of the city, transforming noisy stillness into an echo 
chamber. 

jessica Siegel lives and works in Würzburg and berlin. She is rapidly 
making a name for herself in editorial photography and publishes in 
well-known journals and magazines. 
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foCuS on thE builDinG EnVEloPE	
 

tightneSS of the building envelope is becoming an ever more important 
factor in terms of enhancing energy efficiency and increasing the life span of 
a building. the purpose of sealing and protecting the building enclosure is to 
prevent the passage of air or water, to provide thermal and sound insulation, 
and to enhance the visual appearance of the whole construction. 

Abuilding needs a high-performance envelope that pro-
vides unyielding protection from the elements. Every 
portion of the building’s outer structure, from roof 
and exterior walls to basement, may be vulnerable to 
water intrusion and weathering causing wet insulation, 

air leakage and premature deterioration of construction materials. 
these problems often result in costly maintenance and repair, exor-
bitant energy costs, poor indoor air quality – even a shortened life 

span for the building itself. Sika provides a broad range of solutions 
to completely seal the building enclosure, stop water intrusion and 
control air leakage for both new construction and restoration: for 
instance high-performance roofing products, concrete protection, 
repair mortars, façade sealants, fenestration and structural glaz-
ing sealants, joint sealing, protective coatings and waterproofing 
systems. 
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A good example of a building envelope renewal project is the ongo-
ing renovation of a property on 215 East 68th Street in new York 
City. the building was completed in 1962 and includes office rental 
space as well as 608 residential apartments. the owner has a long-
range perspective and focus on using materials that will provide the 
best value and longevity. A long-term façade repair solution was 
needed, which the owner also took as an opportunity to improve the 
energy efficiency of the building by adding insulation and installing 
an air/water barrier membrane. 

Sikagard®-560, a waterborne vapor-permeable water and air barrier 
membrane, was selected. it was important to the building owner 
for the product to be free from strong odor and toxic fumes and that 
the cured membrane would tolerate substrate movement. the 
early strength gaining repair mortar SikaRepair®-223 was selected 
to repair and patch the mortar joints, cracks and voids of the exist-
ing concrete wall structure to provide a uniform substrate before 
applying the membrane.	it was also decided that the roof and balcony 
waterproofing systems would be replaced as part of the project 
remit. the old membrane is being removed and the surfaces water-
proofed with the Sikalastic® RoofPro system. 

the project will span over 3 years, but the length of time for the re-
pair and construction work going on outside each residence is limited 
to 5 days. With such tight time windows it is of the utmost impor-
tance that the selected products and systems work flawlessly and 
are mutually compatible. What is more, Sika was chosen as it was 
the only company that could provide the owner with a single-source 
solution for the entire project. 

According to the American environmental protection agency EPA, 
buildings are responsible for 39% of total energy consumption and 
account for 68% of electricity use. Sika has the full range of in-
tegrated, compatible products and systems to produce superior 
protection for the building envelope. And the technical knowledge 
needed to fully support designers and building owners with build-
ing envelope solutions that safeguard structures from deteriora-
tion, that help them to maximize their return on investment and 
to promote sustainability. • 

An ongoing building envelope renewal project is the renovation of the prop-
erty on 215 East 68th Street in new york City. the owner looked for a long-
term façade repair solution which should also improve the energy efficiency 
of the building. 

Repair mortar SikaRepair®-223 was selected to repair and patch the mortar 
joints, cracks and voids of the existing concrete wall structure to provide a 
uniform substrate before applying the membrane. 

Sikagard®-560, a waterborne vapor permeable membrane was applied as a 
water and air barrier before installing the insulation and the new exterior 
rain screen cladding system. 
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Refurbishment of buildings and 
infrastructure is very important 
in today’s construction business. 
Sika is a global player in the re-
furbishment market. Different 

technologies can be used in refurbishment, 
from ready-to-use cementitious mortars to 
structural strengthening solutions. 

dR. Luz gRanizo 
corporate technology head Refurbishment 
head technology center spain 

the driving forces behind Sika’s Research 
and Development activities are multi-
faceted: on the one hand, global trends and 
corporate R & d strategy have an impact 
on our research work, on the other hand, 
products have to be extensively adapted to 
local markets. 

At Sika, ten technology Centers in America, 
Europe and Asia are responsible for trigger-
ing innovation and for developing products 
that meet customer requirements. the 
technology Center in Spain has primary re-
sponsibility for developments in the area of 
refurbishment. the technology strategy for 
refurbishment balances market needs with 
corporate needs. market needs vary from 
country to country. to adapt to these needs, 
Sika sets up facilities close to the consumer 
market and uses local raw materials. Great 
effort goes into fulfilling restrictive “green” 
regulations with new products. At the same 
time, the technology Center has to keep 
costs under control and make sure that the 
new developments are profitable. 

in general, there are three main market 
trends in refurbishment : 
˔ Speed to market: this means simplified 

planning, reduced demolition and being 
able to reuse or recycle materials from 
existing buildings or infrastructure, which 
results in shorter construction time. 

˔ optimization of costs: Avoiding total de-
molition and reconstructing major existing 
elements should result in capital cost 
savings of at least 20%, even on major 
projects. 

˔ Sustainability: the reuse of construction 
fabric and improvements to the buildings’ 
performance in use mean that the overall 
environmental impact of refurbishment 
is likely to be lower than that of a newly 
built building or infrastructure. 

to fulfil these market needs, R & d has to 
find the right balance between economic 
and ecological considerations with its new, 
innovative products. one example of a prod-
uct innovation Sika is working on is a “green 
grout.” SikaGrout® is a high-performance 
cementitious mortar. Continuously improved 
over the years, it is widely used in construc-
tion and refurbishment. R & d has developed 
ways to partly replace the cement content 
with industrial by-products such as fly ash. 
SikaGrout®-324 RC will have a low carbon 
footprint and will lead to cost optimization 
in terms of energy and CO2 taxes. it will set 
an industry benchmark. 

our R & d activities have to cope with very 
different situations in the local markets, 
thereby adapting properly in order to con-
stantly reach the highest quality standards 
and provide outstanding Sika service to cus-
tomers worldwide. • 

innoVAtion thRouGh motiVAtion 
AnD inSPiRAtion 

our technology center takeS global trends and local market 
needs into consideration when developing technologically advanced 
products and systems. the goal is to develop successful products for 
the refurbishment of buildings and infrastructure facilities. 
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ExtEnDinG thE lifE CYClE 

the built environment iS in need of refurbishment. maintenance and 
renewal make both economic and ecological sense. Sika has embraced 
the challenge. Armed with innovative products and new processes, it is 
well prepared to make ageing buildings and infrastructure facilities fit 
for the decades ahead. 
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1 EmpIRE StAtE BUIlDIng 
transforming to new york’s 
greenest building 

new York has some 6 000 buildings that 
are more than 32 stories tall. Well over 
50 of these are 200-m-plus skyscrapers. 
And, though never designed for such a long 
service life, several thousand of them are 
more than 50 years old. much of what, from 
afar, appears intact falls short of contem-
porary technical and ecological standards 
upon closer inspection. 

Erected in 1930/1931, the Empire State building 
ranks among new York's most heavily fre-
quented buildings, attracting some 4 million 
visitors each year. As an architectural mon-
ument of global standing, it merits partic-
ularly careful maintenance. As a result, 
roughly half a billion US dollars have been 
committed in recent years on its ongoing 
renovation and transformation into the 
city’s most eco-friendly building. the over-
haul is set to achieve energy savings in the 
order of 38%. hence, the comprehensive, 
holistic refurbishment is not only designed 
to preserve a piece of the city’s architec-
tural and cultural heritage, but to lay the 
foundations for sustainable economic and 
ecological gains. the Empire State building 
has a total of 6 500 windows that had to 
be renovated in the course of the project. 
the refurbishment process was simplified by 
the use of a special on-site processing 

center, where the windows were upgraded 
to contemporary standards. here they 
were sealed with Sikaglaze® IG-4429 HM 
to increase their insulation value. Applying 
Sikasil®-200 MJS, they were then refitted 
water- and airtight. 95% of the original glass 
could be reused. official measurements at-
test that in 2011 this method saved some 
CHF 400 000 in energy costs. At the same 
time, 10 000 m² of cornices, roof terraces 
and cladding elements were renovated and 
made watertight using the Sikalastic® Roof-
Pro-621 waterproofing system. now the 
very part of the building is being renewed 

that makes it at all usable: the elevator 
shafts. Sikatop®-123 repair mortar is used 
to secure the inside walls of the shafts. 

the fact that all products and systems come 
from a single source plays no small part in 
Sika being able to carry out a cross-building 
renovation of this nature with such success. 
Sika’s range of services and processes for 
renovating and renewing building structures 
will be in use in the construction industry all 
over the world in the near future: the global 
potential is huge. • 

RobERt cLaRkE 
Senior Director Commercial Sales 
Alpen High performance products 

• 
wItH tHE HElp Of 
OUR Own On-SItE pRO-
CESSIng CEntER, wE 
wERE ABlE tO UpgRADE 
tHE EmpIRE StAtE 
BUIlDIng’S 6 500 
wInDOwS tO COntEm-
pORARy StAnDARDS 
wHIlE REUSIng 95% Of 
tHE glASS. 

the Empire State Building has undergone several years of renovation resulting in a significant 
reduction of the skyscraper’s ecological footprint. the cuts in energy use, achieved despite the Sika Annual Report 2012 

rigorous demands placed on utility and comfort, will save millions of dollars each year. REfuRbiShmEnt • 77 
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2
SyDnEy HARBOUR BRIDgE like hundreds of thousands of other bridges ensure durable bonding between the asphalt 
two weekends bring worldwide, this structure faced a series of overlay and the membrane. two weekends, 
decades-long benefits problems – increasing age, loads and user num- during which the entire 10 000 m² bridge sur-

bers – which, in combination, became even face was renovated, were sufficient to make 
more acute. After 80 years of service, the con- the structure fit for the coming decades. 

the existing built environment – and infra-
structure facilities in particular – harbor many 
of the construction sector’s main opportuni-
ties and challenges. hundreds of thousands of 
bridges worldwide have now aged to an extent 
that they are overstretched by the increasing 
loads and capacity demands. At the same time, 
their economic significance as key nodes in the 
transport network is far too great to permit 
any disruption through demolition and rebuild-
ing. the lifelines of the economy cannot be 
interrupted. bridges, like high-rise blocks, road 
tunnels and dams, suffer an immense renova-
tion backlog, which opens up new markets for 
Sika. 

the Sydney harbour bridge is a prime illustra-
tion. An irreplaceable engineering monument 
and cultural icon, the bridge has long been 
the city’s most familiar landmark. Construction 
of the 1 140 m long bridge, which has a maxi-
mum span of 503 m, started in 1924. it was 
inaugurated in 1932. it is wide enough to 
accommodate railroad and tram lines, eight 
lanes of traffic, plus sidewalk and cycle path. 
Some 160 000 vehicles cross the bridge every 
day despite the alternative route offered by 
the harbour tunnel, which was opened in 1992 
to relieve congestion. the Sydney harbour 
bridge remains one of the key routes into the 
city center. 

crete surfacing of the carriageway began 
to leak, leading to corrosion of the steelwork 
and compromising structural stability. how-
ever, use of the new fast-curing Sikalastic® 
waterproofing system made it possible to seal 
the bridge and successfully halt corrosion. the 
system consists of primers, a waterproofing 
liquid membrane and the newly developed 
Sikalastic®-827 HT hot melt pellets, which 

the Sydney harbour bridge is a perfect 
illustration of how, using Sika’s state-of-the-
art technology, infrastructure facilities can 
be sustainably renovated in line with future 
demands without any major operational 
disruption. • 

anthony RobERts aLEx daRE 
CEO and Owner Operations manager 
Concrete Remedial Services Concrete Remedial Services 

• 
tHAnkS tO SIkA’S nEw wAtERpROOfIng SyStEm, 
twO wEEkEnDS’ wORk wAS SUffICIEnt tO 
REnOvAtE tHE BRIDgE CARRIAgEwAy AnD pUt tHE 
StEEl StRUCtURE IntO An ADEqUAtE COnDItIOn tO 
ACCOmmODAtE tHE lOADS fOR DECADES tO COmE. 

• Corrosion can cause serious damage to loadbearing structures. Specially developed for the efficient 
execution of renovation projects, Sika’s waterproofing technologies deliver effective and lasting 
protection. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 
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3 lOnDOn UnDERgROUnD were recorded in 2011/2012. the tube is only 4.7 mm thick, the strengthening plates 
putting things to rights used by up to four million passengers each reduced tunnel headroom only minimally. 
while the city sleeps weekday. the plates were installed every weekday night 

during the so-called engineering hours, i.e., 
At Embankment station, two tunnel tubes between 1 a.m. and 5 a.m. when no trains 

the london underground, commonly known 
as “the tube,” is the oldest, and still the 
second-largest, subway system in the world. 
its overall length runs to 402 km, most of 
the lines having been built in the early twen-
tieth century, so they are now between 60 
and 150 years old. Around 1.2 billion journeys 

run at different depths. the uppermost 
tunnel was constructed using the cut-and-
cover method, i.e., a large trench was first 
excavated and then roofed over. the cast-
iron tunnel ceiling beams, which carry the 
full weight of the structures above, date 
from 1870 and now, some 140 years later, 
were urgently in need of renewal. Yet, this 
subway line alone carries hundreds of 
thousands of passengers per day. Around 
2 million of them get on or off at Embankment 
station each year, equivalent to 30 000 a 
day. these passenger volumes made a new-
build solution absolutely unfeasible: renova-
tion – without any disruption to services – 
was the only option. 

the primary aim of the renovation program 
in the District line tunnels on either side of 
Embankment station was to enhance safety 
by strengthening the “age-old” cast-iron 
beams. this was achieved using the innova-
tive Sika® CarboDur® UHM carbon-fiber-
reinforced polymer (CFRP) system: being 

were running. Every night, the scaffolding 
was relocated, the cast-iron beams cleaned 
and primed, then coated with Sikadur® epoxy 
adhesive. the Sika® CarboDur® CFRP plates 
were then fixed to the beams. in all, some 
1 300 m of strengthening plates were in-
stalled within five months, at a rate of two 
beams per night. thanks to Sika’s solution, 
the overall project was completed bang 
on schedule and without any disruption to 
services. the 90 tunnel ceiling beams are 
now well equipped to support the loads of 
another 100 years. 

the Embankment station tunnel project is 
just one of many examples that showcase 
the use of Sika products and systems in 
infrastructure maintenance. Sika is active 
worldwide in refurbishment projects where 
the aim is to make existing structures fit for 
the future. indeed, for Sika, it can truly be 
claimed that the past is a future market. • 

kEvin jonEs 
Regional manager 
Concrete Repairs ltd. 

• 
tHAnkS tO SIkA’S 
SOlUtIOn, tHE OvERAll 
pROJECt wAS COmplEtED 
BAng On SCHEDUlE 
AnD wItHOUt Any 
DISRUptIOn tO SERvICES. 

A new, cutting-edge technique using the Sika® CarboDur® UHM system has given the 140-year-old 
cast-iron beams a new lease of life. the beams supporting the tunnel ceiling and structure above were Sika Annual Report 2012 

strengthened during the engineering hours between 1 a.m. and 5 a.m. REfuRbiShmEnt • 79 
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4 tD gARDEn BOStOn 
A new, recycled roof 

“time is money.” Yet, on some construction 
projects, speed is not the only decisive 
factor – especially where any disruption to 
a facility’s operation is out of the question. 
here, the 20 000-seat Td Garden in boston, 
one of the premier sports and entertain-
ment arenas in the US, is a case in point. the 
venue hosts the home games of the boston 
Celtics and the boston bruins with their 
legacy of championships. it is also graced by 
pop stars such as madonna and lady Gaga. 
Any temporary closure would have been 
unthinkable, for spectators, celebrities and 
operator alike. 

Yet, the Td Garden roof showed signs of 
ageing and needed urgent replacement, 
without any disruption to the game sched-
ule. moreover, given its commitment to 
sustainable business practice, the building 
owner, Delaware north Companies, demand-
ed an eco-friendly renovation concept for 
the Td Garden project. 

one particular focus was on the strategy 
of “urban mining,” an increasingly common 
component in sustainable building solutions: 
this is founded on a view of the urban land-
scape not only as an ensemble of buildings 
and infrastructure, but also as a storehouse 
for raw materials. Accordingly, whenever a 
building is deconstructed or renovated, the 
existing materials are recycled and reused. 
incorporating reclaimed materials in new 
buildings and avoiding tons of waste makes 
a major contribution to sustainability. 

When the Td Garden roof was removed, 
the existing polymer membranes were 
salvaged and used in the production of new 
Sika® Sarnafil® membranes. the insulation 
was also recycled. to achieve long-term 
improvements in energy efficiency, a white 
Sika® Sarnafil® EnergySmart Roof® with 
10 cm insulation was specified as the re-
placement. the gutters were water-
proofed using Sikalastic® RoofPro liquid 
applied membrane. Since this product is 
fully compatible with the Sika Sarnafil roof 
membranes, the two systems integrated 
seamlessly and came with a single-source 
warranty. 

john kaRman 
Senior project manager 
wessling Architects 

• 
DElAwARE nORtH IS 
COmmIttED tO 
SUStAInABlE BUSInESS 
pRACtICES AnD InCOR-
pORAtED tHAt tHInkIng 
IntO tHE tD gARDEn 
pROJECt. tHE ExIStIng 
mEmBRAnES wERE 
REmOvED AnD USED In 
tHE pRODUCtIOn Of nEw 
SIkA® SARnAfIl® mEm-
BRAnES. A nEw EnERgy- 
EffICIEnt ROOfIng 
SyStEm wAS InStAllED 
AS REplACEmEnt. 

the project team, comprising Wessling 
Architects, Shawmut Design and Construction, 
Greenwood industries and Sika® Sarnafil®, 
managed to renew the entire, approximately 
14 500 m² barrel roof within 15 months while 
maintaining business-as-usual operation 
of the venue below. the renovation project 
not only significantly improved the build-
ing’s energy and ecological performance, but 
also enhanced its aesthetic appeal. 

Td Garden perfectly illustrates how the right 
team armed with the right products can 
successfully deliver a tough reroofing project 
even under the most taxing conditions. • 

Any idea of shutting down the tD garden – one of the premier arenas in the US – for months on 
Sika Annual Report 2012 end to renovate the roof was completely unrealistic. Sika® Sarnafil®’s products and know-how neatly 

80 • REfuRbiShmEnt resolved the problem to the full satisfaction of both owner and spectators. 

• 



	 	 	 	 	

	 	

   
   

   
 
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 		

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

              
              

    

  
      

 

 
   

   
 

   
  

   
  

   
   
   

5 pUmAREJO BRIDgE 
Strengthening a major traffic 
artery in Colombia 

bridges – and existing bridges in particular – 
offer immense market potential for Sika 
and its customers. most are in need of repair 
or even full-scale rehabilitation some 30–40 
years after original construction. 

As a single-source provider for the full range 
of concrete and steel bridge renovation 
products, Sika is ideally positioned. not only 
does it offer mutually compatible products 
and systems to meet any particular require-
ment, it is above all able to provide custom-
er advice and support based on in-depth 
know-how and 100 years of experience. 
these are indispensable prerequisites for 
sustainable solutions on projects such as 
bridge renovations. 

Colombia’s Pumarejo bridge is one of the 
latest and most spectacular examples in this 
regard. it illustrates why, how and where 
bridges age rapidly, along with the options 
for remedial action. 

As the most important bridge in Colombia, 
measuring 1 500 m from shore to shore, the 
Pumarejo bridge was opened in the 1970s 
and now carries one of the country’s major 
traffic arteries. it is supported by 56 piers, 
with maximum spans of 140 m, and its 
concrete structure is widely regarded as an 
engineering icon. 

Yet, after nearly 40 years in service, the 
bridge began to show its age and, as of 
2006, underwent a progressive rehabilita-
tion program that recently came to a 
successful conclusion. in the course of the 
project only Sika products were used. 

the Pumarejo bridge is exposed to virtually 
all types of action that are harmful to 
bridges – capillary water, static and dy-
namic loads, temperature fluctuations, car-
bonation, saltwater, erosion and abrasion –, 
which additionally complicated the repair 

joRgE REndón 
product Engineer for Structural Rehabilitation 
Sika Colombia 

• 
nOw tHAt tHE 
pUmAREJO BRIDgE HAS 
BEEn SUCCESSfUlly 
REnOvAtED USIng SIkA 
pRODUCtS AnD SyStEmS, 
It wIll nEED Only 
ROUtInE mAIntEnAnCE 
In tHE COmIng DECADES. 
tHE InvEStmEnt HAS 
pAID DIvIDEnDS fOR All 
COnCERnED. 

process. Sika’s products and systems such 
as corrosion inhibitors, repair mortars, 
protective coatings and carbon-fiber-based 
strengthening systems, nonetheless 
allowed the full eco-efficient rehabilitation 
of the bridge such that only routine main-
tenance will be required in the decades 
ahead. • 

the full-scale renovation project has given this engineering icon a new future. the pumarejo Bridge 
will now be able to handle the rising traffic volumes, increased loads and fluctuating environmental Sika Annual Report 2012 

actions for years to come. REfuRbiShmEnt • 81 
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SuStAinAblE DEVEloPmEnt iS A	 
PRoCESS, not A fixED StAtE 

InTervIew RoDERiCk höniG — PhoTo mARC EGGimAnn 

what iS the future role of renovation? how has the construction 
industry changed with regard to optimizing operation and maintenance? 
hans-Rudolf Schalcher, Professor Emeritus for Planning and management 
in Construction at the Swiss federal institute of technology (Eth) Zurich, 
talks about the construction needs of the 21st century. 

as Prof. dr. hans Rudolf schalcher 
sees it, “the more affluent a 
society, the greater its need for 
buildings and infrastructure.” 

roderick hönig: major cities across the globe 
continue to grow. by 2030, two thirds of the 
world’s inhabitants will live in urban centers. 
how will this trend affect the way we handle the 
existing built stock? 
hanS-rudolf Schalcher: the global urban 
ization we are witnessing today is an irreversible 
process. the expansion of the big cities has major 
implications, above all, for the technical infra 
structure at these locations, the reason being that 
growing development densities place a greater 
strain on infrastructure facilities. their renewal 
always involves the question as to whether a 
capacity increase is needed. 

What factors nowadays determine which of the 
two options renovation or replacement to 
adopt? 
While the foremost criteria are financial and eco 
logical, the decision should always be governed by 
an overall perspective. take a heavily trafficked 

bridge, for instance. Whenever important and 
valuable facilities like this get long in the tooth, 
the same question always arises: should we 
retain and repair them or should we replace them 
and increase capacity and loadability at the same 
time? Renovation is inherently more eco friendly 
than replacement. this is because new builds tie 
up vast amounts of materials and energy at one 
site for one purpose. moreover, demolishing exist 
ing facilities automatically entails considerable 
transportation volumes. 

futurologists predict an even balance between 
growth and stagnation towards the end of the 
21st century. Would such a scenario bring about 
any shift in the importance afforded to renovat 
ing the built environment? 
there is no universal answer to this question as 
it depends on the level of development in the re 
gion concerned. China is currently experiencing 
8% growth, in both economic and demographic 
terms. Europe, on the other hand, is hit by stag 
nating economic and population trends. there 
can be no balanced solution at global level to the 
renovation needs of the built stock: some regions 
are struggling with growth, others are in the 
grips of stagnation, and these are two very differ 
ent propositions. 

although the end of the 21st century is still far 
away, a long term view is nonetheless essential 
for planning and design. What horizons are nor 
mal for today’s construction facilities? 
this varies according to the level of development. 
60 to 70 years are now standard for technical 
infrastructure while 30 years i.e. a single genera 
tion tend to be the norm for buildings. in the 
early days of industrialization, buildings, road 
and rail networks or energy supply systems were 
designed for a service life of 20 to 30 years. highly 

SSiikkaa AAnnnnuuaall RReeppoorrtt 22001122 
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developed countries can no longer afford 
such short term thinking and we have 
significantly extended the projected life span 
of our facilities. Yet as horizons lengthen, 
the uncertainty surrounding the accuracy of 
forecasts automatically increases. 

does it make sense, despite this uncer 
tainty, to design and build facilities for the 
next 60 to 70 years? 
Yes, because it is ridiculous to design and 
produce systems that are so expensive 
to construct, operate and maintain for a 
service life of only 20 to 30 years. Quite 
apart from that, the additional investment 
needed to double a structure s life span is 
often relatively low compared to the cost of 
constructing a facility built to last for only 
a single generation. 

is greater weight now attached to life cycle 
analysis in design and construction? 
Yes, without a doubt. today, life cycle analy 
sis is not just used for consumer products, 
but is also widely applied in the construction 
industry. the relevant issues are addressed 
as early as the design stage: what is the 
targeted service life of the facility? how well 
equipped is it to accommodate a potential 
rise in demand? how can it be renovated 
and, ultimately, deconstructed ? 

are sustainability criteria given adequate 
priority today when facilities are undergo 
ing renovation? 
Economic factors are still prioritized over 
environmental and social considerations. 
Yet, here too, we should not over generalize: 
various major infrastructure refurbishment 
projects can be cited that give extremely 
high priority to ecological issues. Sustain 
able development is a process, not a fixed 
state. in Switzerland, for example, we are on 
the right path and our efforts compare well 
with those of our international partners. 
but we are still a long way from where we 
need to be. 

doesn’t the move to sustainable refurbish 
ment also mean reappraising our comfort 
demands? 
Yes, unfortunately, it does. We will not be 
able to meet the requirements imposed by 
sustainable development without tightening 
our belts. if the highly industrialized coun 
tries are genuinely committed to sustain 
able development, they will have to accept 
a somewhat lower level of affluence. the 
question we need to ask is: how can we use 
the existing facilities and infrastructure 
to meet our growing needs? 

What other sectors “compete” for funding 
with, say, major infrastructure refurbish 
ment projects? 
the more affluent a society, the greater 
its need for buildings and infrastructure. 
Yet, the tight controls on public sector 
spending in every country have inevitably 
sparked a battle for the available resources. 
Refurbishment s most serious competi 
tors include health care and education. the 
demand of the world s population for a 
long and healthy life is unbroken and no 
where near being satisfied. Similarly, the 
spiraling requirements placed on education 
reflect the view of a comprehensive school 
ing as the best means of safeguarding 
competitiveness. however, not all wishes 
can be granted. this balancing act in sharing 
out the available funds is a highly sensitive 
political and social issue. 

• 

Due to their status as common property, 
they are financed and maintained primarily 
through taxation. i personally think that 
the consumer pays principle should also 
apply to transport by means of a mobility 
pricing system. 

What changes have there been in the 
construction process to factor in future 
refurbishment? 
Surface mounted piping and wiring was 
once standard practice in residential proper 
ties. this was very convenient for main 
tenance, renovation and replacement. in 
the 1960s, house builders began to cast 
in or brick up these installations. in terms 
of maintenance, this practice is counter 
productive and completely at odds with sus 
tainable construction. At that time, though, 
people wanted to banish unsightly installa 
tions from their living environment. today, 

tHE ADDItIOnAl InvEStmEnt nEEDED tO DOUBlE 
A StRUCtURE’S lIfE SpAn IS OftEn RElAtIvEly 
lOw COmpARED tO tHE COSt Of COnStRUCtIng A 
fACIlIty BUIlt tO lASt fOR Only A SInglE 
gEnERAtIOn. 

in a study, you have quantified the renova 
tion requirement for switzerland’s techni 
cal infrastructure. you estimate that chf 
65 billion is needed over the next 20 years 
to keep the swiss built environment in 
good condition. is the legacy of our fathers 
and forefathers a burden rather than an 
asset? 
no. As i see it, infrastructure facilities are 
clearly an asset rather than a burden. they 
are normally well constructed and serve 
society and the economy as a whole rather 
than individuals. like any other asset, how 
ever, they need to be managed properly. 

how can the refurbishment of technical 
infrastructure be financed? 
there are two possible models: one reflects 
consumption while the other relies on 
basic funding. With electricity, water or 
waste disposal, we always pay according 
to consumption. only transport systems 
are subject to a different modus operandi. 

much more thought is given to building 
maintenance and renovation, so mechanical 
and electrical equipment is installed so as to 
guarantee easy access. 

have construction materials also changed 
in response to maintenance and refurbish 
ment needs? 
Yes. At one time, buildings were put togeth 
er from simple elements. most were made 
of timber. Such buildings were easy to dis 
mantle and reassemble. then came the age 
of composite materials, such as reinforced 
concrete, and later synthetic products were 
also used for building applications. however, 
they are not at all recycling friendly and their 
disposal is problematic. here too, the right 
lessons have been learnt: today, materials 
recyclability and disposability is scrutinized 
much more closely before they are incorpo 
rated in buildings. • 

SSiikkaa AAnnnnuuaall RReeppoorrtt 22001122 

RREEffuuRRbbiiSShhmmEEnntt •• 8833 

http:tenance,renovationandreplacement.in
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sika PRoducts foR 
REfuRbishmEnt in constRuction 
below an overview of Sika products that 
were used in the projects described in this 
magazine. 
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 CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 

in CHF mn Notes 2011 2012 

Cash and cash equivalents 1  536.0  994.2 

Accounts receivable 2  875.3  871.5 

Inventories 3  530.6  521.6 

Prepaid expenses and accrued income  75.8  83.9 

Other current assets 4  34.0  26.5 

Current assets 2 051.7 2 497.7 

Property, plant, and equipment 5  860.6  873.3 

Intangible assets 6  771.0  742.3 

Investments in associated companies 7  21.1  15.3 

Deferred tax assets 8  82.4  85.7 

Other non-current assets 4  43.5  48.0 

Non-current assets 1 778.6 1 764.6 

Assets 3 830.3 4 262.3 

Accounts payable 9  501.0  492.1 

Accrued expenses and deferred income 10  191.4  197.6 

Bond 12  0.0  249.9 

Income tax liabilities  58.0  57.4 

Current provisions 13  11.3  15.5 

Other current liabilities 11  59.1  31.0 

Current liabilities  820.8 1 043.5 

Bonds 12  796.0  847.1 

Non-current provisions 13  90.6  81.9 

Deferred tax liabilities 8  100.9  97.5 

Employee benefit obligation 14  142.9  152.9 

Other non-current liabilities 11  40.0  32.0 

Non-current liabilities 1 170.4 1 211.4 

LiAbiLities 1 991.2 2 254.9 

Capital stock  1.5  1.5 

Treasury shares -55.7 -27.6 

Reserves 1 880.3 2 018.6 

equity attributable to sika shareholders 1 826.1 1 992.5 

Non-controlling interests  13.0  14.9 

shareholders’ equity 15 1 839.1 2 007.4 

LiAbiLities ANd sHAreHoLders’ equity 3 830.3 4 262.3 
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Consolidated Income Statement from January 1 to December 31
 

% 2011 % 2012 Change 
in CHF mn Notes in % 

net sales 16  100.0 4 563.7  100.0 4 828.9  5.8 

material expenses 17 -49.5 -2 259.1 -47.8 -2 309.6 

Gross result  50.5 2 304.6  52.2 2 519.3  9.3 

Personnel expenses 18 -21.0 -959.9 -21.6 -1 041.4 

Other operating expenses 18 -19.0 -867.3 -18.8 -909.0 

operating profit before depreciation 18  10.5  477.4  11.8  568.9  19.2 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 19 -2.9 -128.9 -2.9 -140.1 

Impairment 19 0.0 -1.4  0.0  0.0 

operating profit  7.6  347.1  8.9  428.8  23.5 

Interest income 21  0.1  5.0  0.1  6.9 

Interest expenses 20 -0.7 -33.4 -0.6 -30.6 

Other financial income 21  0.1  5.2  0.0  2.8 

Other financial expenses 20 -0.4 -18.0 -0.3 -16.3 

Income from associated companies 21  0.2  9.6  0.0  1.4 

Profit before taxes  6.9  315.5  8.1  393.0  24.6 

Income taxes 8 -2.2 -100.7 -2.3 -111.9 

Net profit  4.7  214.8  5.8  281.1  30.9 

Profit attributable to Sika shareholders  4.7  213.3  5.8  279.5 

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 22  0.0  1.5  0.0  1.6 

Undiluted/diluted earings per bearer share 
(in CHf) 23 85.06 110.98 30.5 

Undiluted/diluted earings per registered share 
(in CHf) 23 14.18 18.50 30.5 
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CoNsoLidAted stAtemeNt oF CompreHeNsive iNCome 
% 2011 % 2012 Change 

in CHF mn in % 

net profit 4.7  214.8  5.8  281.1  30.9 

Exchange differences taken to equity -0.6 -26.6 -0.5 -26.1 

Valuation gains (+)/losses (-) from financial assets  0.0 -0.2  0.0  0.0 

other comprehensive income -0.6 -26.8 -0.5 -26.1 

Comprehensive income  4.1  188.0  5.3  255.0  35.6 

Attributable to Sika shareholders  4.1  185.4  5.3  253.7 

Attributable to non-controlling interests  0.0  2.6  0.0  1.3 
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CoNsoLidAted stAtemeNt oF CHANges iN  equity 

in CHF mn 

Capital 
stock 

Capital 
surplus 

treasury 
shares 

Currency 
trans­
lation 

differ­
ences 

Fluctua­
tions in 

value of 
financial 

instru­
ments 

retained 
earnings 

equity 
attribut­

able to 
sika 

share­
holders 

Non­
control­

ling 
interests 

total 
equity 

January 1, 2011 22.9 256.0 -69.9 -310.9 0.2 1 857.6 1 755.9 3.7 1 759.6 

Profit of the year 213.3 213.3 1.5 214.8 

Other comprehensive income -27.7 -0.2 -27.9 1.1 -26.8 

Comprehensive income – – – -27.7 -0.2 213.3 185.4 2.6 188.0 

Transactions with treasury shares 1 14.2 -3.5 10.7 10.7 

Share based payments 8.7 8.7 8.7 

Dividends 2 -112.8 -112.8 -1.7 -114.5 

Repayment of nominal value -21.4 -21.4 -21.4 

Non-controlling interests from 
acquisitions – 6.3 6.3 

Purchase of non-controlling interests -1.8 -1.8 -4.9 -6.7 

Capital increase – 7.0 7.0 

Inflation adjustment 4 1.4 1.4 1.4 

January 1, 2012 1.5 256.0 -55.7 -338.6 – 1 962.9 1 826.1 13.0 1 839.1 

Profit of the year 279.5 279.5 1.6 281.1 

Other comprehensive income -25.8 -25.8 -0.3 -26.1 

Comprehensive income – – – -25.8 – 279.5 253.7 1.3 255.0 

Transactions with treasury shares 1 28.1 -9.1 19.0 19.0 

Share based payments 6.5 6.5 6.5 

Dividends 3 -52.9 -60.4 -113.3 -0.9 -114.2 

Non-controlling interests from 
acquisitions – 3.8 3.8 

Purchase of non-controlling interests -1.9 -1.9 -2.5 -4.4 

Revaluation 5 1.4 1.4 0.2 1.6 

Inflation adjustment 4 1.0 1.0 1.0 

december 31, 2012 1.5 203.1 -27.6 -364.4 – 2 179.9 1 992.5 14.9 2 007.4 

1 Including income tax of CHf 1.0 mn (CHf 0.9 mn) in retained earnings.
 
2 Dividend per bearer share: CHf 45.00, dividend per registered share: CHf 7.50.
 
3 Dividend per bearer share: CHf 45.00, dividend per registered share: CHf 7.50.
 
4 Hyperinflation accounting has been applied since January 1, 2010 and concerns the subsidiary in Venezuela.
 
5 Revaluation call-/put-option Hebei Jiuqiang refer to page 103.
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2012 

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows 

in CHF mn Notes 2011 

operating activities 

Profit before taxes  315.5  393.0 

Depreciation/amortization/impairment  130.3  140.1 

Increase (+)/decrease (-) in provisions/ 
employee benefit obligation and assets -7.9  12.4 

Increase (-)/decrease (+) in net working capital -62.5  1.5 

Other adjustments 26 -3.0  3.6 

Income taxes paid -73.1 -123.3 

Cash flow from operating activities  299.3  427.3 

investing activities 

Property, plant, and equipment: capital expenditures -104.6 -125.5 

Property, plant, and equipment: disposals  8.6  5.9 

Intangible assets: capital expenditures -12.5 -5.8 

Intangible assets: disposals  0.1  0.6 

Acquisitions less cash and cash equivalents -143.8 -8.5 

Acquisitions (-)/disposals (+) of financial assets -6.9 -5.7 

Capital increase at associated companies -4.8  0.0 

Cash flow from investing activities -263.9 -139.0 

financing activities 

Increase in financial liabilities  20.6  0.6 

Repayment of financial liabilities -58.6 -28.9 

Repayment of a bond -275.0  0.0 

Issuance of bonds  0.0  299.3 

Acquisitions (-)/disposals (+) in treasury shares  11.6  21.5 

Dividend payment to shareholders of Sika AG -112.8 -113.3 

Repayment of nominal value -21.4  0.0 

Dividends related to non-controlling interests -1.7 -0.9 

Purchase of non-controlling interests  0.0 -4.4 

Capital increase from non-controlling interests  7.0  0.0 

Cash flow from financing activities -430.3  173.9 

exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents -7.5 -4.0 

net change in cash and cash equivalents -402.4  458.2 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  938.4  536.0 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  536.0  994.2 

Cash flow from operating activities contains: 

Dividends from associated companies  4.9  2.5 

Interest received  5.0  7.0 

Interest paid -34.4 -28.5 
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  Notes to tHe CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Principles of Consolidation and Valuation 

CorporAte iNFormAtioN 
Sika is a globally active speciality chemicals company. Sika supplies the building and construction industry as well as manu­
facturing industries (automotive, bus, truck, rail, solar and wind power plants, façades). Sika is a provider of processing 
materials used in sealing, bonding, damping, reinforcing, and protecting load-bearing structures. Sika’s product lines 
feature high-quality concrete admixtures, specialty mortars, sealants and adhesives, damping and reinforcing materials, 
structural strengthening systems, industrial flooring as well as roofing, and waterproofing systems. 

ACCouNtiNg poLiCies 

bAsis oF prepArAtioN 
The financial statements of the Sika Group are prepared in conformity with the provisions of the International Account­
ing Standards Board (IASB). All standards (IAS/IfRS) and interpretations (IfRIC/SIC) applicable as of December 31, 2012, 
were taken into account. The financial statements are prepared according to the going-concern principle. The consoli­
dated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost principle with the exception of financial assets 
and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit and loss. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IfRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed on page 94. 

CHANges iN ACCouNtiNg poLiCy ANd disCLosures 
There are no IfRS standards or IfRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year 2012 that 
have a material impact on the Group. 

As of 2013 Sika will adopt the revised standard IAS 19 – Employee Benefits. The standard is facing two key changes. first, 
the expected return on plan assets and interest costs on the defined benefit obligations are to be replaced by a single net 
interest component which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the reported net defined benefit asset or liability. 
Second, past-service costs are to be recognized in other comprehensive income in the period of a plan amendment, and 
unvested benefits will no longer be spread over a future period until the benefits become vested. The amendments are 
effective retroactively for the year 2012. The following financial impacts are calculated for 2012: 

iNCome stAtemeNt 
Personnel expenses Higher expenses of CHf 3.2 million 
Income taxes lower expenses of CHf 0.7 million 
Net profit Thus, lower net profit of CHf 2.5 million 

Other comprehensive income Higher other comprehensive income of CHf 3.3 million 
(including a positive tax effect of CHf 1.1 million) 

bALANCe sHeet 
Employee benefit obligation Higher liability of CHf 122.7 million 
Deferred taxes lower net liability of CHf 27.7 million 
Shareholder’s equity as of January 1, 2012 lower shareholder’s equity of CHf 95.8 million 
Shareh0lder’s equity as of December 31, 2012 lower shareholder’s equity of CHf 95.0 million 
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A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for the financial year 2013 
and later, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. If they had been applied in 
2012 they would have had no significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group: 

IfRS 7 financial instruments: disclosures – offsetting (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IfRS 9 financial instruments (applicable as of January 1, 2015) 
IfRS 10 Consolidated financial statements (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IfRS 11 Joint arrangements (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IfRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IfRS 13 fair value measurements (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of financial statements (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IAS 27 (revised) Separate financial statements (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IAS 28 (revised) Investments in associates and joint ventures (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
IAS 32 financial instruments: disclosures – offsetting (applicable as of January 1, 2013) 
Improvements to IfRS 2012 Collective standard with amendments to various IfRS standards with the primary goal 

of eliminating inconsistencies and clarifying terminology 

IfRS 10 replaces IAS 27 – Consolidated and Separate financial Statements. This new standard requires that the investor 
consolidates an investee when it has control over the investee, i. e. when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 

IfRS 11 replaces IAS 31 – Interests in Joint Ventures. This new standard requires companies to classify joint arrangements 
as either a joint operation or as a joint venture, based on the rights and obligations arising from the joint arrangement. 
The standard also requires companies to apply the equity method of accounting for interests in joint ventures. 

IfRS 12 – Disclosures of interests in other entities. This standard sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, 
associated companies, joint ventures, structured entities, and unconsolidated entities. 

IfRS 13 will introduce a fair value hierarchy, additional disclosures and a requirement for the fair value of liabilities to be 
based on assumptions that the liability will be transferred to another party.  

New standards and interpretations are usually applied at the applicable date. However, the options for early adoption are 
considered individually by Sika. 
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CoNsoLidAtioN metHod 

bAsis 
The consolidated financial statements are based on the balance sheets and income statements of Sika AG, Baar, Switzer­
land, and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, prepared in accordance with uniform standards. 

subsidiAries 
Companies which are controlled by Sika are fully consolidated. The consolidation includes 100% of their assets and liabilities 
as well as expenses and income; non-controlling interests in shareholders’ equity and net income for the year are excluded 
and shown separately as part of non-controlling interests. 

AssoCiAted CompANies 
The equity method is applied to account for investments ranging from 20% to 50%, provided that Sika exercises signifi­
cant influence. The investments are included in the balance sheet under “Investments in associated companies” in terms 
of the Group’s percentage share in net assets; in the income statement the Group’s share in the net income for the year is 
reflected in “Income from associated companies.” 

otHer miNority iNterests 
Other minority interests are carried at fair value. 

iNtrA-group trANsACtioNs 
Transactions within the Group are eliminated as follows: 
– Intra-Group receivables and liabilities are eliminated in full. 
– Intra-Group income and expenses and the unrealized profit margin from intragroup transactions are eliminated in full. 

busiNess CombiNAtioNs ANd goodwiLL 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquired company. for each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in 
the acquired company either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquired company’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition related costs incurred are expensed. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be 
recognized in the income statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its 
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non­
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the 
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit and loss. 

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. Impairments are recognized in the income statement. The impairment 
is not reversed at a later date. 

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets including goodwill plus cumulative 
translation differences is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as an operating result. The results of sub­
sidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective 
date of acquisition of control or up to the effective date of loss of control. 

segmeNt reportiNg 
Sika carries out its worldwide activities according to regions, to which a certain number of countries belong. Region heads are 
members of Group management. Group management is the highest operative executive body measuring the profit and loss 
of segments and allocating resources. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

NOTES TO THE CONSOlIDATED fINANCIAl STATEmENTS • 93 



  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

sigNiFiCANt ACCouNtiNg estimAtes 
The key assumptions concerning the future as well as details of other key sources of estimation uncertainty on the 
balance sheet date that entail a risk of requiring a material adjustment to reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below. 

impAirmeNt oF goodwiLL 
The Group tests at least annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in­
use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates such as expected future cash flows and discount rates. 
The carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2012, was CHf 417.3 million (previous year CHf 416.9 million). further 
details are presented in note 6. 

FAir vALue oF ACquisitioN 
In connection with acquisitions, all assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are valued at fair value. Newly identified 
assets and liabilities are also included in the balance sheet. fair value is determined in part based on assumptions regard­
ing factors that are subject to a degree of uncertainty, such as interest rates and sales. 

trAdemArks 
Trademarks with an indefinite lifetime are tested annually for impairment in which the discounted future relief from 
royalties are calculated and compared with the book value. future cash inflows must be estimated. Actual cash inflows 
can thereby deviate significantly from estimations. Discounting is in addition based on assumptions and estimations 
concerning business-specific capital costs, which are themselves dependent on country risks, credit risks, and additional 
risks resulting from the volatility of the respective business. 

Customer reLAtioNs 
Customer relations are depreciated over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is based on estimates of 
the time period during which this intangible asset generates cash flows, as well as historic empirical data concerning cus­
tomer loyalty. Calculation of the present value of estimated future cash flows includes essential assumptions, especially 
of future sales. Discounting is in addition also based on assumptions and estimations concerning business-specific capital 
costs, which are themselves dependent on national risks, credit risks, and additional risks resulting from the volatility of 
the respective business. 

deFerred tAx Assets 
Deferred tax assets resulting from unrealized tax loss carry forwards or timing differences are recognized to the extent 
that a realization of the corresponding tax advantage is probable. The assessment of the probability of the realization of 
a tax advantage requires assumptions based on the history of the respective company and on target figures for the 
future. 

empLoyee beNeFit pLANs 
The Group maintains various employee benefit plans. Diverse statistical and other variables are used in the calculation of 
expenses and liabilities to estimate future developments. These variables include estimations and assumptions concern­
ing the discounting interest rate, expected income from plan assets as well as future wage and salary increases estab­
lished by the management within certain guidelines. In addition for actuarial calculation of benefit liabilities actuaries 
employ statistical information such as withdrawal or death probabilities, which can deviate significantly from actual 
results due to changes in market conditions, the economic situation as well as fluctuating rates of withdrawal and shorter 
or longer lifespan of benefit plan participants. 

provisioNs 
The calculation of provisions requires assumptions about the probability, size and timely occurrence of an outflow of 
resources that represent economic value. As far as an outflow of resources is probable and a reliable estimation is possible, 
a provision is recorded. 
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Valuation Principles 

CoNversioN oF ForeigN CurreNCies 
The financial statements of subsidiaries outside Switzerland are converted into Swiss francs as follows: 
– Balance sheet at year-end rates 
– Income statements at annual average rates 

Resulting translation differences are recognized separately in the statement of comprehensive income. 

foreign currency transactions are first translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
date of the transaction. monetary assets and liabilities in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency on 
every balance sheet date by applying exchange rates valid on the balance sheet date. All exchange rate differences are 
recognized in the income statement. The rates listed below were applied for translation of local currencies to Swiss 
francs. 

Currency quantity 2011 
balance sheet1 

2011 
income 

CHF statement2 

Country CHF 

2012 2012 
balance sheet1 income 

CHF statement 2 

CHF 

Egypt EGP 100 15.57 15.05 14.41 15.48 

Australia AUD 1 0.95 0.92 0.94 0.97 

Brazil BRl 100 50.32 53.40 44.65 48.29 

Chile ClP 10 000 18.08 18.58 19.11 19.28 

China CNY 100 14.90 13.81 14.68 14.87 

Euro zone EUR 1 1.22 1.24 1.21 1.21 

Great Britain GBP 1 1.46 1.43 1.48 1.49 

India INR 100 1.77 1.92 1.66 1.76 

Japan JPY 100 1.21 1.12 1.06 1.18 

Canada CAD 1 0.92 0.90 0.92 0.94 

Colombia COP 10 000 4.84 4.84 5.18 5.22 

mexico mXN 100 6.73 7.21 7.02 7.13 

Poland PlZ 100 27.27 30.10 29.63 28.77 

Russia RUB 1 000 29.10 30.40 29.90 30.20 

Sweden SEK 100 13.64 13.66 14.07 13.84 

Turkey TRY 100 49.75 53.59 51.26 52.13 

USA USD 1 0.94 0.89 0.92 0.94 

1 Year-end rates. 
2 Annual average rates. 
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CoNsoLidAted bALANCe sHeet 

CAsH ANd CAsH equivALeNts 
The position includes cash and cash equivalents. 

reCeivAbLes 
Accounts receivable are recorded following deduction of an allowance for doubtful debts necessary for management 
reason. A specific value adjustment is carried out on accounts receivable for which payment is considered at risk. 

iNveNtories 
Raw materials and merchandise are carried at acquisition cost (weighted average); finished and semifinished products 
are carried at manufacturing cost, however at the highest at their realizable sales value. Acquisition or production costs 
are capitalized using a standard cost approach. 

prepAid expeNses ANd ACCrued iNCome 
This item includes accrued income unrelated to accounts receivable. 

property, pLANt, ANd equipmeNt 
Property, plant, and equipment are carried at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation required for business pur­
poses. The capitalization is made based on components. Value-enhancing expenses are capitalized and depreciated over 
their useful life. Repair, maintenance, and replacement costs are charged directly to the income statement. Depreciation 
under the straight-line method is based on the anticipated useful life of the asset, including its operational usefulness 
and age-related technical viability. The acquisition costs include borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if 
the recognition criteria are met. 

depreCiAtioN sCHeduLe 

Buildings 25 years 

Infrastructure 15 years 

Plants and machinery 5 – 15 years 

furnishings 6 years 

Vehicles 4 years 

laboratory equipment and tools 4 years 

IT-Hardware 4 years 
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iNtANgibLe Assets 
In-house developed patents, trademarks, and other rights are not capitalized. Research and development expenditures 
for new products are recognized in the income statement, since these do not fulfil the recognition criteria. Acquired 
intangible assets are usually capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method. 

Development costs for software are capitalized as intangible assets, provided that the software will generate a future 
economic benefit through sale or through use within the Group and that its cost can be reliably estimated. Conditions for 
capitalization are the technical feasibility of the asset and the intention and ability to complete its development, as well 
as the availability of adequate resources. Sika has created a new SAP platform with standard processes that an initial 
number of companies have been using since 2010. The rollout will take several years. The capitalized costs are transferred 
to the companies in the year of first use. 

AmortiZAtioN sCHeduLe 

Software 2 – 10 years1 

Patents 5 years 

Customer relations 2 – 20 years 

Trademarks 3 – 10 years 

1 With the exception of the SAP platform, which has a useful life of ten years, software is usually written off over two to five years. 

Acquired trademarks are amortized insofar as a useful life can be determined. Otherwise trademarks are not amortized 
but are tested for impairment annually. 

impAirmeNt oF NoN-FiNANCiAL Assets 
The impairment of property, plant, and equipment as well as intangible assets is reviewed if events or changed circum­
stances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful live are 
not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable 
amount, a special depreciation allowance is recorded on the higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value in use of an 
asset which corresponds to the discounted, anticipated future cash flows. for the purpose of impairment tests, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 

LeAsiNg 
fixed assets acquired under finance leasing contracts and therefore owned by the Group in respect to risks and rewards 
of ownership, are classified under finance leasing. Such assets are carried at fair value of the lease property or, if lower, 
present value of the minimum lease payments and are reported as non-current assets and financial liabilities. Assets 
classified as finance leasing are depreciated over their estimated useful life or amortized over a shorter leasing contract. 
Unrealized earnings from sale and leaseback transactions that fall under the definition of finance leasing are shown as a 
liability and are realized over the lease term. Payments for operating leases are recorded as operating expense and 
accordingly charged to the income statement. 
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deFerred tAxes (Assets/LiAbiLities) 
Deferred taxes are considered using the liability method. According to this method the effects on income taxes resulting 
from temporary differences between Group-internal and taxable balance sheet values are recorded as non-current assets 
or respectively as non-current liabilities. The actual or anticipated tax rates are decisive if the tax liability is fulfilled or the 
tax claim realized. Changes in deferred taxes are reflected in the income tax expense or the statement of comprehensive 
income. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, 
except for deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the 
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Accrued taxes including 
those that can be applied to tax loss carry forwards are considered to the extent that their realization is probable. Deferred 
taxes are recognized for all taxable temporary differences insofar as the accounting regulations foresee no exceptions. 

LiAbiLities 
Current liabilities consist of liabilities with maturities of less than twelve months. Tax liabilities include taxes due and 
accrued. Non-current liabilities include loans and provisions with a term of more than one year. 

provisioNs 
Provisions required for liabilities from guarantees, warranties, and environmental risks as well as restructuring are recog­
nized as liabilities. Provisions are only recognized if Sika has a third-party liability that is based on a past event and can be 
reliably assessed. Potential losses due to future incidents are not recognized in the balance sheet. 

empLoyee beNeFit pLANs 
The Group maintains benefit plans that differ in accordance with local practices. Group contributions to defined contribu­
tion plans are recognized in the income statement. Defined benefit plans are administered either through self-governed 
pension funds (funded) or recognized in the balance sheet (unfunded). The amount of the liabilities resulting from defined 
benefit plans is regularly determined by independent experts under application of the projected unit credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains 
and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined 
benefit obligation or of the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected 
average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans. Asset surpluses of employee pension funds are 
considered under application of IfRIC 14 only to the extent of possible future reimbursement or reduction of contributions. 

CApitAL stoCk 
The capital stock is equal to the par value of all issued bearer and registered shares. 

CApitAL surpLus 
This entry consists of the value of paid-in capital in excess of par value (less transaction costs). 

treAsury sHAres 
Treasury shares are valued at acquisition cost and deducted from shareholders’ equity. Differences between purchase 
price and sales proceeds of treasury shares are shown as a change in retained earnings. 

CurreNCy trANsLAtioN diFFereNCes 
This item consists of the differential amount that arises from the translation into Swiss francs of assets, liabilities, 
income, and expenses of Group companies that do not use the Swiss franc as functional currency. 
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HyperiNFLAtioN 
In countries experiencing hyperinflation, prior to conversion into the reporting currency the annual financial statements 
are adjusted for local inflation in order to eliminate changes in purchasing power. Adjustment for inflation is based on the 
relevant price indices at the end of the period under review. 

retAiNed eArNiNgs 
Retained earnings comprise accumulated retained earnings of the Group companies that are not distributed to share­
holders as well as profit/loss of treasury shares. Profit distribution is subject to local legal restrictions. 

FiNANCiAL Assets ANd LiAbiLities 
financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in the following categories: 
–	 financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading as well as designated by the Group and derivatives, “at fair 

value through profit and loss”: these are initially recognized at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the 
fair value are presented in the financial result. The designation as at fair value through profit and loss is consistent with 
the entity’s risk management and investment strategy. 

–	 loans and receivables: this category includes loans granted and credit balances. The valuation occurs at nominal value 
insofar as repayment within one year is foreseen. Otherwise they are classified as assets carried at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. 

–	 All other financial assets are classified as available-for-sale. The assets are carried at fair value and gains and losses 
arising from changes in the fair value are presented in other comprehensive income. Upon sale, permanent depreciation 
in value or other divestiture, the cumulative gains and losses that had been recognized in other comprehensive income 
are reclassified from equity to the income statement. 

–	 Non-current financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost. Once they have been settled, financial liabilities are 
derecognized. 

All purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized on the settlement date. financial assets are 
derecognized when Sika loses the rights to receive cash flows for the investment. Normally this occurs through the sale 
of assets or the repayment of granted loans or accounts receivable. The financial liabilities include financing debts that 
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

On each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether a financial asset is impaired. If objective evidence exists that an 
impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost has incurred, then the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If in the case of accounts receivable there is objective evidence that not 
all due amounts will be rendered according to originally agreed invoicing conditions (as for example in high probability of 
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of a debtor), an impairment is recognized through use of an allowance 
account. The derecognition of receivables occurs when they are assessed as uncollectible. If an available-for-sale asset is 
impaired in its value, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair 
value – is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. 
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iNCome stAtemeNt 

Net sALes 
Proceeds from the sale of goods and services are only reported in the income statement if risks and rewards of ownership 
have been substantially transferred to the purchaser, the revenue can be reliably measured and when it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity. Net sales include all revenues from the sale of goods and services less 
discounts granted. 

CoNstruCtioN CoNtrACts 
Contract revenue and contract costs are recognized in accordance with the stage of completion. An expected loss is rec­
ognized as an expense immediately. 

persoNNeL expeNses 
Personnel expenses include all payments to persons standing in an employment relationship with Sika. This item also 
encompasses such expenditures as pension fund contributions, health insurance contributions, and taxes and levies 
directly associated with personnel compensation. 

empLoyee pArtiCipAtioN pLAN – sHAre bAsed pAymeNts 
The Group operates a number of share based compensation plans. The total amount to be recognized in profit and loss is 
determined by reference to the grant date fair value of the equity instrument. The expenses are recognized in personnel 
expenses over the vesting period. 

reseArCH ANd deveLopmeNt 
Research expenses are recognized in the income statement. Development expenses are not capitalized if the recognition 
criteria have not been met. 

depreCiAtioN 
Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method based on the expected useful life of the 
asset. 

iNterest expeNse/otHer FiNANCiAL expeNses 
In general, all interest and other expenses paid for the procurement of loans are recognized in the income statement. Any 
borrowing cost accruing in the course of development projects, e. g. the construction of new production facilities or 
software development, are capitalized together with the assets created. 

iNterest iNCome/otHer FiNANCiAL iNCome 
Interest income is recognized and timely apportioned using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized 
when the right to receive payment is established. 

iNCome tAxes 
The reported income tax expenses include income taxes based on current taxable income and deferred taxes. 
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Scope of Consolidation and Acquisitions
 

The consolidated financial statements of the Sika Group encompass the financial statements of Sika AG, Zugerstrasse 50, 
6340 Baar, Switzerland, as well as its subsidiaries (see list starting on page 132) and associated companies (see note 7). In 
the year under review the scope of consolidation was expanded to include the following companies: 

– AKIS Netherlands B.V., Utrecht, Netherlands 
– AKIS Ireland ltd., Dublin, Ireland 
– Sika AG for General Trading llC, Erbil, Iraq 
– Sika mongolia llC, Ulaanbaatar, mongolia 
– Sika Qatar llC, Doha, Qatar 
– Sika Saudi Arabia Co ltd., Riyadh, Saudi Arabia 

The scope of consolidation was reduced to exclude the following companies: 

–	 Iotech limited and liquid Plastics limited, lancashire, United Kingdom, was merged with Sika ltd. Welwyn Garden 
City, United Kingdom. 

– Axim Italia S.r.l., milan, Italy, was merged with Sika Italia S.p.A., milan, Italy. 
– Comercial de Preresa, S.A.U., Cobena, Spain, was merged with Sika SA, Alcobendas, Spain. 
– Axim Building Technologies SA, malaga, Spain, was merged with Sika SA, Alcobendas, Spain. 
– Duochem Inc., Quebec/QC, Canada, was merged with Sika Canada Inc., Pointe Claire/QC, Canada. 
– Greenstreak Group Inc., St. louis/mO, USA, was merged with Sika Corporation, lyndhurst/NJ, USA. 
– Axim Concrete Technologies Inc., middlebranch/OH, USA, was merged with Sika Corporation, lyndhurst/NJ, USA. 
– Kowa Chemical Industries Co. ltd., Tokyo, Japan, was merged with Dyflex Co. ltd., Tokyo, Japan. 
– DCT Co. ltd., Tokyo, Japan, was sold. 
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ACquisitioNs 2011 

In 2011 Sika acquired various companies or parts of companies, including Technokolla and Axim. The acquisition of Tech­
nokolla closed on July 18, 2011, that of Axim on December 19, 2011. The purchase prices and their allocation (PPA) only 
changed insignificantly for Colauto and Axim, the others did not change and are now definitive. 

ACquired Net Assets At FAir vALue 
in CHF mn Combined acquisitions1 Axim technokolla 

Cash and cash equivalents 4.7 7.6 0.5 

Accounts receivable 40.1 22.6 11.1 

Inventories 19.6 7.4 4.4 

Property, plant, and equipment 36.3 17.4 3.2 

Intangible assets 21.9 17.5 8.9 

Other non-current assets 4.9 1.6 2.2 

total assets 127.5 74.1 30.3 

Short-term loans and bank overdrafts 38.4 26.1 0.0 

Accounts payable 21.9 11.4 11.3 

Other current liabilities 9.3 2.0 0.9 

long-term loans and financial liabilities 2.4 1.8 0.7 

Provisions 0.0 0.0 2.0 

Deferred tax liabilities 7.1 8.3 1.6 

total liabilities 79.1 49.6 16.5 

Net assets 48.4 24.5 13.8 

Non-controlling interest -6.3 0.0 0.0 

Acquired net assets 42.1 24.5 13.8 

Goodwill 36.7 51.5 16.4 

fair value of initial investment -6.0 0.0 0.0 

total purchase consideration 72.8 76.0 30.2 

Cash in acquired assets (per December 31, 2011) -4.7 -7.6 -0.5 

Payments still due (per December 31, 2011) -8.4 -14.0 0.0 

Net cash outflow 59.7 54.4 29.7 

1 Hebei Jiuqiang, Sika Gulf, BIRO, Colauto, Copsa, Duochem. 

The directly attributable transaction costs of all acquisitions amounted to CHf 2.9 million and were charged to other 
operating expenses. 

In march 2011, Sika acquired through its Chinese subsidiary Sika (China) ltd. a controlling interest in Hebei Jiuqiang 
Construction material Co. ltd. The purchase price includes an component contingent which depends on the course of 
business, for which a market value of CHf 2.3 million has been estimated. In the year under review the liability was 
reduced by CHf 1.5 million and recognized in other financial expenses. 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

102 • noteS to the ConSolidAted finAnCiAl StAtementS 



  

     

 

 

  

  

 
 

Regarding the outstanding 33% interest in the company, a put and call agreement has been arranged with the seller. The 
owners of the minority interests can exercise their put option as from the beginning of 2021. Sika can exercise its call 
option as of the beginning of 2016. The option price is contingent on the course of Hebei’s business (EBITDA multiple), 
and the owners of the outstanding shares in the company retain their shareholder rights, as well as future shares in 
profits, which is the reason why these shares are considered as not yet acquired. The liability arising from this commit­
ment was valued at CHf 6.3 million (present value) at the time of the acquisition. In the year under review the liability was 
reduced by CHf 1.4 million and recognized in retained earnings. 

The purchase price of Axim includes a component contingent which depends on the course of business, for which a market 
value of CHf 12.9 million has been estimated. In the year under review the liability was reduced by CHf 2.4 million and rec­
ognized in other financial expenses. 

If the acquisition of Technokolla had taken place on the first day of the business year, its additional contribution to con­
solidated net sales would have been CHf 15.9 million. Consolidated net profit would have been CHf 0.6 million higher. If the 
acquisition of Axim had taken place on the first day of the business year, its additional contribution to consolidated net 
sales would have been CHf 75.5 million. Consolidated net profit would have been CHf 3.9 million higher. If the combined 
acquisitions had taken place on the first day of the business year, their additional contribution to consolidated net sales 
would have been CHf 72.1 million. Consolidated net profit would have been CHf 3.1 million lower. 

Since the respective purchases, Technokolla and the combined acquisitions have contributed sales of CHf 16.0 million and 
CHf 54.1 million, respectively, and net profit of CHf 0.2 million and CHf -5.1 million, respectively. Because Axim was 
acquired only at the end of the year, it has not contributed any sales or net profit. 

ACquisitioNs 2012 

In 2012 Sika acquired various companies or parts of companies. 

Company type of transaction stake in % Closing date 

Yean-Il Industrial Co. ltd., South Korea Asset deal 100.0 3/8/2012 

fire protection coating business 
from Rütgers Organics GmbH, Germany Asset deal 100.0 11/17/2012 

Sika Saudi Arabia Co. ltd., Saudi Arabia Share deal 51.0 12/31/2012 

In march, Sika acquired through its Korean subsidiary, Sika Korea ltd., all assets of Yean-il Industrial Co. ltd., South 
Korea, a market leader in tunnel waterproofing membranes in South Korea. 

In November Sika has taken over the fire protection coatings and systems business of mannheim based Rütgers 
Organics GmbH. 

At the end of the year the reorganization in the middle East has been finalized. Sika increased its stake in the associated 
company Sika Saudi Arabia Co. ltd, Saudi Arabia, to 51% and consolidated it for the first time as of December 31, 2012. On 
a net basis Sika increased its stake by 6% to 51%. The revaluation of the previous investment to fair value of CHf 5.0 million 
resulted in a gain of CHf 0.8 million, which has been recognized in the income statement under the item “Other operating 
expenses.” The minority interests were stated at the proportionate share of the acquired net assets. 

Since the purchase price allocations for all acquisitions still entail some uncertainty, all positions with the exception of 
cash and cash equivalents are provisional. Production synergies and combined distribution channels and product port­
folios justify the goodwill posted. The goodwill in the amount of CHf 4.3 million is tax deductible. Accounts receivable 
have a gross value of CHf 11.7 million and were adjusted since CHf 2.5 million were classified as non-recoverable. 
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If the acquisitions had taken place on the first day of the business year, its additional contribution to consolidated net 
sales would have been CHf 31.5 million. The impact on consolidated net profit can not be quantified as no numbers are 
available for asset deals. The impact of the acquisition of Sika Saudi Arabia is not material. 

Since the respective purchases, the acquisitions have contributed sales of CHf 12.9 million and net profit of CHf 1.7 million. 
Because Sika Saudi Arabia was acquired only at the end of the year, it has not contributed any sales or net profit. 

ACquired Net Assets At FAir vALue 
in CHF mn Acquisitions 2012 

Cash and cash equivalents 2.4 

Accounts receivable 9.2 

Inventories 3.8 

Property, plant, and equipment 8.1 

Intangible assets 8.2 

Other assets 0.6 

total assets 32.3 

Accounts payable 13.9 

Other liabilities 2.4 

Deferred tax liabilities 0.3 

total liabilities 16.6 

Net assets 15.7 

Non-controlling interest -3.8 

Acquired net assets 11.9 

Goodwill 9.6 

fair value of initial investment in Sika Saudi Arabia -5.0 

total purchase consideration 16.5 

Cash in acquired assets (per December 31, 2012) -2.4 

Settlement of debt claim against vendor -3.1 

Payments still due (per December 31, 2012) -2.5 

Net cash outflow 8.5 
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Notes to tHe CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Notes to the Consolidated financial Statements 

1. CAsH ANd CAsH equivALeNts CHf 994.2 mN (CHf 536.0 mN) 
The cash management of the Group includes cash pooling, in which cash and cash equivalents available within the Group 
are pooled. The item “Cash and cash equivalents” includes cash and equivalents with a maturity of less than three months, 
bearing interest at a respectively valid rate. Cash and cash equivalents increased significantly on one hand due to two bond 
issues in the total amount of CHf 300 million and on the other due to high operating free cash flow. 

2. ACCouNts reCeivAbLe CHf 871.5 mN (CHf 875.3 mN) 
The following tables show accounts receivable, the development of the allowance for doubtful accounts as well as the 
portion of not overdue and overdue receivables including their age structure. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing 
and are generally due within 30 to 90 days. 

ACCouNts reCeivAbLe 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Receivables  939.8  939.4 

Allowance for doubtful accounts -64.5 -67.9 

Net accounts receivable  875.3  871.5 

movemeNts oN tHe ALLowANCe For doubtFuL ACCouNts 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

January 1  58.0  64.5 

Allowance for acquired/sold businesses  5.8  2.7 

Additions to or increase in allowances  47.0  46.9 

Reversal or utilization of allowances -44.6 -45.1 

Exchange differences -1.7 -1.1 

december 31  64.5  67.9 

Age distributioN oF ACCouNts reCeivAbLe 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Net accounts receivable  875.3  871.5 

Of which 

Not overdue  676.5  658.2 

Past due < 31 days  131.5  142.4 

Past due 31 – 60 days  38.4  43.5 

Past due 61 – 180 days  37.4  38.1 

Past due > 181 days  56.0  57.2 

Allowance for doubtful accounts -64.5 -67.9 

The building up and reversal of allowances for doubtful accounts are recognized in other operating expenses. Amounts 
entered as allowances are usually derecognized when payment is no longer expected. 
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3. iNveNtories CHf 521.6 mN (CHf 530.6 mN) 
Inventory write-offs amount to CHf 16.8 million (CHf 12.1 million) and are charged to material expenses. 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Raw materials and supplies  157.3  151.7 

Semi-finished goods  43.7  41.3 

finished goods  282.3  275.9 

merchandise  47.3  52.7 

total  530.6  521.6 

4. otHer Assets CHf 74.5 mN (CHf 77.5 mN) 
The assets contained under this item and any changes in them can be seen in the following table. 

otHer CurreNt Assets 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Derivates (at fair value through P&l) 4.0 10.3 

loans (loans and receivables) 14.4 1.3 

Securities (available-for-sale) 2.1 0.0 

Securities (at fair value through profit and loss) 0.0 2.2 

other financial assets 20.5 13.8 

other non-financial assets 13.5 12.7 

other current assets 34.0 26.5 

otHer NoN-CurreNt Assets 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Securities (available-for-sale) 13.4 0.0 

Securities (at fair value through profit and loss) 0.0 21.7 

loans (loans and receivables) 0.0 3.7 

other financial assets 13.4 25.4 

Employee benefit assets 24.5 18.9 

Other 5.6 3.7 

other non-financial assets 30.1 22.6 

other non-current assets 43.5 48.0 
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5. property, pLANt, ANd equipmeNt CHf 873.3 mN (CHf 860.6 mN) 

in CHF mn 
property plant equipment plants under 

construction 
total 

As of January 1, 2011 

Acquisition cost  106.1  576.9 1 197.2  63.4 1 943.6 

Cumulative depreciation and impairment -0.7 -330.4 -795.5 -0.5 -1 127.1 

Net values as of January 1, 2011  105.4  246.5  401.7  62.9  816.5 

Additions  1.5  0.5  52.3  50.3  104.6 

Acquired on acquisition  3.7  22.5  30.2  0.5  56.9 

Exchange differences -2.5 -5.2 -4.6 -0.9 -13.2 

Disposals -0.6 -0.7 -2.7  0.0 -4.0 

Reclassifications 1  0.0  18.0  32.5 -50.7 -0.2 

Depreciation charge for the year  0.0 -20.4 -78.2  0.0 -98.6 

Impairments -0.1  0.0 -1.3  0.0 -1.4 

As of december 31, 2011  107.4  261.2  429.9  62.1  860.6 

As of January 1, 2012 

Acquisition cost  108.1  608.0 1 263.1  62.6 2 041.8 

Cumulative depreciation and impairment -0.7 -346.8 -833.2 -0.5 -1 181.2 

Net values as of January 1, 2012  107.4  261.2  429.9  62.1  860.6 

Additions  1.9  8.7  67.5  47.4  125.5 

Acquired on acquisition  0.0  4.0  4.1  0.0  8.1 

Exchange differences -2.0 -1.3 -7.4 -1.1 -11.8 

Disposals -1.1 -0.9 -1.8  0.0 -3.8 

Reclassifications 1 -0.2  6.4  45.0 -52.6 -1.4 

Depreciation charge for the year  0.0 -20.6 -83.3  0.0 -103.9 

Impairments  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0 

As of december 31, 2012  106.0  257.5  454.0  55.8  873.3 

Acquisition cost  106.8  617.4 1 326.9  55.9 2 107.0 

Cumulative depreciation and impairment -0.8 -359.9 -872.9 -0.1 -1 233.7 

Net values as of december 31, 2012  106.0  257.5  454.0  55.8  873.3 

1 Plants and buildings under construction are reclassified after completion within property, plant, and equipment as well as intangible assets. 

Impairments in 2011 relate mainly to the discontinuation of a project in Switzerland which had no longer any value in use. 

Included in the items “Property” and “Plant” are investment properties with a book value of CHf 0.0 million 
(CHf 0.8 million). 
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In principle all plants are owned by subsidiaries. Smaller plants as well as the adhesive plant, the R&D centre and the logis­
tics centre of Sika Schweiz AG are financed by means of operating lease. Operating leases relate also to data processing 
equipment and copiers as well as vehicles used by the sales force. leasehold contracts are insignificant. Plant and equip­
ment includes machinery, vehicles, equipment, furnishings, and hardware. 

operating leases Finance leases 

2012 2011 in CHF mn 2011 

minimum minimum minimum interest present minimum interest present 
payments payments payments value of payments value of 

payments payments 

Within 1 year 42.6 40.9 2.2 0.2 2.0 1.5 0.2 1.3 

1 – 5 years 90.5 89.6 4.0 0.4 3.6 2.3 0.3 2.0 

Over 5 years 74.6 62.2 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.4 

total 207.7 192.7 6.6 0.6 6.0 4.2 0.5 3.7 

6. iNtANgibLe Assets CHf 742.3 mN (CHf 771.0 mN) 

in CHF mn 
goodwill software trademarks Customer 

relations 
other 

intangibles 
total 

As of January 1, 2011 

Acquisition costs 321.3 137.8 87.8 190.0 86.6 823.5 

Cumulative amortization and impairment -10.7 -77.3 -5.2 -42.7 -56.7 -192.6 

Net values as of January 1, 2011 310.6 60.5 82.6 147.3 29.9 630.9 

Additions 0.0 12.2 0.0 0.0 0.3 12.5 

Acquired on acquisition 104.6 0.0 8.4 30.8 9.0 152.8 

Exchange differences 1.7 -0.1 0.0 2.7 0.9 5.2 

Disposals 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 

Reclassifications (net) 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 

Amortization for the year 0.0 -8.5 -2.0 -13.5 -6.3 -30.3 

As of december 31, 2011  416.9  64.3  89.0  167.3  33.5  771.0 

As of January 1, 2012 

Acquisition costs 426.4 146.9 96.2 222.6 96.3 988.4 

Cumulative amortization and impairment -9.5 -82.6 -7.2 -55.3 -62.8 -217.4 

Net values as of January 1, 2012 416.9 64.3 89.0 167.3 33.5 771.0 

Additions 0.0 5.5 0.0 0.0 0.3 5.8 

Acquired on acquisition 9.6 0.0 0.6 5.9 1.7 17.8 

Exchange differences -9.2 -0.3 -0.5 -5.4 -1.1 -16.5 

Disposals 0.0 -0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.8 

Reclassifications (net) 0.0 1.2 0.0 -0.4 0.6 1.4 

Amortization for the year 0.0 -10.3 -3.2 -16.5 -6.4 -36.4 

As of december 31, 2012 417.3 59.6 85.9 150.9 28.6 742.3 

Acquisition costs 426.9 147.9 93.3 221.5 63.6 953.2 

Cumulative amortization and impairment -9.6 -88.3 -7.4 -70.6 -35.0 -210.9 

Net values as of december 31, 2012 417.3 59.6 85.9 150.9 28.6 742.3 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

108 • noteS to the ConSolidAted finAnCiAl StAtementS 

2012 



  

     

 

 

  

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

        

  
  

The intangible assets (except goodwill and trademarks) have a finite useful life over which the assets are amortized. The 
newly developed SAP platform used since 2010 will be amortized on the basis of its effective use within the Group. 
Amortization charges will increase over the next few years as SAP is introduced in stages at the individual subsidiaries. 
The carrying amount was CHf 46.6 million (CHf 49.6 million) as of December 31, 2012. The remaining useful life is estimated 
to be eight years. 

Trademarks usually have an indefinite useful life because they are influenced by internal and external factors such as 
strategic decisions, competitive and customer behaviour, technical development, and altered market requirements. The 
carrying value of trademarks with an indefinite useful life amounts to CHf 72.4 million (CHf 72.4 million). The impair­
ment test is based on estimated sales attributable to the trademark. The basis for the calculation of the asset’s value in 
use are the Board of Director’s target figures and cash flow forecasts. The forecasting horizon is five years. Assumed 
thereby is a growth rate of 2.2% (4.6%) for the planning period. Afterwards a growth rate of 2.0% (2.1%) is assumed. The 
discount rate amounts to 11.2% (11.3%). The sensitivity analysis carried out shows that a realistic change in the key 
assumptions (5% of the royalty rate) would not result in the realizable amount falling below the carrying amount. 

goodwill items tested for impairment. for all goodwill items an impairment test was carried out on the basis of the dis­
counted cash flow method. The basis for the calculation of the value in use is constituted by the target figures and cash 
flow forecasts approved by the Board of Directors. The horizon of forecast encompasses five years. The rates of sales 
growth upon which the forecast is set correspond to the market expectations of the cash-generating units and range 
between 1.3% and 11.9% (5.3% and 15.2%) per year. The sensitivity analysis carried out shows that a realistic change in 
the key assumptions (10% of the EBIT margin; +/- 1% of the discount rate) would not result in the realizable amount 
falling below the book value. The cash flow forecast beyond the planning period is extrapolated with a growth rate of 
2.0% to 3.0% (2.0% to 3.0%), which in no case exceeds the long-term average growth rate in the corresponding market 
in which the cash-generating unit operates. The discount rates are determined on the basis of the weighted average cost 
of capital of the Group, with country- and currency-specific risks within the context of cash flows taken into consideration. 
The business segments within the regions constitute the cash-generating units.  

goodwiLL AssigNed to CAsH-geNerAtiNg uNits 
2011 2012 

in CHF mn 
growth 

rates (%)1 

discount 
rates (%)2 

goodwill growth 
rates (%)1 

discount 
rates (%)2 

goodwill 

Construction business Europe North 2.0 9.4 80.4 2.0 9.3 82.9 

Construction business Europe South 2.0 9.9 117.9 2.0 12.5 117.7 

Construction business North America 2.0 11.7 87.4 2.0 11.0 85.3 

Construction business Asia/Pacific 3.0 10.5 61.2 3.0 10.0 59.7 

Automotive 2.0 10.0 60.3 2.0 10.1 58.0 

Various 2.0 – 3.0 9.4 – 17.8 9.7 2.0 – 3.0 9.3 – 15.9 13.7 

total 416.9 417.3 

1 Growth rate beyond the planning period. 
2 Pre-tax discount rates (%). 
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7. iNvestmeNts iN AssoCiAted CompANies CHf 15.3 mN (CHf 21.1 mN) 
The following associated companies are included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2012: 
Condensil SARl, france (stake Sika 40%), Part GmbH, Germany (50%), Addiment Italia S.r.l, Italy (50%), Sarna Granol AG, 
Switzerland (50%), Hayashi-Sika, Japan (50%), Chemical Sangyo, Japan (50%), and Seven tech Co. ltd., Japan (50%). As of 
December 31, 2012 Sika Saudi Arabia Co. ltd. was included in the consolidation scope and excluded from the investments 
in associated companies. In 2011 the former associated companies Sika Gulf B.S.C., Bahrain, and Copsa, Spain, were 
included in the consolidation scope. 

The following amounts represent the Group’s stake in assets, liabilities, net sales, and net income of associates. 

AssoCiAted CompANies (pArtiCipAtioNs betweeN 20% ANd 50%) 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Sales 42.2 34.6 

Profit 2.1 1.4 

Assets 28.4 19.8 

liabilities 9.3 6.8 
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8. iNCome tAxes 

tAx Loss CArryForwArds, For wHiCH No deFerred tAx Assets HAve beeN reCogNiZed 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

1 year or less 3.9 0.5 

1 – 5 years 15.5 5.4 

Over 5 years or non-expiring 27.6 39.1 

total 47.0 45.0 

reCoNCiLiAtioN 
2011 2012 

in CHF mn Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net 

January 1 88.0 -80.9 7.1 82.4 -100.9 -18.5 

Credited (+)/debited (-) to income statement -5.6 -2.5 -8.1 -0.2 7.6 7.4 

Exchange differences -1.1 -0.5 -1.6 3.5 -3.9 -0.4 

Acquisitions/divestments 1.1 -17.0 -15.9 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 

december 31 82.4 -100.9 -18.5 85.7 -97.5 -11.8 

origiN 
2011 2012 

in CHF mn Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net 

Tax losses brought forward 12.0 – 12.0 10.7 10.7 

Current assets 20.6 -4.8 15.8 19.7 -6.4 13.3 

Property, plant, and equipment 10.2 -32.2 -22.0 10.2 -31.6 -21.4 

Other non-current assets 0.4 -58.4 -58.0 1.7 -51.1 -49.4 

liabilities 39.2 -5.5 33.7 43.4 -5.4 38.0 

Withholding taxes on dividends 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -3.0 -3.0 

total 82.4 -100.9 -18.5 85.7 -97.5 -11.8 

In the year under review deferred tax assets from tax loss carryforwards of CHf 7.3 million (CHf 11.5 million) were offset 
and deferred tax loss carryforwards of CHf 4.3 million (CHf 3.4 million) were generated. 
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2012 

The tax rate decreased significantly to 28.5% (31.9%). Income taxes of CHf 111.9 million (CHf 100.7 million) consist of: 

iNCome tAxes 
in CHF mn 2011 

Income tax during the year under review 

Deferred income tax 

Income tax from prior years 

92.4 

8.1 

0.2 

117.5 

-7.4 

1.8 

total 100.7 111.9 

reCoNCiLiAtioN betweeN ANtiCipAted ANd eFFeCtive tAx expeNse 
in CHF mn % 

Profit before taxes 

Anticipated tax expense 27.9 

Non-tax-deductible expenses 1.8 

Change in anticipated tax rate -0.1 

Adjusted tax expense from earlier periods 0.1 

Valuation adjustment on deferred tax assets 0.6 

Withholding tax on dividends 1.9 

Other -0.3 

2011 

315.5 

88.1 

5.7 

-0.2 

0.3 

1.8 

5.9 

-0.9 

% 

25.3 

1.9 

-0.1 

0.5 

-0.3 

1.4 

-0.2 

2012 

393.0 

99.4 

7.3 

-0.5 

1.8 

-1.0 

5.8 

-0.9 

tax expense as per consolidated income statement 31.9 100.7 28.5 111.9 

The anticipated average Group income tax rate of 25.3% (27.9%) corresponds with the average tax on profits of the indi­
vidual Group companies in their respective fiscal jurisdictions. The change in the anticipated tax rate is attributable to 
changed profits of the Group companies in the respective fiscal jurisdictions and to changes in their tax rates in some 
cases. 

9. ACCouNts pAyAbLe CHf 492.1 mN (CHf 501.0 mN) 
Accounts payable do not bear interest and will usually become due within 30 to 60 days. 

10. ACCrued expeNses ANd deFerred iNCome CHf 197.6 mN (CHf 191.4 mN) 
Deferred income and accrued expenses relate to outstanding invoices and liabilities of the current year, including 
performance-based compensation payable to employees in the following year and social security expenses. 
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11. otHer LiAbiLities CHf 63.0 mN (CHf 99.1 mN) 

otHer CurreNt LiAbiLities 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Derivatives (at fair value through profit and loss)  4.5  2.2 

Bank loans  27.0  10.9 

Other  14.5  12.8 

other financial liabilities  46.0  25.9 

other non-financial obligations  13.1  5.1 

other current liabilities  59.1  31.0 

A number of Group companies have their own credit lines. Although the total amount is insignificant in scale, the credit 
lines are used in individual cases when intra-Group financing is not permitted or there are benefits from local financing. 

otHer NoN-CurreNt LiAbiLities 
2012 in CHF mn 2011 

Bank loans  7.6  2.2 

Other  31.7  29.0 

other financial liabilities  39.3  31.2 

other non-financial obligations  0.7  0.8 

other non-current liabilities  40.0  32.0 

12. boNds CHf 249.9 mN SHORT-TERm/CHf 847.1 mN lONG-TERm (CHf 0.0 mN/CHf 796.0 mN) 
Sika AG has the following bonds outstanding: 

2011 2012 

Amortized Nominal Amortized Nominal 
in CHF mn costs costs 

2.375% 2006 – 2013  249.2  250.0  249.9  250.0 

3.500% 2009 – 2014  298.6  300.0  299.1  300.0 

2.875% 2006 – 2016  248.2  250.0  248.6  250.0 

1.000% 2012 – 2018  0.0  0.0  149.5  150.0 

1.750% 2012 – 2022  0.0  0.0  149.9  150.0 

total  796.0  800.0 1 097.0 1 100.0 
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13. provisioNs CHf 97.4 mN (CHf 101.9 mN) 
Provisions for guarantees reflect all known claims anticipated in the near future. The provision amounts are determined 
on the basis of experience and are therefore subject to a degree of uncertainty. The outflow of funds depends on the 
timing of the filing and conclusion of warranty claims. Provisions for sundry risks include loan guarantees as well as open 
and anticipated legal and tax cases with a probability of occurence above 50%. 

from the sum of provisions, CHf 81.9 million (CHf 90.6 million) are shown under non-current liabilities, since an outflow 
of funds is not expected within the next twelve months. 

for provisions of CHf 15.5 million (CHf 11.3 million), an outflow of funds is expected during the next twelve months. These 
amounts are shown as current provisions. 

short-term provisions Long-term provisions 

in CHF mn 
warranties restruc­

turings 
sundry 

risks 
total 

As of January 1, 2011 16.8 68.8 0.4 22.8  92.0 

Exchange differences -0.3 -0.3  0.0 -0.2 -0.5 

Assumed on acquisition  0.0  1.3  0.0  2.1  3.4 

Additions  4.0  14.4  0.8  2.3  17.5 

Utilization -7.8 -8.7  0.0 -4.3 -13.0 

Reversal -1.5 -6.3  0.0 -2.4 -8.7 

Transfers  0.1 -0.1  0.0  0.0 -0.1 

As of december 31, 2011  11.3  69.1  1.2  20.3  90.6 

Exchange differences -0.3 -1.2 -0.1 -0.5 -1.8 

Assumed on acquisition  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0  0.0 

Additions  9.3  16.2  0.0  3.7  19.9 

Utilization -4.9 -10.5 -1.1 -1.8 -13.4 

Reversal -1.4 -9.3  0.0 -2.6 -11.9 

Transfers  1.5 -1.5  0.0  0.0 -1.5 

As of december 31, 2012  15.5  62.8  0.0  19.1  81.9 

The current provisions as of December 31, 2012, encompass CHf 4.6 million (CHf 3.8 million) for warranties, CHf 3.8 million 
(CHf 2.6 million) for restructuring and CHf 7.1 million (CHf 4.9 million) for sundry risks. 
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14. empLoyee beNeFit obLigAtioN 
Complementary to the benefits of state-regulated retirement schemes, Sika maintains additional employee pension 
plans for a number of subsidiaries. These can be differentiated as follows: 

defined contribution pension funds. The majority of Sika subsidiaries operate defined contribution pension funds. 
Employees and employers thereby regularly contribute to funds administered by a third party. The consolidated balance 
sheet contains neither assets nor liabilities related to these funds. 

defined benefit pension funds. 38 Group companies maintain defined benefit employee pension funds. Included are the 
German pension plans, that include their pension in the companies’ balance sheet. The Sika companies in Switzerland 
have legally independent foundations for this purpose, thereby segregating their pension obligation liabilities. In accord­
ance with local legal regulations Sika bears no obligations toward these pension funds beyond the regulated contribution 
payments and possibly recapitalization contributions. According to IAS 19 the Swiss pension funds qualify as defined­
benefit funds, therefore the actuarially calculated underfunding is recorded in the consolidated balance sheet. 

for defined benefit plans the present value of ensured retirement provisions (Defined Benefit Obligation, DBO) is calcu­
lated periodically by independent actuaries applying the “projected-unit credit method” based on years of service, antici­
pated salary and pension development and the anticipated return on investment of assets. Actuarial gains and losses 
resulting from alterations in actuarial assumptions are recognized as income or expense over the expected average 
remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans, to the extent that these cumulative, unrealized gains 
and losses exceed 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligations or of the fair value of plan assets. 

2011 2012 

in CHF mn Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net 

Employee benefit plans with defined benefits 24.5 104.6 80.1 18.9 109.0 90.1 

Other employee commitments 0.0 38.3 38.3 0.0 43.9 43.9 

total 24.5 142.9 118.4 18.9 152.9 134.0 

Sika companies in Switzerland also maintain a plan that allows for early retirement.
 

In 2011, an additional defined benefit plan was drawn up which makes it possible for the beneficiaries to take early 

retirement. The plan is managed by a foundation. Beneficiaries of the plan must be at least 60 years of age and have 

been a member of the Group management for at least five years. 


Two Swiss pension plans were merged in 2011, which resulted in an expense reduction of CHf 5.0 million.
 

Other employee commitments derive from service jubilee premiums and similar benefits that Sika grants to its employees. 
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ACtuAriAL preseNt vALue oF deFiNed beNeFit obLigAtioN (dbo) 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

opening balance  637.1  715.9 

Current service cost  27.3  31.2 

Interest cost  20.2  20.2 

Contributions by plan participants  11.0  11.6 

Actuarial gains (-)/losses (+)  31.2  39.7 

Exchange differences -2.3 -2.8 

Benefits paid -32.9 -51.4 

Past service costs  10.2  0.3 

Business combinations and others  15.5  1.3 

Settlements -1.4 -0.7 

Closing balance  715.9  765.3 

FAir vALue oF pLAN Assets 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

opening balance  495.7  502.8 

Expected return on plan assets  22.4  22.0 

Actuarial gains (+)/losses (-) -29.3  30.3 

Exchange differences -0.3  0.0 

Contributions by employer  19.5  19.7 

Contributions by plan participants  11.0  11.6 

Benefits paid -27.8 -46.4 

Business combinations and others  11.6  0.1 

Closing balance  502.8  540.1 

stAtus 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Actuarial present value of defined benefit obligations (DBO)  715.9 765.3 

fair value of plan assets  502.8 540.1 

deficit (+)/surplus (-)  213.1 225.2 

Unrecognized actuarial loss (-)/gain (+) -135.5 -136.0 

Unrecognized past service costs -0.5 -0.2 

Unrecognized assets  3.0 1.1 

Net liability recognized in balance sheet  80.1 90.1 
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iNCome stAtemeNt 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Current service costs 27.3 31.2 

Interest cost 20.2 20.2 

Expected return on plan assets -22.4 -22.0 

Actuarial gains (-)/losses (+) 4.8 8.5 

Past service costs 10.7 0.7 

The effect of any curtailments and settlements -6.4 -0.7 

The effect of the limit in paragraph 58b -14.3 -1.8 

Net periodic benefit costs 19.9 36.1 

Actual gain (+)/loss (-) on plan assets -6.9 52.3 

Expected contributions to defined-benefit plans for 2013 amount to CHf 19.4 million.
 

The Group’s entire pension expenses are recorded in the consolidated income statement under “Personnel expenses.” 


mAJor CAtegories oF totAL pLAN Assets 
in % of fair value 2011 2012 

Shares 30.5 31.7 

Bonds 34.3 39.8 

Real estate 18.7 15.9 

Other assets 16.5 12.6 

total 100.0 100.0 

AmouNts iNCLuded iN pLAN Assets 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Shares Sika AG 9.0 10.4 

Own property occupied by Sika 14.5 14.5 

total 23.5 24.9 
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ANNuAL CompArisoN iN AbsoLute terms 
in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Actuarial present value of defined benefit obligations (DBO) 567.9 586.1 637.1 715.9 765.3 

fair value of plan assets 423.3 475.6 495.7 502.8 540.1 

deficit (+)/surplus (-) 144.6 110.5 141.4 213.1 225.2 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities -11.7 -3.9 -2.2 11.5 -10.9 

Experience adjustments on plan assets -100.1 35.7 -3.9 -28.1 30.0 

The underfunding results in part from the DBO of the unfunded benefit plans of CHf 102.7 million (CHf 87.8 million). 
Primarily plans in Germany do not have segregated assets. 

ANALysis oF tHe deFiNed beNeFit obLigAtioN From FuNded ANd uNFuNded pLANs 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

funded plans 628.1 662.6 

Unfunded plans 87.8 102.7 

total 715.9 765.3 

ACtuAriAL AssumptioNs (weigHted AverAge) 
2011 2012 

Discount rate in the year under review (%) 2.9 2.4 

Expected return 1 on plan assets in the year under review (%) 4.5 4.5 

Pension trend (%) 0.6 0.5 

Salary trend (%) 2.0 1.6 

Number of insured employees 5 637 5 459 

Number of insured retired persons 1 512 1 529 

Total number of defined benefit plans 36 36 

Thereof number of defined benefit plans funded 13 13 

Thereof number of defined benefit plans unfunded 23 23 

1 The return on investment was established for the individual investment categories based on investment strategies and expected returns. 

Health care cost increases neither have an influence on future service cost nor the present value of defined benefit 
obligations. 
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15. sHAreHoLders’ equit y CHf 2 007.4 mN (CHf 1 839.1 mN) 
Equity accounts for 47.1% (48.0%) of the balance sheet total. 

CApitAL stoCk 
in CHF mn 

Registered shares, nominal value CHf 0.10 

Bearer shares, nominal value CHf 0.60 

Number 

2 333 874 

2 151 199 

2011 

0.2 

1.3 

2012 

0.2 

1.3 

Capital stock 1.5 1.5 

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General meeting payment of a dividend of CHf 8.50 per registered share 
and of CHf 51.00 per bearer share, in the total amount of CHf 128.8 million, to the shareholders of Sika AG.  

The capital stock breaks down as follows: 

12/31/2011 (units) 

bearer shares1 

nominal value CHF 0.60 
(CHF 0.60) 

2 151 199 

registered shares 
nominal value CHF 0.10 

(CHF 0.10) 

2 333 874 

total 1 

4 485 073 

Nominal value (CHf) 1 290 719 233 387 1 524 106 

12/31/2012 (units) 2 151 199 2 333 874 4 485 073 

Nominal value (CHf) 1 290 719 233 387 1 524 106 

1 Includes treasury shares 14 497 units (29 128 units) which do not carry voting and dividend rights. 

16. Net sALes CHf 4 828.9 mN (CHf 4 563.7 mN) 
Sales of goods account for practically all net sales. In comparison with the previous year, net sales denominated in Swiss 
francs increased by 5.8%. Taking currency effects amounting to +0.5% into consideration, sales increased in local currencies 
by 5.3%, included is a growth from acquisitions of 3.5%. 

Revenue from construction contracts in the year under review amounted to CHf 7.1 million (CHf 26.3 million). On the 
balance sheet date accrued construction costs and recognized profits (less recognized losses) were CHf 118.7 million 
(CHf 111.6 million). On the balance sheet date, as in the previous year, there were insignificant receivables and no liabilities 
from construction contracts. Contract revenues and contract costs are recognized as income and expenses by reference 
to the stage of completion. 

17. mAteriAL expeNses CHf 2 309.6 mN (CHf 2 259.1 mN) 
material expenses decreased as a percentage of net sales by 1.7 percentage points. 
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18. operAtiNg proFit beFore depreCiAtioN CHf 568.9 mN (CHf 477.4  mN) 
In the year under review the strong material price increases of the previous year could be passed on through sales prices. 
In combination with a temporarily volatile but generally moderate growth in material prices the gross margin improved 
from 50.5% to 52.2%. 

Operational costs were at a slightly higher level mainly due to an increase in personnel expenses, furthermore due to 
selective adjustments of structures to take into account the current economic environment in individual countries. 

Expenditures on research and development in the Group in the year under review totaled CHf 172.9 million (CHf 167.5 million), 
roughly equivalent to 3.6% (3.7%) of sales. Central expenditures totaled CHf 86.1 million (CHf 82.8 million). Research and 
development expenses are included in operating costs. 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Gross result 2 304.6 2 519.3 

Personnel expenses -959.9 -1 041.4 

Other operating expenses -867.3 -909.0 

operating profit before depreciation 477.4 568.9 

persoNNeL expeNses 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Wages and salaries 788.9 837.5 

Social charges 171.0 203.9 

total personnel expenses 959.9 1 041.4 

empLoyee beNeFit Costs 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Employee benefit plans with defined benefits 1 19.9 36.1 

Other employee benefit plans 28.5 33.7 

total 48.4 69.8 

1 Details to be found in note 14. 

share based payments. Senior managers and Group management receive shares of Sika AG as a component of their 
salary. The shares are granted at the avarage market price of february of the subsequent business year. The allocated 
shares are subject to a vesting period of four years. The following different share plans are in place: 

Senior managers may draw 20% of the performance-based short-term variable remunerations in the form of shares of 
Sika AG. As remuneration for the services rendered by them in 2011, in 2012 they drew 308 shares at a fair value of 
CHf 0.6 million (CHf 1 960 per share). In 2011, the fair value of the compensation for 2010 amounted to CHf 0.7 million. 
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The performance-based portion of the short-term variable remunerations for Group management is paid out 20% in the 
form of shares of Sika AG. moreover, members of Group management have an option to draw a further 20% of the variable 
remunerations in the form of shares of Sika AG. As compensation for the services rendered by them in 2011, in 2012 they 
drew 602 shares at a fair value of CHf 1.2 million (CHf 1 960 per share). In 2011 the fair value of the compensation for 2010 
amounted to CHf 1.3 million. 

The performance-based portion of the long-term variable remuneration for Group management is paid out in full in shares 
of Sika AG and is conditional on the vesting period of three years. In 2012, 3 026 shares at a fair value of CHf 5.9 million 
(CHf 1 960 per share) were allocated to the members of Group management as part of the long-term compensation 
program. In 2011, the fair value of the compensation amounted to CHf 3.1 million. 

Since this term of office the members of the Board of Directors receive shares of Sika AG as a component of their com­
pensation. for the year under review 458 shares at a fair value of CHf 0.6 million (CHf 1 917 per share) were allocated to 
the members of the Board of Directors. 

Share-based remunerations are made by means of the transfer of treasury shares of Sika AG. The personnel expenses 
recognized for services received in the 2012 business year totalled CHf 20.9 million (CHf 20.5 million) of which the amount 
of CHf 5.3 million (CHf 7.5 million) was taken to equity and the amount of CHf 15.6 million (CHf 13.0 million) was recog­
nized under liabilities. Provided employees are entitled to the option of drawing shares of Sika AG, this portion will be rec­
ognized under liabilities as at the balance sheet date, and in the event that shares are drawn, this portion will be taken to 
equity in the subsequent year. In the year under review the fair value of the allocated shares taken to shareholders’ equity 
amounted to CHf 0.7 million (CHf 1.1 million). 

In the year under review modifications were made to the existing share based payment plans. Individual target values 
were changed but the terms and conditions did not deteriorate. The share based compensation is still based on shares 
of Sika AG. The adjustments to the terms and conditions had no impact on the fair value of the instruments as of the 
modification date. 

No dilution effect results because no additional shares have been issued. 

19. depreCiAtioN ANd AmortiZAtioN expeNses/impAirmeNt CHf 140.1 mN (CHf 130.3 mN) 
In the year under review no impairments were taken (previous year CHf 1.4 million). The amount includes the regular 
depreciations and amortizations, which increased slightly as a result of acquisitions. 

20. iNterest expeNses/otHer FiNANCiAL expeNses CHf 46.9 mN (CHf 51.4 mN) 
This item consists mainly of interest expenses for bond issues outstanding as well as gains and losses from foreign currency 
transactions and the hedging of loans. The effective interest on bonds amounts to CHf 27.2 million (CHf 31.8 million). 

21. iNterest iNCome/otHer FiNANCiAL iNCome/iNCome From AssoCiAted CompANies 
CHf 11.1 mN (CHf 19.8 mN) 
Short-term surpluses in liquidity in various countries led to interest income of CHf 6.9 million (CHf 5.0 million). 
Income from associated companies amount to CHf 1.4 million (CHf 9.6 million). Other financial income decreased to 
CHf 2.8 million (CHf 5.2 million). 

22. NoN-CoNtroLLiNg iNterests CHf 1.6 mN (CHf 1.5 mN) 
most important companies with non-controlling interests: 
– Jiangsu TmS Admixture Co. ltd., China (30%) 
– Hebei Jiuqiang Construction material Co. ltd., China (33%) 
– Sika Arabia Holding Co. Wll, Bahrain (49%) 
– Sika UAE llC, UAE (49%) 
– Sika Saudi Arabia Co. ltd., Saudi Arabia (49%) 
– Sika Gulf B.S.C., Bahrain (49%) 
– Consorzio IGS, Switzerland (35%) 
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23. eArNiNgs per sHAre CHf 110.98 (CHf 85.06) 

2011 2012 

Undiluted (“basic ePS”) 

Net profit (in CHf mn) 213.3 279.5 

Weighted average number of shares 1 

Bearer shares 2/units 2 118 681 2 129 387 

Registered shares 3/units 2 333 874 2 333 874 

earnings per share 

Bearer share 2/CHf 85.06 110.98 

Registered share 3/CHf 14.18 18.50 

1 Excluding bearer treasury shares held in the Group at a nominal value of CHf 0.60 (CHf 0.60).
 
2 Nominal value: CHf 0.60 (CHf 0.60).
 
3 Nominal value: CHf 0.10 (CHf 0.10).
 

Earnings per share (EPS) amount to CHf 110.98 (CHf 85.06). The EPS is calculated on the basis of net profit after non­
controlling interests and the number of shares entitled to dividend, weighted over the course of the year. No dilution 
effect results because no options or convertible bonds are outstanding. for the business year 2011 the dividend amounted 
to CHf 45.00 per bearer share and to CHf 7.50 per registered share whereas CHf 21.00 and CHf 3.50 respectively were 
paid out of capital contribution reserves. 

24. FiNANCiAL iNstrumeNts ANd risk mANAgemeNt 
The financial instruments and the related risk management of the Sika Group are presented in this note. 

FAir vALue oF FiNANCiAL Assets ANd FiNANCiAL LiAbiLities 
2011 

Level book Fair book Fair 
in CHF mn value value value value 

financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Available-for-sale financial assets 1 

536.0 

15.5 

536.0 

15.5 

994.2 

0.0 

994.2 

0.0 

loans and receivables 889.7 889.7 876.5 876.5 

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
(derivatives) 

1 

2 

0.0 

4.0 

0.0 

4.0 

23.9 

10.3 

23.9 

10.3 

total 1 445.2 1 445.2 1 904.9 1 904.9 

financial liabilities 

Bank overdrafts 34.6 34.6 13.1 13.1 

Bonds 796.0 836.1 1 097.0 1 144.9 

Accounts payable 

Other financial liabilities 

501.0 

46.2 

501.0 

46.2 

492.1 

41.8 

492.1 

41.8 

financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 1 377.8 1 417.9 1 644.0 1 691.9 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 
(derivatives) 2 4.5 4.5 2.2 2.2 

total 1 382.3 1 422.4 1 646.2 1 694.1 
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The hierarchy below classifies financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have 
been defined as follows: 
– level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
–	 level 2: procedures in which all input parameters having an essential effect on the registered market value are either 

directly or indirectly observable. 
–	 level 3: procedures applying input parameters having an essential effect on the registered market value but are not 

based on observable market data. 

Sika does not own any financial instruments requiring evaluation according to level 3 procedures.  

A net loss of CHf 17.6 million (net loss of CHf 42.8 million) on financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through 
profit or loss was recognized in the income statement under other financial expenses. 

management of financial risks 
basic principles. The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks (primarily foreign exchange 
risks, price risks, and interest rate risks), credit risks, and liquidity risks. The Group’s financial risk management program 
focuses on hedging volatility risks. 

The Corporate finance Department identifies, evaluates, and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Group’s 
operating units. 

to seCure owN obLigAtioNs, pLedged or Ceded Assets (eNCumbered Assets) 
in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Receivables 1.9 2.0 

Property, plant, and equipment 1.3 1.3 

total book value of encumbered assets 3.2 3.3 

opeN derivAtives 
Contractual value upon maturity 

replacement value Contract 
value 

up to 
3 months 

3 to 12 
months 

in CHF mn (+) (-) 

open derivatives 2011 

forward contracts (foreign exchange) 0.2 -0.6 41.6 41.6 0.0 

Swaps (foreign exchange) 3.9 -4.0 813.2 393.6 419.6 

total derivatives 4.1 -4.6 854.8 435.2 419.6 

open derivatives 2012 

Swaps (foreign exchange)	 10.3 -2.2 795.0 236.5 558.5 

total derivatives	 10.3 -2.2 795.0 236.5 558.5 
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Foreign exchange risks. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various 
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the euro and the US dollar. foreign exchange risk arises when commercial 
transactions as well as recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional 
currency. 

The Group makes every effort to offset the impact of exchange rate movements as far as possible by utilizing natural 
hedges. foreign exchange forward contracts/swaps are used to hedge foreign exchange risks. Gains and losses on foreign 
exchange hedges and assets or liabilities carried at fair value are recognized through profit or loss. The Group does not apply 
hedge accounting. 

Sika carries out a sensitivity analysis for the dominant foreign currencies euro and US dollar. The assumed possible currency 
fluctuations are based on historical observations and future prognoses. Incorporated into calculations are the financial 
instruments, Group-internal financing, and foreign currency hedge transactions in the corresponding currencies. The 
following table demonstrates the sensitivity of consolidated net profit before tax to a reasonably possible shift in exchange 
rates related to financial instruments held in the balance sheet. All other variables are held constant. The impact on share­
holders’ equity is insignificant. 

CurreNCy ANd Assumed rAte oF CHANge AgAiNst CHF 
effect on profit before tax in CHF mn 2011 2012 

EUR: +10% (+10%) -5.1 -1.2 

EUR: -10% (-10%) 5.1 1.2 

USD: +10% (+10%) -14.2 -13.0 

USD: -10% (-10%) 14.2 13.0 

price risks. The Group is exposed to purchasing price risks because cost of materials represents one of the Group’s largest 
cost factors. Purchasing prices are influenced far more by the interplay between supply and demand, the general eco­
nomic environment, and intermittent disruptions of processing and logistics chains, ranging from crude oil to purchased 
merchandise, than by crude oil prices themselves. Short-term crude oil price increases only have limited impact on raw 
material prices. Sika limits market price risks for important products by means of maintaining corresponding inventories 
and Group contracts (lead buying). The most important raw materials are polymers such as polyurethane, epoxy resins, 
polyvinyl chloride and cementitious basic materials. Other measures such as hedging are not practical because there is no 
corresponding market for these semi-finished products. 

interest rate risk. Interest rate risks result from changes in interest rates, which could have a negative impact on the 
Group’s financial position, cash flow and earnings situation. Interest rate risk is limited through emission of fixed interest 
long-term bonds (nominal CHf 1 100 million). A change in the rate of interest would therefore alter neither annual financial 
expenses nor shareholders’ equity materially. local bank loans and mortgages are insignificant. Interest rate development 
is closely monitored by management. 
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Credit risk. Credit risks arise from the possibility that the counterparty to a transaction may not be able or willing to 
discharge its obligations, thereby causing the Group to suffer a financial loss. Counterparty risks are minimized by only 
concluding contracts with reputable business partners and banks. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis via internal reporting procedures. Potential concentrations of risks are reduced by the large number of 
customers and their geographic dispersion. No customer represents more than 1.5% of the Group’s net sales. The Group 
held no securities for loans and accounts receivable at year-end 2011 nor at year-end 2012. The largest possible risk rep­
resented by these items are the carrying amount of the accounts receivables and any warranties granted. 

Liquidity risk. liquidity risk refers to the risk of Sika no longer being able to meet its financial obligations in full. Prudent 
liquidity management includes maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and securing the availability of liquidity 
reserves which can be called up at short notice. Group management monitors the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of 
expected cash flows. 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the balance sheet date based on 
contractual undiscounted payments. 

mAturity proFiLe oF FiNANCiAL LiAbiLities 
Less than between 1 over total 

in CHF mn 1 year and 5 years 5 years 

december 31, 2011 

Bank loans 27.0 7.6 0.0 34.6 

Bonds 23.6 855.7 0.0 879.3 

Accounts payable 501.0 0.0 0.0 501.0 

Other financial liabilities 14.5 29.2 2.5 46.2 

financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 566.1 892.5 2.5 1 461.1 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.5 

total 570.6 892.5 2.5 1 465.6 

december 31, 2012 

Bank loans 10.9 2.2 0.0 13.1 

Bonds 277.8 598.6 314.6 1 191.0 

Accounts payable 492.1 0.0 0.0 492.1 

Other financial liabilities 12.8 26.8 2.2 41.8 

financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 793.6 627.6 316.8 1 738.0 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.2 

total 795.8 627.6 316.8 1 740.2 

Capital management. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong 
credit rating and healthy equity ratios in order to support its business. The Group manages its capital structure and 
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or 
processes during the years ended December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011. The Group monitors its equity using the 
equity ratio, which is shareholders’ equity divided by total capital. 
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25. Future obLigAtioNs 
raw material supply contracts. Sika concludes collective lead-buying purchase contracts at Group level for important 
raw materials. 

delivery contracts for finished goods. Supply contracts are in effect with major customers. No other future obligations 
in excess of normal business activities existed as of the date of this report. 

in CHF mn 2011 

Raw material supply contracts 1 175 

Delivery contracts for finished goods 1 422 

1 Contracts run until 2018, maximum. 

Contingent liabilities. Given the Group’s international operations, there are inherent tax risks (e. g. owing to transfer prices) 
which cannot be conclusively estimated. In ongoing business activity the Group may be involved in legal proceedings such as 
lawsuits, claims, investigations, and negotiations due to product liability, mercantile law, environmental protection, health, 
and safety, etc. There are no current proceedings of this nature pending which could have significant influence on business 
operations, on the Group’s financial position or income. The Group is active in countries in which political, economic, social, 
and legal developments could impair business activity. The effect of such risks as can occur in the course of normal business 
operations is unforeseeable. In addition, their probability of occurrence lies below 50%. 

in CHF mn 2011 

Guarantees and letters of comfort 23 

If guarantees were claimed at the earliest possible date, then all would be due within one year. 

26. CAsH FLow ANALysis
 
details to the cash flow analysis. Compared with the previous year, cash flow was influenced by:
 
– higher consolidated net profit before tax (CHf 77.5 million)
 
– the change in net working capital (CHf 64.0 million)
 
– higher income tax payments (CHf -50.2 million)
 
– lower acquisition activity (CHf 135.3 million)
 
– issue of a bond (CHf 574.3 million)
 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Operating activities 299.3 427.3 

Investment activities -263.9 -139.0 

financing activities -430.3 173.9 

Exchange differences -7.5 -4.0 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents -402.4 458.2 
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Free cash flow and operating free cash flow 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Cash flow from operating activities 299.3 427.3 

Net investment in 

Property, plant, and equipment -96.0 -119.6 

Intangible assets -12.4 -5.2 

Acquisitions less cash and cash equivalents -143.8 -8.5 

Capital increase at associated companies -4.8 0.0 

Acquisitions (-)/disposals (+) of financial assets -6.9 -5.7 

free cash flow 35.4 288.3 

Acquisitions/disposals less cash and cash equivalents 143.8 8.5 

Acquisitions (+)/disposals (-) of financial assets 6.9 5.7 

operating free cash flow 186.1 302.5 

other adjustments. Included in other adjustments are: 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Non-liquidity-related interest expenses/income -0.9 1.5 

Non-liquidity-related financial expenses/income -1.6 -4.5 

Profit/loss from disposals of PPE -5.3 -1.1 

Personnel expense settled through treasury shares 4.8 7.7 

total -3.0 3.6 

27. segmeNt reportiNg 
Sika conducts its worldwide activities according to regions, to which a certain number of countries belong. Region heads 
are members of Group management. Group management is the highest operative executive body measuring the profit 
and loss of segments and allocating resources. The key figure of profit by which the segments are directed is that of oper­
ating profit, which stands in correlation with the consolidated financial statement. The financing (including financial 
expenditures and revenues) as well as income taxes are managed uniformly across the Group and are not assigned to the 
individual segments. The precise composition of the regions is shown on page 14. 

Products and services from all product groups are sold in all regions. Customers derive from the building and construction 
industry or from the area of industrial manufacturing. Sales are assigned according to company locations. Taxes and any 
effects of financing are allocated to other segments and activities. Transfer prices between segments are calculated 
according to generally recognized principles. 

Since 2011, the Automotive segment has been managed centrally on a global basis and reported in “Other segments and 
activities.” Certain sales activities were still allocated to regions in 2011 but are managed centrally since 2012. The prior 
year figures have been restated. 

“Other segments and activities” include the Automotive segment, expenditures for Group head quarter and its proceeds 
from services and delivery of goods to Group companies. In addition they contain expenses and income that cannot be 
allocated to an individual region. mainly there are expenses for research and development. 
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The acquired Yean-il Industrial Co. ltd., Korea, was assigned to region Asia/Pacific. The acquisition of the fire protection 
coatings and systems business of mannheim based Rütgers Organics GmbH, Germany, was classified in the region Europe 
North. Sika Saudi Arabia Co. ltd., Saudi Arabia, was assigned to the region ImEA. 

Net sALes 
2011 2012 

in CHF mn 
with third 

parties 
with other 

segments 
total with third 

parties 
with other 

segments 
total 

Europe North 1 327.4 78.1 1 405.5 1 250.9 87.0 1 337.9 

Europe South 802.9 29.6 832.5 799.3 33.0 832.3 

North America 617.4 22.5 639.9 705.7 24.6 730.3 

latin America 507.3 0.1 507.4 586.3 0.1 586.4 

ImEA 263.9 0.7 264.6 278.5 1.0 279.5 

Asia/Pacific 776.7 5.0 781.7 874.7 6.7 881.4 

Other segments and activities 268.1 – 268.1 333.5 – 333.5 

Eliminations – -136.0 -136.0 – -152.4 -152.4 

Consolidated net sales 4 563.7 – 4 563.7 4 828.9 – 4 828.9 

Products for construction industry 3 698.6 3 883.7 

Products for industrial manufacturing 865.1 945.2 

CHANges iN Net sALes/CurreNCy impACt 
2011 2012 

in CHF mn 

Change compared to prior year 
(+/- in %) 

in swiss 
francs 

in local 
currencies 

Currency 
impact 

By region 

Europe North 1 327.4 1 250.9 -5.8 -3.9 -1.9 

Europe South 802.9 799.3 -0.4 1.0 -1.4 

North America 617.4 705.7 14.3 9.0 5.3 

latin America 507.3 586.3 15.6 17.0 -1.4 

ImEA 263.9 278.5 5.5 7.7 -2.2 

Asia/Pacific 776.7 874.7 12.6 6.8 5.8 

Other segments and activities 268.1 333.5 24.4 25.5 -1.1 

Consolidated net sales 4 563.7 4 828.9 5.8 5.3 0.5 

Products for construction industry 3 698.6 3 883.7 5.0 4.2 0.8 

Products for industrial manufacturing 865.1 945.2 9.3 9.5 -0.2 

Sika Annual Report 2012 

128 • noteS to the ConSolidAted finAnCiAl StAtementS 



  

     

   

operAtiNg proFit 
2011 2012 Change compared to prior year 

in CHF mn (+/-) (+/- in %) 

By region 

Europe North 

Europe South 

North America 

latin America 

ImEA 

Asia/Pacific 

operating profit 

Other segments and activities 

123.5 

84.8 

50.9 

94.4 

25.1 

95.8 

474.5 

-127.4 

130.8 

67.8 

69.6 

107.9 

27.7 

116.8 

520.6 

-91.8 

7.3 

-17.0 

18.7 

13.5 

2.6 

21.0 

46.1 

35.6 

5.9 

-20.0 

36.7 

14.3 

10.4 

21.9 

9.7 

n.a. 

operating profit of the group 347.1 428.8 81.7 23.5 

reCoNCiLiAtioN oF segmeNt resuLt ANd Net proFit 
in CHF mn 

operating profit of the Group 

Interest income 

Interest expenses 

Other financial income 

Other financial expenses 

Income from associated companies 

Profit before taxes 

Income taxes 

2011 

347.1 

5.0 

-33.4 

5.2 

-18.0 

9.6 

315.5 

-100.7 

2012 

428.8 

6.9 

-30.6 

2.8 

-16.3 

1.4 

393.0 

-111.9 

Net profit 214.8 281.1 

Europe North 24.0 0.1 19.2 21.8 0.0 9.2 

Europe South 14.0 0.0 11.7 19.6 0.0 16.4 

North America 21.7 0.0 13.4 24.2 0.0 14.0 

latin America 6.0 0.0 19.2 6.5 0.0 24.3 

ImEA 3.1 0.0 6.4 3.9 0.0 6.0 

Asia/Pacific 19.3 0.0 17.3 20.5 0.0 22.7 

Segment results 88.1 0.1 87.2 96.5 0.0 92.6 

Other segments and activities 40.8 1.3 29.9 43.6 0.0 38.7 

total 128.9 1.4 117.1 140.1 0.0 131.3 

2011 2012 

in CHF mn 

depreciation impairment Capital 
expendi­

tures 

depre­
ciation 

impairment Capital 
expendi­

tures 
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The following countries had a share of greater than 10% of at least one of corresponding Group key figures: 

Net sales Non-current assets1 

in CHF mn 2011 % 2012 % 2011 % 2012 % 

Switzerland 332.3 7.3 302.0 6.3 526.5 31.8 502.9 30.8 

USA 589.3 12.9 690.8 14.3 246.8 14.9 226.0 13.8 

Germany 562.8 12.3 562.4 11.6 128.9 7.8 141.7 8.7 

All other 3 079.3 67.5 3 273.7 67.8 752.1 45.5 764.0 46.7 

total 4 563.7 100.0 4 828.9 100.0 1 654.3 100.0 1 634.6 100.0 

1 Non-current assets less financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employement benefit assets. 

28. reLAted persoNs 
At the end of the year under review Sika had one significant shareholder with a share of voting rights of over 3.0%: this is 
the Burkard-Schenker familiy, which according to information provided by the family as of December 31, 2012 holds 53.0% 
of all share votes, in part through the Schenker-Winkler Holding AG, Baar. 

Associated companies. In the year under review goods totalling CHf 7.9 million (CHf 9.8 million) were delivered to Addiment 
Italia S.r.l. In addition Sika made further deliveries of goods and services to the other associated companies in a total amount 
of CHf 11.0 million (CHf 13.6 million). These transactions occurred on the usual conditions between wholesale partners. 

employee benefit plans. In Switzerland, employee benefit plans are handled through legally independent foundations, 
to which a total of CHf 21.6 million (CHf 21.3 million) was paid in the year under review. As of the balance sheet date no 
material receivables or payables were due from these foundations. Sika offices are located in a building leased from the 
pension fund foundation. Rent for 2012 amounted to CHf 0.5 million (CHf 0.5 million). No further major transactions 
were conducted with related parties. 

members of the board of directors. In the year under review property, plant, and equipment in the amount of CHf 0.2 million 
(CHf 1.3 million) and services in the amount of CHf 0.7 million (CHf 0.6 million) were acquired from companies of two 
members of the Board of Directors.  

All transactions were conducted at market conditions. 
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29. remuNerAtioN oF tHe boArd oF direCtors ANd group mANAgemeNt 
for the business year 2012, the Board of Directors is entitled to the following remuneration: 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

Current benefits 1 19.6 16.1 

Non-current benefits 2 2.3 2.4 

Social security contributions 3.3 3.2 

total 25.2 21.7 

1 members of Group management draw 20% or 40% of their variable short-term bonus in the form of shares. The allocation occurs at fair value. 
2 The long-term variable salary portion is based on a target to be met within a period of three years. This portion is paid out entirely in Sika shares. The 

allocation occurs at fair value. The amounts disclosed are the annual accruals and refer to Group management. 

Detailed information regarding remuneration of the Board of Directors and Group management as well as participations 
in Sika AG can be found in notes 19 to 21 of the Sika AG financial Statements (as of page 150). 

30. reLeAse oF FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts For pubLiCAtioN 
The Board of Directors of Sika AG approved the Consolidated financial Statements for publication on february 22, 2013. 
The financial statements will be submitted for approval to the Annual General meeting on April 16, 2013. 

31. eveNts AFter tHe bALANCe sHeet dAte 
The following event occurred between December 31, 2012 and the release of these consolidated financial statements: 

At the end of 2012, Sika agreed to acquire Inatec SRl, Paraguay. The transactions will close only after publication of the 
consolidated financial statements and the precise details of the size and breakdown of the assets is still not known. from 
a Group perspective the amounts are immaterial. for this reason, Sika has decided against a provisional purchase price 
allocation. Inatec has annual sales of about CHf 7 million. 

32. iNFormAtioN oN exeCutioN oF risk AssessmeNt 
Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors of Sika AG and by Group management. The Board of Directors is 
the highest authority for risk assessment. The Board assesses risks annually at the level of the Group and Sika AG. Group 
management regularly reviews the processes which form the basis for risk management. The risk management process 
comprises four steps: risk identification, risk assessment, risk monitoring, and risk controlling. 

Details regarding the assessment of risk management can be found in note 24 to the Consolidated financial Statements. 
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 AppeNdix to tHe CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

list of Group Companies 

Country Company1 Capital stock 
in thousands 

% holding Certifi­
cation 

europe North 

Austria m Sika Österreich GmbH, Bludenz EUR 2 500 100 ◆ ★ 

Belgium < Sika SA, Brussels EUR 2 500 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Automotive Belgium SA, Saintes EUR 1 649 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

m Sika Viscocrete Belgium NV, Brussels EUR 7 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Croatia < Sika Croatia d.o.o., Zagreb HRK 4 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Czech Republic m Sika CZ, s.r.o., Brno CZK 30 983 100 ◆ ★ 

Denmark m Sika Danmark A/S, fredensborg DKK 5 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

finland m Oy Sika finland Ab, Espoo EUR 850 100 ◆ ★ 

Germany s Sika Holding GmbH, Stuttgart EUR 26 000 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Deutschland GmbH, Stuttgart EUR 75 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Automotive GmbH, Hamburg EUR 5 300 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Trocal GmbH, Troisdorf EUR 4 000 100 ◆ ★ 

z Tricosal Bauabdichtungs GmbH, Stuttgart EUR 50 100 

Hungary < Sika Hungária Kft., Budapest HUf 483 000 100 ◆ ★ 

latvia m Sika Baltic SIA, Riga lVl 870 100 

Netherlands < Sika Nederland B.V., Utrecht EUR 1 589 100 ◆ ★ 

m BV Descol Kunststof Chemie, Deventer EUR 1 588 100 ◆ ★ 

s AKIS Netherlands B.V., Utrecht CHf 10 100 

Norway m Sika Norge A/S, Skytta NOK 42 900 100 ◆ ★ 

Poland m Sika Poland Sp.z.o.o., Warsaw PlZ 12 188 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Romania m Sika Romania s.r.l., Brasov RON 1 285 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Russia m Sika llC, lobnya RUB 285 394 100 ◆ 

Slovakia < Sika Slovensko spol. s.r.o., Bratislava EUR 1 131 100 ◆ ★ 

Slovenia < Sika Slovenija d.o.o., Trzin EUR 1 029 100 ◆ ★ 

Sweden m Sika Sverige AB, Spånga SEK 10 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Switzerland m Sika Schweiz AG, Zurich CHf 52 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

z Consorzio IGS, Zurich CHf 0 65 

s Sika Services AG, Zurich CHf 300 100 ◆ ★ 

s Sika Technology AG, Baar CHf 300 100 ◆ ★ 

s Sika Informationssysteme AG, Urdorf CHf 400 100 

z SikaBau AG, Zurich CHf 5 300 100 ◆ 

s Sika finanz AG, Baar CHf 2 400 100 

m Sika manufacturing AG, Sarnen CHf 14 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

s Sika Supply Center AG, Sarnen CHf 1 000 100 ◆ ★ 

< Sucoflex AG, Pfäffikon CHf 1 000 100 ◆ ★ 

< Sika Sarnafil AG, Sarnen CHf 1 650 100 

m BIRO Edwin Bischof AG, Romanshorn CHf 3 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Ukraina < llC “Sika Ukraina”, Kiev UAH 2 933 100 
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Country Company1 Capital stock 
in thousands 

% holding Certifi­
cation 

europe south 

Algeria ❏ Sika El Djazaïr SpA, Eucalyptus Alger DZD 313 400 100 ◆ 

Bulgaria < Sika Bulgaria EOOD, Sofia BGl 340 100 ◆ ★ 

france m Sika france SAS, Paris EUR 14 794 100 ◆ ★ 

m Axim SAS, Guerville EUR 496 100 ◆ ★ 

Greece m Sika Hellas ABEE, Athens EUR 3 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Ireland m Sika Ireland ltd., Ballymun, Dublin EUR 635 100 ◆ 

s AKIS Ireland ltd., Dublin CHf 70 100 

Italy m Sika Italia S.p.A., milan EUR 5 000 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Engineering Silicones S.r.l., milan EUR 1 600 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika Polyurethane manufacturing S.r.l., Cerano EUR 1 600 100 ◆ ★ 

m Technokolla S.p.A., Sassuolo (modena) EUR 5 000 100 ◆ 

mauritius m Sika mauritius ltd., Plaine lauzun mUR 2 600 100 

morocco m Sika maroc SA, Casablanca mAD 55 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

m Axim maroc SA, Casablanca mAD 11 000 100 

Portugal m Sika Portugal – Productos Construção Indústria SA, EUR 1 500 100 ◆ ★ 

Vila Nova de Gaia 
Serbia m Sika d.o.o. Beograd, Belgrade-Batajnica EUR 373 100 

Spain m Sika SA, Alcobendas EUR 19 867 100 ◆ ★ 

Tunisia ❏ Sika Tunisienne Sàrl, Douar Hicher TND 150 86 ◆ ★ 

United Kingdom m Sika ltd., Welwyn Garden City GBP 10 000 100 ◆ ★ 

m Incorez ltd., lancashire GBP 1 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

❏ Production, sales, construction contracting 
m Production and sales 
< Sales 
s Real estate and service companies 
z Construction contracting 

◆ ISO 9001 (Quality management) 
★ ISO 14001 (Environmental management) 
✲ OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health and Safety) 

for associated companies see note 7. 
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Country Company1 Capital stock 
in thousands 

% holding Certifi­
cation 

imeA (india, middle east, Africa) 

Azerbaijan m Sika limited liability Comp., Baku CHf 250 100 

Bahrain m Sika Gulf B.S.C., Adliya BHD 1 000 51 ◆ ★ ✲ 

s Sika Arabia Holding Company Wll, Adliya BHD 6 000 51 

Egypt m Sika Egypt for Construction Chemicals S.A.E., Cairo EGP 10 000 100  ◆ ★ 

m Sika manufacturing for Construction, S.A.E., Cairo EGP 2 000 100 ◆ ★ 

India m Sika India Private ltd., mumbai INR 45 000 100 ◆ 

Iran < Sika Parsian P.J.S. Co., Teheran IRR mn 3 000 100 

Iraq < Sika AG for General Trading llC, Erbil IQD 1 000 100 

Jordan < The Swiss Construction Chemicals Co ltd., Aqaba JOD 50 100 

Kazakhstan m Sika Kazakhstan llP, Almaty KZT 22 384 100 ◆ 

Kenya m Sika East Africa ltd., Nairobi KES 50 000 100 

lebanon m Sika Near East SAl, Beirut lBP 400 100 

Pakistan m Sika Pakistan ltd., lahore PKR 82 958 100 

Qatar < Sika Qatar llC, Doha QAR 200 51 

Saudi Arabia m Sika Saudi Arabia Co ltd., Riyadh SAR 41 750 51 ◆ 

South Africa m Sika South Africa (Pty) ltd., Pinetown ZAR 25 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Turkey m Sika Yapi Kimyasallari A.S., Istanbul TRY 6 700 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

UAE m Sika UAE llC, Dubai AED 1 000 51 ◆ ★ ✲ 

< Sika fZCO, Dubai AED 500 100 

North America 

Canada m Sika Canada Inc., Pointe Claire/QC CAD 5 600 100 ◆ ★ 

m Axim Concrete Technologies, Cambridge/ON CAD 0 100 

USA m Sika Corporation, lyndhurst/NJ USD 72 710 100 ◆ ★ 

Latin America 

Argentina m Sika Argentina SAIC, Buenos Aires ARS 7 600 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Bolivia m Sika Bolivia SA, Santa Cruz de la Sierra BOB 1 800 100 ◆ 

Brazil m Sika SA, São Paulo BRl 40 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

m Colauto Adesivos e massas ltda., São Paulo BRl 18 410 100 ★ 

Chile m Sika SA Chile, Santiago ClP mn 4 430 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Colombia m Sika Colombia SA, Tocancipá COP mn 14 500 100 ◆ ★ 

Costa Rica < Sika productos para la construcción SA, Heredia CRC 153 245 100 

Dominican < Sika Dominicana SA, Santo Domingo D.N. DOP 12 150 100 
Republic 

Ecuador m Sika Ecuatoriana SA, Guayaquil USD 1 982 100 ◆ ★ 

Guatemala m Sika Guatemala SA, Ciudad de Guatemala GTQ 2 440 100 

mexico m Sika mexicana SA de CV, Querétaro mXN 40 035 100 ◆ ★ 

Panama < Sika Panamá SA, Ciudad de Panamá USD 200 100 

Peru m Sika Perú SA, lima PEN 3 500 100 ◆ ★ 

Uruguay m Sika Uruguay SA, montevideo UYP 22 800 100 ◆ ★ 

Venezuela m Sika Venezuela SA, Valencia VEf 3 398 100 
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Country Company1 Capital stock 
in thousands 

% holding Certifi­
cation 

Asia/pacific 

Australia m Sika Australia Pty. ltd., Wetherill Park AUD 4 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Cambodia < Sika (Cambodia) ltd., Phnom Penh KHR 422 000 100 

China m Sika (China) ltd., Suzhou USD 35 000 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

m Sika Sarnafil Waterproofing Systems, (Shanghai) ltd., USD 22 800 100 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Shanghai 

m Sika Guangzhou ltd., Guangzhou CNY 80 730 100 ◆ ★ 

m Sika ltd., Dalian CNY 45 317 100 ◆ 

< Sika (Guangzhou) Trading Company ltd., Guangzhou CNY 3 723 100 

m Sichuan Keshuai Admixture Co. ltd., Chengdu CNY 10 000 100 ◆ 

m Jiangsu TmS Concrete Admixture Co. ltd., Zhengjiang CNY 24 500 70 ◆ ★ ✲ 

m Hebei Jiuqiang Building material Co. ltd., CNY 30 000 67 ◆ ★ ✲ 

Zhengding County 

Hong Kong m Sika Hong Kong ltd., Shatin HKD 30 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Indonesia m Sika Indonesia P.T., Bogor IDR mn 3 282 100 ◆ ★ 

Japan m Sika ltd., Tokyo JPY 490 000 100 ◆ ★ 

s Dyflex HD Co. ltd., Tokyo JPY 10 000 76 

< Dic Proofing Co. ltd., Tokyo JPY 90 000 76 

m Dyflex Co. ltd., Tokyo JPY 315 175 76 ◆ ★ 

z DCS Kyoshin Co. ltd., Tokyo JPY 30 000 76 

< U-Plex Co. ltd., Tokyo JPY 100 000 76 

Korea m Sika Korea ltd., Ansong-city Kyunggi-Do KRW mn 5 596 100 ◆ ★ 

malaysia m Sika Kimia Sdn. Bhd., Nilai mYR 5 000 100 ◆ ★ 

s Sika Harta Sdn. Bhd., Nilai mYR 10 000 100 

mongolia m Sika mongolia llC, Ulaanbaatar mNT 278 884 100 

New Zealand m Sika (NZ) ltd., Auckland NZD 1 100 100 ◆ ★ 

Philippines m Sika Philippines Inc., manila PHP 56 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Singapore < Sika Singapore Pte. ltd., Singapore SGD 400 100 ◆ 

s Sika Asia Pacific mgt. Pte. ltd., Singapore SGD 100 100 

Taiwan m Sika Taiwan ltd., Taoyuan County TWD 40 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Thailand m Sika (Thailand) ltd., Cholburi THB 200 000 100 ◆ ★ 

Vietnam m Sika limited (Vietnam), Dong Nai Province VND mn 44 190 100 ◆ ★ 

❏ Production, sales, construction contracting 
m Production and sales 
< Sales 
s Real estate and service companies 
z Construction contracting 

◆ ISO 9001 (Quality management) 
★ ISO 14001 (Environmental management) 
✲ OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health and Safety) 

for associated companies see note 7. 
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AppeNdix to tHe CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Report of the Statutory Auditors to the Annual General meeting of Sika AG, Baar 

report oF tHe stAtutory Auditor oN tHe CoNsoLidAted FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 
As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sika AG, which comprise the balance 
sheet, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement, 
and notes (pages 86 to 135) for the year ended on December 31, 2012. 

board of directors’ responsibility. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International financial Reporting Standards (IfRS) and the 
requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing, and maintaining an internal control 
system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from mate­
rial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor’s responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards and International Standards 
on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess­
ments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

opinion. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with IfRS and comply with Swiss law. 

report oN otHer LegAL requiremeNts 
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and inde­
pendence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence. 

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal 
control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements according to the 
instructions of the Board of Directors. 

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved. 

Zug, february 22, 2013 

ERNST & YOUNG lTD 

BERNADETTE KOCH PASCAl KOCHER 
licensed audit expert licensed audit expert 
(Auditor in charge) 
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 Five-yeAr reviews 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31 

2009 2010 2011 2012 in CHF mn 2008 

Cash, cash equivalents 318.3 801.6 938.4 536.0 994.2 

Accounts receivable a 778.7 739.4 780.6 875.3 871.5 

Inventories b 512.7 451.4 499.7 530.6 521.6 

Other current assets 1 134.1 100.7 132.3 109.8 110.4 

total current assets 1 743.8 2 093.1 2 351.0 2 051.7 2 497.7 

Property, plant, and equipment 832.9 861.7 816.5 860.6 873.3 

Intangible assets 524.9 562.0 630.9 771.0 742.3 

Other non-current assets 2 107.8 122.0 142.4 147.0 149.0 

total non-current assets 1 465.6 1 545.7 1 589.8 1 778.6 1 764.6 

totAL Assets 3 209.4 3 638.8 3 940.8 3 830.3 4 262.3 

Accounts payable c 398.1 355.2 478.2 501.0 492.1 

Bonds (short-term) 0.0 0.0 274.6 0.0 249.9 

Other current liabilities 3 286.9 311.1 303.9 319.8 301.5 

Current liabilities 685.0 666.3 1 056.7 820.8 1 043.5 

Bonds 767.9 1 066.9 794.4 796.0 847.1 

Non-current provisions, employee benefit liabilities 220.8 233.4 223.7 233.5 234.8 

Other non-current liabilities 4 71.0 71.5 106.4 140.9 129.5 

total non-current liabilities 1 059.7 1 371.8 1 124.5 1 170.4 1 211.4 

total liabilities 1 744.7 2 038.1 2 181.2 1 991.2 2 254.9 

Capital stock 22.9 22.9 22.9 1.5 1.5 

Treasury shares -117.6 -106.3 -69.9 -55.7 -27.6 

Reserves 1 556.8 1 679.4 1 802.9 1 880.3 2 018.6 

equity attributable to Sika shareholders 1 462.1 1 596.0 1 755.9 1 826.1 1 992.5 

Non-controlling interests 2.6 4.7 3.7 13.0 14.9 

total shareholders’ equity d 1 464.7 1 600.7 1 759.6 1 839.1 2 007.4 

totAL LiAbiLities ANd sHAreHoLders’ equity e 3 209.4 3 638.8 3 940.8 3 830.3 4 262.3 

1 Prepaid expenses and accrued income, other current assets.
 
2 Investments in associated companies, deferred tax assets, and other non-current assets.
 
3 Accrued expenses and deferred income, income tax liabilities, current provisions, and other current liabilities.
 
4 Deferred tax liabilities and other non-current liabilities.
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 Five-yeAr reviews 

Consolidated Income Statement from January 1 to December 31 

in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

net sales 4 632.4 4 162.3 4 421.8 4 563.7 4 828.9 

material expenses -2 241.6 -1 867.0 -2 036.9 -2 259.1 -2 309.6 

Gross result 2 390.8 2 295.3 2 384.9 2 304.6 2 519.3 

Personnel expenses -957.8 -954.3 -953.7 -959.9 -1 041.4 

Other operating expenses -876.9 -801.1 -854.5 -867.3 -909.0 

operating profit before depreciation and restructuring 556.1 539.9 576.7 477.4 568.9 

Depreciation/impairment -134.1 -139.3 -137.5 -130.3 -140.1 

operating profit before restructuring 422.0 400.6 439.2 347.1 428.8 

Restructuring expenses 0.0 -56.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 

operating profit 422.0 344.0 439.2 347.1 428.8 

Interest income/expense -20.7 -24.3 -30.0 -28.4 -23.7 

financial income/expense/income 
from associated companies -28.0 -4.1 -5.8 -3.2 -12.1 

net profit before taxes 373.3 315.6 403.4 315.5 393.0 

Income taxes -105.9 -89.9 -92.8 -100.7 -111.9 

net profit 267.4 225.7 310.6 214.8 281.1 

free cash flow 89.5 312.5 244.0 35.4 288.3 

Gross result as % of net sales 51.7 55.2 54.0 50.5 52.2 

Operating profit before restructuring as % of net sales 9.1 9.6 9.9 7.6 8.9 

Net profit as % of net sales (ROS) 5.8 5.4 7.0 4.7 5.8 

Net profit as % of shareholders’ equity (ROE) 18.3 14.1 17.7 11.7 14.0 
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key bALANCe sHeet dAtA 
in CHF mn Calculation 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Net working capital (a + b - c) 893.3 835.6 802.1 904.9 901.0 

Net working capital as % of net sales 19.3 20.1 18.1 19.8 18.7 

Net debt 1 f 465.1 264.8 165.2 338.7 155.5 

Gearing in % (f : d) 31.8 16.5 9.4 18.4 7.7 

Equity ratio in % (d : e) 45.6 44.0 44.7 48.0 47.1 

1 Net debt: interest-bearing indebtedness (short and long-term bank debt, bonds and other current and non-current liabilities "other") less interest­
bearing current assets (cash and cash equivalents and securities). 

vALue-bAsed key dAtA 
2009 2010 2011 2012 in CHF mn Calculation 2008 

Capital employed 1 2 108.6 2 041.2 2 086.3 2 351.5 2 334.2 

Annual average of capital employed g 2 074.9 2 074.9 2 063.8 2 218.9 2 342.9 

Operating profit before restructuring h 422.0 400.6 439.2 347.1 428.8 

Return on capital employed (ROCE) in % (h : g) 20.3 19.3 21.3 15.6 18.3 

1 Capital employed = current assets, PPE, intangible assets less cash and cash equivalents, current securities, current liabilities (excluding bank loans 
and bond). 
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North America Latin America

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

661 605 589 617 706 433 395 478 507 586

47 64 56 51 70 59 57 88 94 108

7.1 10.6 9.5 8.3 9.9 13.6 14.4 18.4 18.5 18.4

25 25 25 22 24 6 6 6 6 6

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

26 24 9 13 14 26 8 11 19 24

other segments and activities total

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

11 12 221 268 334 4 632 4 162 4 422 4 564 4 829

-83 -112 -113 -127 -92 422 401 439 347 429

9.1 9.6 9.9 7.6 8.9

40 42 43 41 44 128 137 136 129 140

0 0 2 1 0 6 3 2 1 0

64 46 27 30 39 230 161 100 117 131
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Five-yeAr reviews 

Segment Information 

europe North europe south 

2012 in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Net sales 1 736 1 475 1 313 1 327 1 251 1 050 937 875 803 799 

Operating profit before 
restructuring 191 159 143 124 131 145 136 127 85 68 

in % of net sales 11.0 10.8 10.9 9.3 10.5 13.8 14.5 14.5 10.6 8.5 

Depreciation/amortization 28 29 25 24 22 15 19 16 14 20 

Impairment 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Capital expenditures 67 45 26 19 9 21 17 12 12 16 

imeA Asia/pacific 

2012 in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Net sales 258 266 285 264 279 483 473 661 777 875 

Operating profit before 
restructuring 32 43 46 25 28 32 54 93 96 117 

in % of net sales 12.4 16.2 16.1 9.5 10.0 6.6 11.4 14.1 12.3 13.4 

Depreciation/amortization 3 3 3 3 4 12 13 17 19 20 

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Capital expenditures 7 11 4 6 6 20 11 11 17 23 

Since 2011 the automotive business segment has been managed centrally on a global basis. Internal reporting structures 
have been adjusted accordingly. The corresponding automotive units are no longer broken down by region but reported as 
“Other segments and activities.” The 2010 figures have been adjusted accordingly. figures for earlier years have not been 
adjusted. 

Due to the first application of IfRS 8, data for 2008 were adjusted. 
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europe North europe south

in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Net sales 1 736 1 475 1 313 1 327 1 251 1 050 937 875 803 799

Operating profit before 
restructuring 191 159 143 124 131 145 136 127 85 68

in % of net sales 11.0 10.8 10.9 9.3 10.5 13.8 14.5 14.5 10.6 8.5

Depreciation/amortization 28 29 25 24 22 15 19 16 14 20

Impairment 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital expenditures 67 45 26 19 9 21 17 12 12 16

imeA Asia/pacific

in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Net sales 258 266 285 264 279 483 473 661 777 875

Operating profit before 
restructuring 32 43 46 25 28 32 54 93 96 117

in % of net sales 12.4 16.2 16.1 9.5 10.0 6.6 11.4 14.1 12.3 13.4

Depreciation/amortization 3 3 3 3 4 12 13 17 19 20

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

Capital expenditures 7 11 4 6 6 20 11 11 17 23

Since 2011 the automotive business segment has been managed centrally on a global basis. Internal reporting structures 
have been adjusted accordingly. The corresponding automotive units are no longer broken down by region but reported as 
“Other segments and activities.” The 2010 figures have been adjusted accordingly. figures for earlier years have not been 
adjusted.

Due to the first application of IfRS 8, data for 2008 were adjusted. 

  

  

 

  

 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

North America Latin America 

2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

661 605 589 617 706 433 395 478 507 586 

47 64 56 51 70 59 57 88 94 108 

7.1 10.6 9.5 8.3 9.9 13.6 14.4 18.4 18.5 18.4 

25 25 25 22 24 6 6 6 6 6 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

26 24 9 13 14 26 8 11 19 24 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

other segments and activities total 

2012 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 

11 12 221 268 334 4 632 4 162 4 422 4 564 4 829 

-83 -112 -113 -127 -92 422 401 439 347 429 

9.1 9.6 9.9 7.6 8.9 

40 42 43 41 44 128 137 136 129 140 

0 0 2 1 0 6 3 2 1 0 

64 46 27 30 39 230 161 100 117 131 
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 Five-yeAr reviews 

Employees 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

employees by region (as of december 31) 

europe north 4 741 4 417 4 455 4 997 4 907 

Switzerland 2 036 1 900 1 912 2 312 2 164 

Germany 1 422 1 336 1 321 1 417 1 440 

europe South 1 994 2 108 2 103 2 318 2 218 

france 685 617 603 595 582 

north America 1 358 1 163 1 360 1 491 1 437 

USA 1 180 991 1 189 1 256 1 218 

latin America 1 729 1 561 1 703 2 101 2 170 

Brazil 209 220 244 530 508 

imeA 873 892 1 082 1 224 1 281 

Asia/Pacific 2 205 2 228 2 779 3 123 3 220 

Japan 212 197 614 608 615 

total 12 900 12 369 13 482 15 254 15 233 

Personnel expenses (in Chf mn) 

Wages and salaries 780 769 775 789 837 

Social charges, other 178 185 178 171 204 

total personnel expenses 958 954 953 960 1 041 

Personnel expenses as % of net sales 21 23 22 21 22 

Key data per employee (in Chf 1 000) 

Net sales 376 329 342 318 317 

Net value-added 1 112 103 108 92 96 

1 See next page, five-year reviews, value-added statement. 
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Five-yeAr reviews 

Value-Added Statement 

in CHF mn 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Source of value-added 

Corporate performance (net sales) 4 632 4 162 4 422 4 564 4 829 

Intermediate inputs -3 139 -2 683 -2 914 -3 127 -3 212 

Gross value-added 1 493 1 479 1 508 1 437 1 617 

Expenses not affecting liquidity 

Depreciation and amortization -134 -139 -138 -130 -140 

Change in provisions 21 -42 23 8 -12 

Net value-added 1 380 1 298 1 393 1 315 1 465 

distribution of value-added 

To employees 

Wages and salaries 780 769 775 789 837 

Social charges 178 185 179 171 204 

To governments (income taxes) 106 90 93 101 112 

To lenders (financial expenses) 49 28 35 39 31 

To shareholders (dividend payout, including minority interests) 112 112 112 134 114 

To the company 

Net profit for the year 267 226 311 215 281 

less dividend payout -112 -112 -112 -134 -114 

Net value-added 1 380 1 298 1 393 1 315 1 465 

number of employees 

End of year 12 900 12 369 13 482 15 254 15 233 

Annual average 12 312 12 635 12 926 14 368 15 244 

Net value-added per employee (in CHF 1 000) 112 103 108 92 96 

Net vALue-Added 2012 

Intermediate inputs (68.5%) 66.5% 

Non-liquidity-related (2.7%) 3.2% 
expenses 

Net value-added (28.8%) 30.3% 

distributioN oF vALue-Added = 100% 

Employees 

Company 

Government 

Shareholders 

Lenders 

(73.0%) 

(6.1%) 

(7.7%) 

(10.2%) 

(3.0%) 

71.1% 

11.4% 

7.6% 

7.8% 

2.1% 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 2011 2012 
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 sikA Ag FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Sika AG Balance Sheet as of December 31 

in CHF mn Notes 2011 2012 

Cash in bank 1 395.6 637.9 

Securities 0.1 0.1 

Accounts receivable from subsidiaries 2 1 056.9 581.2 

Accounts receivable from third parties 2 6.9 4.2 

Treasury shares 3 29.5 27.6 

Accrued income 0.1 0.0 

Current assets 1 489.1 1 251.0 

Trademark licenses 5 6.7 6.3 

Investments 6 1 180.0 1 890.6 

long-term loans and other non-current assets 3.8 5.5 

Non-current assets 1 190.5 1 902.4 

Assets 2 679.6 3 153.4 

Accounts payable to subsidiaries 7 155.7 203.2 

Accounts payable to third parties 7 16.8 16.9 

Bond 9 0.0 250.0 

Deferred income 8 48.8 23.7 

Current liabilities 221.3 493.8 

Other non-current liabilities 9 12.9 11.3 

Bonds 9 800.0 850.0 

Provisions for risks related to investments 10 92.1 120.7 

Non-current liabilities 905.0 982.0 

LiAbiLities 1 126.3 1 475.8 

Capital stock 1.5 1.5 

legal reserves 169.1 88.1 

free reserves 65.9 94.0 

Retained earnings 1 316.8 1 494.0 

shareholders’ equity 11 1 553.3 1 677.6 

LiAbiLities ANd sHAreHoLders’ equity 2 679.6 3 153.4 
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 sikA Ag FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Sika AG Income Statement from January 1 to December 31 

in CHF mn Notes 2011 2012 

Income from subsidiaries 13 230.7 190.3 

financial income 14 71.5 83.9 

Trademark licenses 32.0 37.6 

Other income 15 0.1 17.0 

income 334.3 328.8 

Administrative expenses 16 24.2 14.0 

Personnel expenses 0.0 4.1 

financial expenses 17 73.0 60.9 

Taxes 0.2 5.7 

Depreciation/change in provisions 18 12.7 3.9 

Other expenses 7.6 2.6 

expenses 117.7 91.2 

Net proFit For tHe yeAr 216.6 237.6 
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sikA Ag FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Notes to the Sika AG financial Statements
 
(in accordance with article 663b, Swiss Code of Obligations)
 

The balance sheet of Sika AG has changed due to the transfer of financing activities to Sika finanz AG in November 2012. 
This relates in particular to accounts receivables and accounts payables from subsidiaries. A direct comparison with the 
prior year is therefore partially non-informative. 

1. CAsH iN bANk CHf 637.9 mN (CHf 395.6 mN) 
All bank deposits are held in interest-bearing accounts. CHf 617.5 million (CHf 297.3 million) from bank deposits are 
invested in Swiss francs and CHf 20.4 million (CHf 98.3 million) in foreign currencies. 

2. ACCouNts reCeivAbLe From subsidiAries ANd tHird pArties CHf 585.4 mN (CHf 1 063.8 mN) 
Receivables consist mainly of loans to subsidiaries. A significant proportion of the loans to subsidiaries were transferred 
to Sika finanz AG. The other loans of CHf 545.5 million (CHf 1 020.2 million) remain within Sika AG. 

Sika AG has additional receivables of CHf 35.7 million (CHf 36.7 million) due from Sika subsidiaries on open accounts. 

Receivables from third parties of CHf 4.2 million (CHf 6.9 million) include CHf 2.3 million (CHf 2.0 million) in credits from 
the Swiss tax authorities, CHf 1.7 million (CHf 1.7 million) from an insurance company and others of CHf 0.2 million 
(CHf 3.2 million). 

3. treAsury sHAres CHf 27.6 mN (CHf 29.5 mN) 
Treasury shares are appropriated for Group-wide share based payment plans and used to invest liquidity. The value 
adjustment for treasury shares of CHf 12.6 million was released. 

bearer shares registered shares total 
in CHF mn nominal value CHF 0.60 nominal value CHF 0.10 

units units 

As of January 1, 2011 35 908 33.7 0 0.0 33.7 

Reductions -9 496 -8.6 0 0.0 -8.6 

Additions 2 716 4.4 0 0.0 4.4 

Valuation adjustment – 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 

As of december 31, 2011 29 128 29.5 0 0.0 29.5 

Reductions -24 114 -33.7 0 0.0 -33.7 

Additions 9 483 19.2 0 0.0 19.2 

Valuation adjustment – 12.6 0 0.0 12.6 

As of december 31, 2012 14 497 27.6 0 0.0 27.6 

4. FurNisHiNgs CHf 1.00 P. m. (CHf 1.00 P. m.) 
Acquired furnishings, as well as hardware and software, are depreciated in the year of acquisition and included as memo 
items at CHf 1.00. The fire insurance value amounts to CHf 0.6 million (CHf 0.6 million). 

5. trAdemArk LiCeNses CHf 6.3 mN (CHf 6.7 mN) 
Capitalized trademark licenses are amortized over their useful life. 

6. iNvestmeNts CHf 1 890.6 mN (CHf 1 180.0 mN) 
The increase in shareholdings is essentially attributable to the foundation of the finance companies. major participations 
are indicated in the list of Group companies beginning on page 132. 
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7. ACCouNts pAyAbLe to subsidiAries ANd tHird pArties CHf 220.1 mN (CHf 172.5 mN) 
The total includes CHf 203.2 million (CHf 155.7 million) in liabilities to Sika subsidiaries, resulting from the worldwide cash 
management concept. The increase is attributable to the transfer of financing activities to Sika finanz AG. The transfer 
includes a loan debt with Sika finanz AG of CHf 190.3 million. The remaining liabilities of CHf 16.9 million (CHf 16.8 million) 
consist of accounts payable to third parties. 

8. deFerred iNCome CHf 23.7 mN (CHf 48.8 mN) 
Deferred income includes pro-rata interest of CHf 18.6 million (CHf 16.7 million) as well as other accrued expenses of 
CHf 5.1 million (CHf 3.5 million). The provision for unrealized gains of CHf 28.6 million was realized in 2012 and released to 
the income statement. 

9. boNds ANd otHer NoN-CurreNt LiAbiLities CHf 250.0 mN/CHf 850.0 mN 
(CHf 0 mN/CHf 800.0 mN) AND CHf 11.3 mN (CHf 12.9 mN) 
Two bonds of each CHf 150 million were issued on July 12, 2012. 

2.375% fixed-interest bond 2006 – 2/15/2013 CHf 250.0 million 
3.500% fixed-interest bond 2009 – 6/4/2014 CHf 300.0 million 
2.875%  fixed-interest bond 2006 – 3/23/2016 CHf 250.0 million 
1.000% fixed-interest bond 2012 – 7/12/2018 CHf 150.0 million 
1.750% fixed-interest bond 2012 – 7/12/2022 CHf 150.0 million 

Other long-term liabilities contain the long-term, conditional purchase price obligation for the acquisition of Axim of 
CHf 11.3 million (CHf 12.9 million). 

10. provisioNs For risks reLAted to iNvestmeNts CHf 120.7 mN (CHf 92.1 mN) 
Provisions for credit risks were increased by CHf 30.6 million. They relate to the economical, financial and political risks of 
the subsidiaries. Other provisions of CHf 2.0 million were released. Provisions for risks related to investments are 
unchanged. 

11. sHAreHoLders’ equity CHf 1 677.6 mN (CHf 1 553.3 mN) 
Shareholders’ equity surpasses the previous year’s level. The ratio of shareholders’ equity to balance sheet total decreased 
from 58.0% to 53.2%. 

in CHF mn 

Capital 
stock 

general 
statutory 

reserve 

Capital 
contribution 

reserves 

reserve for 
treasury 

shares 

retained 
earnings 

sharehold­
ers’ equity 

January 1, 2011  22.9 113.4 – 69.9 1 264.8 1 471.0 

Dividend payment – – – –  -112.8 -112.8 

Repayment of nominal value  -21.4 – – – –  -21.4 

Transactions with treasury shares – – –  -14.2 14.2 – 

Capital contribution reserves 1 –  -53.2 53.2 – – – 

Net profit for the year – – – –  216.6 216.6 

January 1, 2012  1.5 60.2 53.2 55.7 1 382.7 1 553.3 

Dividend payment – – – –  -60.4 -60.4 

Distribution of contribution reserves – –  -52.9 – –  -52.9 

Transactions with treasury shares – – –  -28.1 28.1 – 

Net profit for the year – – – –  237.6 237.6 

december 31, 2012  1.5 60.2 0.3 27.6 1 588.0 1 677.6 

1 Under Swiss tax law, effective 1 January 2011, repayments of capital contribution reserves are no longer subject to withholding tax deduction. 
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The capital stock remains unchanged. Net profit for the year reflects the regular business activities. The increase was 
mainly due to reduced administrative expense as well as reduced financial expense. A dividend of CHf 60.4 million as well 
as a distribution of capital contribution reserves of CHf 52.9 million was distributed to shareholders in April 2012. In 
accordance with the Swiss Code of Obligations, reserves for treasury shares are to be reported separately. 

On December 31, 2012, the company had 51 (54) registered shareholders. Information regarding major shareholders can 
be found on page 130. 

There is CHf 155 893.20 in contingent capital, unrestricted in time, comprising 259 822 bearer shares with a per-share 
nominal value of CHf 0.60. These shares are reserved for the exercise of option or conversion rights. 

The capital stock consists of: 

bearer shares1 

nominal value CHF 0.60 
(CHF 0.60) 

registered shares 
nominal value CHF 0.10 

(CHF 0.10) 

total1 

12/31/2011 (units) 2 151 199 2 333 874 4 485 073 

Nominal value (CHf) 1 290 719 233 387 1 524 106 

12/31/2012 (units) 2 151 199 2 333 874 4 485 073 

Nominal value (CHf) 1 290 719 233 387 1 524 106 

1 Includes treasury shares which do not carry voting and dividend rights. 

12. CoNtiNgeNt LiAbiLities 
letters of guarantee and letters of comfort are issued to finance business transactions. No guarantees are required for 
any established zero-balanced cash pooling. Sika AG is part of the Sika Schweiz AG value-added tax group and is jointly 
and severally liable to the tax authorities for the value-added tax obligations of the tax group. 

in CHF mn 2011 2012 

letters of guarantee 

Issued 131.9 123.3 

Used 1.0 0.0 

letters of comfort 

Issued 3.6 3.4 

Used 0.1 0.2 

Credit lines to subsidiaries 

Issued 4.0 4.0 

Used 0.6 0.6 
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13. iNCome From subsidiAries CHf 190.3 mN (CHf 230.7 mN) 
The income from associated companies includes dividend distributions and a capital gain on the participation in Sika 
Saudi Arabia. 

14. FiNANCiAL iNCome CHf 83.9 mN (CHf 71.5 mN) 
financial income includes interest income and gains from foreign exchange transactions. The increase is largely due to 
higher gains from foreign exchange. 

15. otHer iNCome CHf 17.0 mN (CHf 0.1 mN) 
Other income includes the release of the value adjustment for treasury shares of CHf 12.6 million as well as other valua­
tion adjustments and other income. 

16. AdmiNistrAtive expeNses CHf 14.0 mN (CHf 24.2 mN) 
Administrative expenses include expenses for the holding company and an allocation for the higher Group management 
costs. The decline is linked to the revised allocation of costs. 

17. FiNANCiAL expeNses CHf 60.9 mN (CHf 73.0 mN) 
financial expenses mainly include the cost of interest on loans as well as foreign currency losses from foreign exchange 
transactions and loans. losses from foreign exchange transactions arise from hedging transactions to secure loans 
granted to local companies. 

18. depreCiAtioN/CHANge iN provisioN CHf 3.9 mN (CHf 12.7 mN) 
This item includes changes in provisions amounting to CHf 2.0 million (CHf 11.8 million) and amortization of trademark 
licences to the usual extent according to their useful lives. 
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in CHF 1 000 

fix fees 

Committee fee 1 

Variable compensation 2 

Shares 3 

Compensation 

Social security contributions 

management insurance 

Benefit obligations 

walter grüebler, 
Chairman 

until April 17, 2012 

2011 2012 

546.8 181.6 

41.4 13.8 

148.0 96.7 

736.2 292.1 

70.6 19.2 

55.3 18.5 

125.9 37.7 

total 862.1 329.8 

willi k. Leimer 

in CHF 1 000 

fix fees 

Committee fee 1 

Variable compensation 2 

Shares 3 

Compensation 

Social security contributions 

management insurance 

Benefit obligations 

2011 

150.0 

14.0 

164.0 

13.4 

13.4 

2012 

150.0 

24.0 

33.2 

207.2 

15.7 

15.7 

total 177.4 222.9 

ulrich w. suter 

in CHF 1 000 

fix fees 

Committee fee 1 

Variable compensation 2 

Shares 3 

Compensation 

Social security contributions 

management insurance 

Benefit obligations 

2011 

147.7 

19.0 

166.7 

10.8 

10.8 

2012 

149.0 

10.7 

33.2 

192.9 

12.2 

12.2 

total 177.5 205.1 

1 Includes meeting fees (until the Annual General meeting of April 2012) and Commitee fees (after the Annual General meeting of April 2012).
 
2 20% or 40% has to be drawn in the form of shares. The allocation occurs at market values.
 
3 At fair market value which is defined as the closing price of the share on the SIX Swiss Exchange on the first day of the year of mandate (April 18, 2012).
 
4 In the year under review CHf 0.7 million (CHf 0.6 million) was paid for services to a company associated with T. Bechtler.
 
5 In the year under review CHf 0.2 million (CHf 1.3 million) was paid for equipment to a company owned by U. Burkard.
 

19. remuNerAtioN oF tHe boArd oF direCtors 
for the business year 2012 (2011) the Board of Directors is entitled to the following remuneration: 

paul Hälg, thomas w. bechtler 4, urs F. burkard5 

Chairman vice Chairman 
since April 18, 2012 

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 

300.9 444.3 182.7 181.0 150.8 150.3 

30.0 29.2 30.0 43.3 28.0 28.0 

319.5 33.2 33.2 

330.9 793.0 212.7 257.5 178.8 211.5 

26.2 54.8 17.1 19.3 14.5 16.0 

26.2 54.8 17.1 19.3 14.5 16.0 

357.1 847.8 229.8 276.8 193.3 227.5 

monika ribar daniel J. sauter Fritz studer 

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 

100.2 150.0 150.9 150.2 159.3 52.2 

10.0 37.3 30.0 26.0 39.0 6.5 

33.2 33.2 

110.2 220.5 180.9 209.4 198.3 58.7 

9.1 16.7 12.2 12.5 13.0 2.8 

9.1 16.7 12.2 12.5 13.0 2.8 

119.3 237.2 193.1 221.9 211.3 61.5 

Christoph tobler Frits van dijk total 

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 

150.6 150.2 100.0 2 039.9 1 858.8 

24.0 26.0 265.4 244.8 

148.0 96.7 

33.2 33.2 0.0 585.1 

174.6 209.4 0.0 133.2 2 453.3 2 785.4 

14.2 15.9 11.7 201.1 196.8 

55.3 18.5 

14.2 15.9 0.0 11.7 256.4 215.3 

188.8 225.3 0.0 144.9 2 709.7 3 000.7 
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The disclosure of compensation of the Board of Directors was cash-based until 2011. The disclosure in 2012 is based on 
accruals for the first time, therefore, year 2011 is being restated. 

No member of the Board of Directors was granted a loan during the business year. No loans were outstanding at the end 
of the year under review. 

In the year under review no compensation was paid to former members of the Board of Directors. 

20. remuNerAtioN oF group mANAgemeNt 
for the business year 2012 Group management is entitled to the following remuneration: 

in CHF 1 000 

fix salary 1 

Variable short-term bonus 2 

Variable long-term incentive 3 

Other expenses 4 

Compensation 

Pension benefits 5 

Benefit obligations 

ernst 
bärtschi, 
Ceo until 

12/31/2011 

2011 

1 000 

613 

1 071 

46 

2 730 

473 

473 

Jan 
Jenisch, 

Ceo since 
1/1/2012 

2012 

862 

842 

532 

46 

2 282 

307 

307 

2011 

6 818 

3 742 

5 637 

907 

17 104 

3 080 

3 080 

total 

2012 

6 521 

5 265 

3 152 

788 

15 726 

2 985 

2 985 

total 3 203 2 589 20 184 18 711 

1 Includes annual base salary and anniversary payments. All compensation amounts in this report are gross payments including social security and 
withholding tax. 

2 Estimated short-term bonus of the reporting year that will be paid in April 2013 (accrual principle) including 20% uplift on the portion taken in form 
of shares (20% or 40% of bonus amount). The allocation occurs at market values. 

3 The long-term incentives shown are accrued and pertain to entitlements acquired in 2012 which will be paid out in 2013 or in future years, based on 
the estimated performance payout for each plan. 

4 Includes company car cash allowance, representation allowance and home office allowance for members of Group management with a Swiss 
contract of employment and perquisites and other compensation for members of Group management with a contract of employment outside 
Switzerland. Does not include cost allowances for international assignees such as tax equalization, housing, home leave, schooling. 

5 Includes social security contributions as well as contributions to company provided pension plans. 

In the year under review compensation in the amount of CHf 3.9 million was paid to the former CEO, which includes the 
standard compensation during the notice period as well as the net present value of the benefit provided under the early 
retirement plan. 
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21. pArtiCipAtioNs iN sikA Ag 
members of the Board of Directors and Group management hold the following participations in Sika AG: 

Number of shares Number of warrants 
(potential voting rights) 

2011 2012 2011 2012 

Board of directors 

Paul Hälg, Chairman since April 18, 2012 100 100 0 0 

Walter Grüebler, Chairman until April 17, 2012 2 237 n.a. 0 n.a. 

Thomas W. Bechtler, Vice Chairman 687 687 0 0 

Urs f. Burkard 1 213 213 0 0 

Willi K. leimer 0 0 0 0 

monika Ribar 22 22 0 0 

Daniel J. Sauter 2 000 2 000 0 0 

fritz Studer until April 17, 2012 20 n.a. 0 n.a. 

Ulrich W. Suter 0 0 0 0 

Christoph Tobler 210 310 0 200 

frits van Dijk 0 25 0 0 

Group management 

Jan Jenisch, CEO since January 1, 2012 500 1 000 0 0 

Ernst Bärtschi, CEO until December 31, 2011 794 n.a. 0 n.a. 

Silvio Ponti, deputy CEO 556 911 0 0 

Alexander Bleibler 456 697 0 0 

Iven Chadwick 209 386 0 0 

Bruno fritsche 194 292 0 0 

Christoph Ganz 176 313 0 0 

Peter Krebser 241 299 0 0 

Urs mäder 257 383 0 0 

Hubert Perrin de Brichambaut 124 278 0 0 

Ernesto Schümperli 261 443 0 0 

Paul Schuler 401 659 0 0 

Ronald Trächsel 542 792 0 0 

José luis Vásquez 480 686 0 0 

Heinz Gisel 151 162 0 0 

total 10 831 10 658 0 200 

1 Urs. f. Burkard also has an interest in the Schenker-Winkler Holding, which holds 2 359 511 Sika AG shares. 

22. iNFormAtioN oN exeCutioN oF risk AssessmeNt 
Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors of Sika AG and by Group management. The Board of Directors is 
the highest authority for risk assessment. The Board assesses risks annually at the level of the Group and Sika AG. Group 
management regularly reviews the processes which form the basis for risk management. The risk management process 
comprises four steps: risk identification, risk assessment, risk monitoring, and risk controlling. 

Information on the Group-wide risk assessment processes can be found in note 24 to the Consolidated financial Statements. 
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 sikA Ag FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Proposal by the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General meeting the following appropriation of retained earnings: 

2012 in CHF mn 2011 

Composition of retained earnings 

Net profit for the year 216.6 237.6 

Profit brought forward 1 100.2 1 256.4 

retained earnings 1 316.8 1 494.0 

Dissolution of capital contribution reserves 52.9 0.0 

total for disposition to Annual general meeting 1 369.7 1 494.0 

dividend payment 

Dividend payment out of retained earnings 1 60.4 128.8 

Dividend payment out of capital contribution reserves 1, 2 52.9 0.0 

total 1 256.4 1 365.2 

1 Dividend payment for shares entitled to dividends (without treasury shares as per December 31, 2012). 
2 The distribution of capital contribution reserves has no impact on retained earnings. 

As the general statutory reserve currently exceeds 20% of shareholders’ equity, a further allocation to the reserve was 
waived. 
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On approval of this proposal, the following payment will be made: 

in CHF 

Bearer share 1 nominal value Chf 0.60 

Gross dividend 

35% withholding tax on gross dividend 

Net dividend 

2011 

24.00 

8.40 

15.60 

2012 

51.00 

17.85 

33.15 

Registered share nominal value Chf 0.10 

Gross dividend 4.00 8.50 

35% withholding tax on gross dividend 1.40 2.98 

Net dividend 2.60 5.53 

Bearer share 1 nominal value Chf 0.60 

Repayment of nominal value/distribution of capital contribution reserves 21.00 0.00 

35% withholding tax – – 

Net repayment of nominal value/net distribution 
of capital contribution reserves 21.00 0.00 

Registered share nominal value Chf 0.10 

Repayment of nominal value/distribution of capital contribution reserves 3.50 0.00 

35% withholding tax – – 

Net repayment of nominal value/net distribution 
of capital contribution reserves 3.50 0.00 

1 Bearer shares held by Sika AG are non-voting shares and do not qualify for a dividend. 

Payment of the dividend is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, April 23, 2013 upon presentation of coupons no. 23 for 
bearer shares. 

Registered shareholders will receive payment of the dividend at the address provided to the company for purposes of 
dividend distribution. 

The Annual General meeting of Sika AG will be held on Tuesday, April 16, 2013, 3 p. m. in the lorzensaal in Cham, Switzerland. 

Baar, february 22, 2013 

for the Board of Directors 
The Chairman: 
DR. PAUl HälG 
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sikA Ag FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 

Report of the Statutory Auditors to the Annual General meeting of Sika AG, Baar 

report oF tHe stAtutory Auditor oN tHe FiNANCiAL stAtemeNts 
As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of Sika AG, which comprise the balance sheet, income 
statement, and notes (pages 144 to 154) for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

board of directors’ responsibility. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
 circumstances. 

Auditor’s responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of mate­
rial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presen­
tation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 comply with Swiss law and the 
company’s articles of incorporation. 

report oN otHer LegAL requiremeNts 
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and inde­
pendence (article 728 Code of Obligations, CO, and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with 
our independence. 

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal 
control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions 
of the Board of Directors. 

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the company’s 
articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved. 

Zug, february 22, 2013 

ERNST & YOUNG lTD 

BERNADETTE KOCH PASCAl KOCHER 
licensed audit expert licensed audit expert 
(Auditor in charge) 
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 fInancIal calendar 

FInAnCIAl CAlenDAR
 

tueSdaY, aPrIl 16, 2013 
Shareholder letter (first quarter 2013) 
Annual General Meeting 

tueSdaY, aPrIl 23, 2013 
Dividend payment 

tueSdaY, JulY 30, 2013 
Shareholder letter (half-Year Report 2013) 

WedneSdaY, october 30, 2013 
Shareholder letter (nine months 2013) 

tueSdaY, JanuarY 14, 2014 
net sales 2013 

thurSdaY, march 4, 2014 
Full-year results 2013; media conference / analysts’ presentation 
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